
Regular Meeting
City Hall
East Side of Monte Verde
between Ocean & Seventh

Wednesday
July 22,2015

9:00 AM

Nancy Collins
Richard Flower, President
Martha Mosher, Vice President
Niels Reimers
Tara Twomey, Treasurer

l. Roll Caii

ll. Announcements from Board Members and Director

lll. Appearances
Anyon" *''shing to address the Library Board on items within its jurisdiction may
do so now. PlJase rise, state your name and the matter on which you wish to
speak. Matters not appearing on the Library Board agenda will not receive action
at this meeting. Presentatiois will be limited to three minutes, or as established
by the Library Board of Trustees.

lV. Approval of Minutes of the June 24,2015 Meeting (pp' 1-3)

V. Orders of Business
A. ReceivGort from the Carmel Public Library Foundation regarding CPLF

activities
B. Review annual request to the Carmel

Year 2015116 funding (pP. a -74)
Public Library Foundation for Fiscal

C. Discuss and accept Fiscal Year 2013114 library audit (pP. 75 - 101)

Vl. Librarian's Report
Review of rnonthly library statistics

Vll. Treasurer's Report:
A. Receive Treasurer's Report
B. Accept June 30, 2015 Financial Statements and Check Register.

Vlll. Adjournment

The next regularly scheduled Library Board of Trustees meeting will be held August 26,
2015.

Any writings or documents provided to a majority of the Harrison Memorial Library
Board of Trustees regarding an item on this agenda will be made available for public
inspection in the Library Director's office at the Park Branch library at the corner of
Mission & Sixih Streets during normal business hours.
The City of Carnnel-by-the-Sea does not discriminate against persons with disabilities.
Carmel-bythe-Sea City Hall is an accessible facility. The City of Carmel-by-the-Sea



telecommunications device for the Deaf/Speech lmpaired (T.D.D.) number is 1-800-
735-2929.

AFFIDAVIT OF POSTING

l, Janet Bombard, Library and Community Activities Director for the City of Carmel-by-
the-Sea, DO HEREey ienflFY, under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of
California, that the foregoing notice was posted at the Carmel-by-the-Sea City Hall
bulletin board, posted at tne Harrison Memorial Library on Ocean and Lincoln Avenues,
posted at the Carmel Post Office and distributed to members of the media on July 16,
2015.

Dated this 16th day of July, 2015, at the hour of 12:00 p.m'

Janet Bombe
Library and ommunity Activities Director



L

II.

MII\UTES
I{AR.RISON MEMORIAL LIBRARY BOARD OF TRUSTEES

CITY OF CARMEL.BY.THE-SEA
June 24,2015

CALL TO ORDER

The regular meeting of the Harrison Memorial Library Board of Trustees was held on the above

date at 9:00 a.m. President FLOWER called the meeting to order'

ROLL CALL:
PRESENT:
ABSENT:
STAFF FR.ESENT:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

FLOWER, MOSHER, REIMERS, TWOMEY
COLLINS
Janet Bombard, LibrarY Director
Carolina Lopez, Library Office Assistant

III.

V.

VI.

Library Director Janet Bombard announced that the audit has been completed and she hopes to

bring it to the Board for review by the next board meeting. Bombard witl speak with the city
Administrator about having the auditor talk to the Board' Board member Reimers requested that

amendments to Board minutes be spelled out in the minutes.

APPEARANCES:

No appearances.

APPROVAI- OF MINUTES:

Board Member MOSHER moved to, rove heA
Meetine. seconded by Board M.*b"iMMEY *d carried by the following ro11 call

FLOWER, MOSHER, REIMERS, TWOMEY
NONE
COLLINS
NONE

VU. ORDER.S OF BUSINESS:

A. Receive report from the Carmel Public Library Foundation regarding CPLF
activities

No one from CPLF was Present.

B. Discuss l-ibrary Board of Trustees participation in the 2016 Centennial and develop ideas

for projects to be presented at the City Co.rocil workshop on Monday, July 6,2015

After discussion, the Board developed the following list to be presented at the workshop:

u



1.

2.

3.

4.

5.

Deveiop a series of bookmarks containing lists of books about Carmel, and by Carmel

authors. Put Centennial logo on bookmarks.
Create monthly displays in'tt e Main Library of authors with Carmel connections and their

books, beginning with the Bohemians.
Create dislplays In the Main Library and Park Branch which feature the history of the first
library in barmel and the subsequent creation of the Harrison Memorial Library' Display

should include books that were written - and people were reading - during those time
periods.
The Library Board will present a lecture on either the history of the library or some other

subject that pertains to the history of Carmei.
Develop a series of age-appropriut., recommended Classic Literature booklists for children

which include Carmel authors such as Jack London'
Complete, publish, and publici ze ote or more History Pin historical walking tours'

The annuaf t..r, photo ctntest theme will be based in some way on the history of Carmel
6.
7.

C. Consideration of a request to change the current materials checkout and renewal periods

from two weeks to three weeks each

Library Director Janet Bombard outlined the reasons for the requested change to the materials

checkout period and answered Board questions.

Board Member REIMERS moved to
checkout and renewal periods from two weeks to three weeks.
Member MOSHER and carried by the following roll call vote:

est

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

FLOWER, MOSHER, TWOMEY, REIMERS
NONE
COLLINS
NONE

V[I. LIBR,dEIAN'SREPORT:

No librarian's report.

IX. TREASURERS REPORT:

Board Treasurer Twomey reviewed the April Financial statement and May financial statement and
check register with the Board. There were no extraordinary expenses that needed special
attention from the Board.

Board Member MOSHER moved
seconded by Board Member REIMERS and carried by the following roll call vote:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

FLOWER, MOSHER, TWOMEY, REIMERS
NONE
COLLINS
NONE

Board Member REIEMRS moved to, Accept the May Financial Statements and Check Resister.
seconded by Board Member MOSHER and caried by the following roll call vote:

FLOWER, MOSHER, TWOMEY, REIMERS
2

nt materials

AYES:



NOES: NONE
ABSENT: COLLINS
ABSTAIN: NONE

ADJOURNMENT:

There being no funher business to come before the Board, President Flower declared the meeting

adjourned at 10:35 am. The next regular meeting is scheduled for July 22,2015'

Respectfuiiy submitted,
Carolina Lopez, Administrative Assistant



From:

Subject:

HARRISON MEMORIAL LIBRARY BOARD OF TRUSTEES

22,2015
Harrison Memorial Library Board of Trustees

Janet Bombard, Library Director

Review annual request to the Carmel Public Library Foundation for Fiscal
Year 2015116 funding

EXECUTTVE SUMMARY: ln Fiscal Year 2012113 the Carmel Public Library Foundation
(CPLF) implemented a procedure with regard to the disbursement of fiscal year budget funds
whereby the library would make a formal, written request for funding each fiscal year. The
foundation developed a form that is to be submitted by the Library Director after the Library
Board of Trustees adopts a new fiscal year budget.

The paperwork was submitted to the Carmel Public Library Foundation at its June 23,2015
board meeting. CPLF will review the form at its September 2015 Board Retreat, and make a
determination as to whether to grant the request for funds.

The Fiscal Year 2A15116 request for funding (Attachment A) follows this report. ln addition to
the standard $280,000 in funding from CPLF, staff is requesting two pieces of equipment - a
new AWE Early Literacy Computer Station in the Youth Services Department, and a new
public copy machine in the Reference Department at the Main Library - that could not be
accommodated in the budget.

Staff Report



Carmel Public Library Foundation
Harrison Memorial Library

Partnership Agreement
FY 20L4-2015

Request for Funds
1. Amount requested: $ $2qt.f OO

2. Last awarded FY 2013-2014: $280.oo0 (Library annuai budset))
3. Reason for increase: Requested funding for operating support, plus

replacement equipment which will enhance library offerings and customer
service.

4. Funds for:

Operating support: $28O,OO0

AWE Early Literacy Computer Station: $3,500
Copy machine for Main Library. Features: letter and legal size, scanning
to USB, and interface with the public WiFi: $7,600

5. Schedule of disbursements (to be planned by CPLF)

1st etr:
2nd etr:
3rd etr:
4th etr:

?



Summary of Goals & Objectives

One page summary statement (or attach current strategic plan - ATTACHMENT B)
including:

Key goals & activities

Scope of services

Current program(s) / activities

New programs(s) / activities
Current Organization Chart - ATTACHMENT C

Attachments
Current annual budget showing both income and expenses
ATTACHMENT D

Projected next year budget ATTACHMENT E

Most current month year-to-date balance sheet and income statement
ATTACHMENT F

MOSt TCCCNI AUdit ATTACHMENT G

Last year-end (June) Librarian's Report ATTACHMENT H
Most current month Libraian's Report ATTACHMENT I

Signatures

Executive Director

Library Director

CPLF Board President

President Library Trustee

{.;

Date



A-'l ir("irLte ui 5

HARRISON MEMORTAL LIBRARY

STRATEGIC WORKPLAIY

2013 - 2015

City of Carmel-by-the-Sea, California
January 20L3

1



{-\'ir\\

Introduction

In November 2012, staff conducted a six-week community survey in order to ascertain
what our library users want and expect from the library. The intention of the survey
questions was to determine what is important to our users, not only with regard to library
services, but their personal priorities as well. We asked what people like most about their
community and what they would change. We wanted to know what they want for their
children and grandchildren. And, of course, we asked how they would change the library
to suit their needs. Our goal was to take their responsos and integrate their porsonal and
community priorities into otr service plan.

Guided by input from our users and the Carmel-by-the-Sea City Council's objectives of
community character, long-term vitality, organizational effectiveness and fiscal stability,
library staff engaged in a pianning workshop which became the basis of this new three-
year work plan.

21't century libraries must be flexible. We are no longer a physical space that houses only
books; we provide a variety of formats and materials, and our virtual presence extends
beyond four walls. A recent New York Times article discusses the void that iibraries are
filling now that many communities no longer have bookstores. Our survey responses
indicate that our library users do want us to function more like a bookstore while still
retaining a library atmosphere. People's lives today are hectic and our library patrons
also want their library services and hours to fit around their busy schedules. It is our duty
to make careful choices that respond to the changing needs and expectations of our 21tt
century users. We created this work plan with those needs in mind.

Vision Statement

Harrison Memorial Library will:

Be a welcoming community center that connects diverse users from multiple generations
to their community and to each other by offering awide range of educational and
cultural programs

Pr ovide out standing customer s ervice

Be a safe and inviting placefor the community's youthwhile providing moterials, spaces,
and activities to engage their interest and promote life-long learning

Be innovqtive and continually changing, adopting new and etnerging technologies to
meet the community's informational and service needs

Provide collections that are broad in scope and depth, in awide range offormats

8



i)

Be a respected and sustainable organization that functions as the cultural, intellectual
and informational heart of the community

Harrison Memorial Library Mission Statement

The Harrison Memorial Library provides collections, resources and programs that
support educational, informational, and recreational pursuits and document the history
and development of carmel-by-the-sea and the surrounding region.

Carmel Public Library Foundation Mission Statement

The mission of the Carmel Public Library Foundation is to provide supplemental funds
for Harrison Memorial Library that will ensure free library iervice in iirpetuity.

t



,1

i'r

GOAL l: Enhance the user experience by making the library more accessible,
convenient and easy to use.

First Year Objectives:

Allow the reasonable use of cell phones in the Park Branch Lobby, and in the
Teen Room and the balcony adjacent to the Reference Departrnent in the Main
Library.

. Designate the Main Library Reading Room as a quiet zone.
o Through training, ensure that each staff member is able to assist patrons with any

technology in either building.
o Investigate options for "self-serve" pick up of books that have been placed on

hold for patrons.
. Raise the limit at which library user privileges are blocked due to unpaid late fees.
o Develop a welcome packet to hand out with new library cards.
. Interfile oversized books in the Main Library with regular collections.
o Allow coffee in covered containers.
o Put out water bowls and dog biscuits at both buildings.

Second Year Objectives :

. Install catalog computers on mezzanine and in stacks area of the Main Library.
o Investigate the possibility of adding an additional "Food for Fines" month during

the year to offset user requests for the elimination of late fees.
o Investigate installing either a "Red Box" style machine in front of the Main

Library that will allow users to check out library materials 24 hours a day or a
kiosk that will be stocked with free books.

o Develop clear and user-friendly signage. Significantly reduce the number of "do
not" and "no" signs, and eliminate the clutter of too much signage in the library.

. Expand the fiction collection to include more literary fiction (works claimed to
have literary meritl.

o Add additional shelving for Main Library Audio Visual collections.
. Add a map feature to the online catalog to help users firrd materials in the library.

Third Year Objectives:

r Explore implementation of Radio Frequency Identificetion Technology (RFID)
that will allow library users to simultaneously check out stacks of materials from
self checkout urits.

l1



l,-.lr

Years One Through Three:

. lmprove and create catalog records, indexes and finding aids to make all Local
History department materials accessible to the public.

o Develop clear and user-friendly signage. Significantly reduce the number of "do
not" and "no" signs, and eliminate the clutter of too much signage in the library.

o Explore ways to better market library programs and services, and to more
effectively convey messages that affect library users (closures, for example).. Improv. t":t.B;.fr:*"ting of materials through:

' Materials that face out
' "If you like..., try..." bookmarks and handouts

: *',tr*?:::5',.::-::r,"J;11n 
services department

o Continuously weed all library collections.
. Staff in both buildings will, whenever possible, escort library users to service

desks and/or the stacks to locate materials.

GOAL 2: Continue to provide a variefy of interesting and informative programs
for all ages

First Year Objectives:

. Recruit volunteers to help staff with library programs.
o Continue to provide at least two adult programs per month.
o Develop an Oral History program.

,. ' Explore ways in which to make movie nights a successful program.
o Increase the number of teen programs.
o Develop prograrlming targeted to the 20 to 3O-year-old demographic.
o Develop programming targeted to the 31 to 50-year old demographic.o lvlake DVD's of past and current recorded programs and add them the circulating

collection.

Second Year Objectives:

. Provide relevant, usefiJ local history workshops. Possible workshops include
preserving family photographs and how to research your family tree.. Increase the number of once-monthly drop in programs (such as the First Saturday
Tech Workshops).

o Provide opportunities to the public to learn and use new technologies.. Increase outreach to preschools.

{r



t--,
.\

o Implement programming targeted to the 20 to 30-year-old demographic.
. Implement programming targeted to the 31 to 50-year old demographic.

Third Year Objectives:

. Recruit a program coordinator to help staff increase and effectively manage
programs.

GOAL 3: Use technolory to enhance and support public seruice to the
community

First Year Objectives:

. Make the digitized Devendorf-Galante Collection available online through the
library and City websites.

o Provide scanning and faxing services at the Main Library.
o Install a public computer terminal in the Local History department.
o Investigate additional sources for purchasing or leasing eBooks. Add more eBook

titles to the collection as options become available,.
o Launch pilot program to circulate eReaders with pre-loaded titles.
. Record library programs whenever possible. Make them available on the library

website and Facebook pages via video streaming.
r Install additional AWE early literacy computer stations in Youth Services.

Upgrade existing AWE stations.

Second Year Objectives:

. Begin to digitize and make Local History collections available online.

. Redesign library website to make it more functional and user friendly. Address
website accessibility issues.

. Implement online library card registration through library website.
o Add map feature to the online card catalog to help library users determine

location of the materials they are seeking in the library.

t)-



ri

Third Year Objective:

Develop a series of "History pin" app walking tours of carmel which will be
accessed by residents and visitors through their smartphones.
continue digitization and online posting of Local History collections.
Expand virtual services by adding streaming video and music platforms that can
be accessed from the library website.
Install a print kiosk in the Reference Department to enable users to print their owndocuments from public computers.

GOAL 4: Implement solutions that promote staff efficiency and effective
work{Iow

First Year Objectives:

Continue to cross train staff so that there are at least two other staff members who
can perform each job function.
Expand the library's volunteer base by:. creating a wider variety ofjobs

' creating virtual iistings on volunteer Match to reach a wider
audience of interested volunteers

Identify and increase professionar training opportunities for staff.
Revise staff work schedules to provide better workflow and maximize efficiencyduring off-desk periods.
Reassign staff work tasks to better distribute workloads and continue with
library's stated objective of cross training staff. Encourage staff to look at theirnew assignments with an eye toward modifying pro".rr.i and improving
workflow.

Second Year Objectives:

o Install an ergonomic Book Retum in the Park Branch library parking lot.

Third Year Objectives:

o Investigate implementing Radio Frequency Identification Technology (RFID),which will allow easy location of incbrrecily shelved material ana ii1prore theftdetection.

a

a

a

a

i3



l-r

' Investigate the possibility of removing a wall in the Main Library iobby in ord.er
to expand the materials check-in area.o Investigate the possibility of installing automatic book sorrers in one or both
buildings that will allow materials to be returned and automatically logged back in
to the system 24 hours /day.

Years One Through Three:

o Systematically review all existing library contracts, beginning with the
McNaughton book leasing plan, the Baker & Taylor contract for materials
processing, and the library's current banking services. Compare with competing
vendors' services in order to identify the best and most cost-effective solutions.

GOAL 5: Modify library spaces to provide a more welcoming and functional
environment

First Year Objectives:

Remove locking cabinet doors in the Local History department.
Reconfigure and weed local history department collections to make more space in
the Local History department vault. Install additional shelving.
Add taller shelving in the AV (audio book and DVD) section of the Main Library
to accommodate expanding collections.

' Replace hard, wooden chairs in the Main Library with craftsman style padded
chairs.

o Create a small, free community meeting space in the Teen Lounge of the Main
Library by removing the shelving in the middle of the room and reducing
retention periods of the magazines stored in the room. Purchase a folding table
and chairs, to be stored in the adjacent computer room, which can be set up for
meetings.

I Explore feasibility of increasing the leased books plan to include more nonfiction
so that time sensitive titles can be returned instead of going onto the Reading
Room shelves.

. Maximize space in the Main Library Reading Room:r Revise weeding criteria and thoroughly weed nonfiction section of
Main Libraryr Investigate removing or relocating one of the large tables in the Main
Library Reading Room and instaliing comfortable seating in its place
in order to facilitate easier access to collections near the table

a

a

l+



i:',

Second Year Objectives:

o Add taller shelving for new fiction and nonfiction books in the Main Library
Lobby in order to expand collections of new materials and to allow for longer
retention of the materials.

. Develop a library accessibility plan for users with disabilities.

. Add bean bags and other comfortable furniture in the Youth Services department
that will allow parents and caregivers to read to children.

o Investigate ways in which air quality and ventilation in the Main Library might be
improved

o Paint the Teen Lounge and add more fumiture. lnstall a White Board on one wall.
Paint one wall green or blue to facilitate the making of videos.

o Reconfigure staff office spaces in both buildings to provide better workflow, more
functionality, and to provide work spaces for staff that currently do not have
them.

Third Year Objectives:
. Re-do the color scheme in the Youth Services department to freshen it up and

make it more attractive to young users.. Create age-appropriate zones (1 - 4years. 5 - 8 years, and 9 - 12 years) in the
Youth Services Department so that ali age ranges served by the department will
have their own "place" to use library materials and socialize.

o Work with the Carmel Public Library Foundation to fundraise for new gas
fireplace logs that will look more attractive and offer better heating of the Main
Library Reading Room.

o Update the Main Library hall and restrooms with better lighting, paint and new
electric hand dryers.

o Determine cost and feasibility of installing moveable shelving on coasters in both
buildings.

o Remodel Main Library and Youth Services circulation desks to make them more
functional.o investigate the possibility of locating the reference and circulation desks on the
same floor.

t?



Library Staff Organization Chart

20L4

Circulation
Supervisor

I
I

2 FT Library
Assistants

I

I

3 PT Library
Assistants c

I

I

7 On-call Library
Assistants

Library Director-,--l

Local History
Librarian II

I

I

Tech Services
FT Library Asst

a. two 77 hr/wk, one I hrlwk

b. one 30 hrlwk, one 17hrlwk

c. one 17 hrlwk, one 15 hrlwk, one 12 hrlwk

Reference
Librarian II

I
I

3 PT Librarian Ia

PT Office Assistant - 12 hr/wk

Youth Services
Librarian II

I

I

2 PT Library
Assistants b

t ,c.



ArTpcnpwtr D

FY 14115 LIBRARY BUDGET

EXPENDITURES;..ADMINISTRAiTION.. "'.i'' l
ffi.{i'li4t.ttti,t
=.{".,l,lll:=-..::- -;

'E'Y-f13/i1la

,:ff;I
anr

lelephone Total $9,050 $5,580 $9,566

Gontracted Services:
Bookeeping Services Golden Gate Bookkeeping

P.G. Self Storage
Audit Services
Overdue Materials Gollection Green Profit Recovery
Building Alarm Fees sentry, Concept Security

Copy Services Copies by the Sea, Copy King, Welcome packets

Adveftising Ads, Yellow Pages, Constant Contact, Engaged Patrons

Gourier Services Kal west

$4,440
$2,400
$5,000
$700

$1,200
$850
$975

$1,800

$2,725
$1,600

$o
$700
$561
$613
$e39
$e00

$4,225
$2,400
$3,500
$700

$1,ooo
$1,900
$1,445
$2.000

fotal $17,365 $8,038 $17,17A

Professional Development:
Staff Training lnternet Libn., lnfopeople
Mileage
Professional Memberships ALA, cLA, American Archivists

Pacific Library Partnership Membership Fees

$5,ooo
$780

$1,200
$7,419

$1,521
$914
$848

$7,414

$3,500
$1,200
$1,200
$8,645

Total $14,399 $10,697 $14,545

Supplies: Office / Custodial / Borrower / Equipment / lnfo Systems

Total $11,000 $5,454 $11,000

Postaqe: Stamps. PO Box Rental
Total $750 $679 $1,250

Facility Maintenance:
Furnishinqs-Repair/Maintenance Itotal I $500 $o $500

Donor AcknowledgemenUSigns:
Volunteer Recognition
Siqns

$500
$500

$209
$o

$500
$50o

Total $1.000 $209 $1,000

Bank Gharqes/Retd Ghecks: Total $300 $18 $250

Docu ments-Refu nds/Lost: Total $150 $23 $100

i*i$5,ft5:l:3" fl;$38;736: 55:381
page 1

fl



Arrrc+rrra:rD
FY 14115 LIBRARY BUDGET

Main Collection:
Non Fiction
Non Fiction-Travel Cont.
Fiction*
Amazon Prime Membership
Book Rental
McNaughton Buyback
Large Print
Audiovisual
Online Subscription - Overdrive
Additional Overdrive Titles
Special Gategory
Teen Fiction - Main
Adult Graphic Novel Gollection
Teen Nonfiction - Main

$23,000
$s,ooo
$5,000

$7e
$32,705
$1,150
$4,000

$22,000
$2,100
$5,150
$200

$1,200
$1,000
$800

$15,591
$2,992
$2,585

$eo
$24,913
$1,086
$1,152

$11,585
$2,100
$3,085

$21
$1,002
$411
$638

$23,000
$5,000
$5,000

$ee
$33,100

$o
$3,ooo

$22,000
$2,100
$4,000
$1 00

$1,200
$1,000
$800

fotal $103,384 $67,147 $100,399
Reference Gollection:
General Reference
Continuation
Reference Databases new: Hoopla,Zinnio

$9,000
$16,500
$'13,000

7,178
10,307
9,007

$4,500
$16,000
$23,030

Total $38,500 $26,492 $43,530
Youth Services Collection:
YS Collection
YS Audio Video
YS Online Database Brainfuse

$12,500
$4,000
$2,500

$9,892
$2,927
$3,012

$13,000
$4,500
$1,500

Total $19,000 $15,831 $19,000
Local History Collection:

Documents & Digital Preservation
Gonservation & Supplies

$2,500
$2,500

$1,334
$1,358

$2,500
$2,500

fotal $5,000 $2,692 $5,000

Professional Collection : Total $3oo $0 $300

SerlalS (lncluding Bookpage): Total $12,000 $8,009 $12,100

,;. DOG U M E N:TiS-1,IOTAL!..,1:-q;;'.;; "i ,$178;184: $120,171 ,-i$180,329

p.2

t'\lD



lfrThcr-tttE+Jr D

FY 14115 LIBRARY BUDGET

il:,r

i: . I.:l Lrf.ri=riill

iiACTUAE.I
f,i.il/l0/i4':ii

Equipment Maintenance / Gontracts:
LH scanner,copy machines,elevators,AWE,Thumper,

SelfCheck, Security Gates, Envisionware, Xerox, 3M
Total $14,000 $10,403 $14,700

Jtner i'rolesslonal services ! Docutec, Apptied Microfi tm, typewriters

fotal $400 $625 $6oo

New Equipment:
Book Return - Park Branch
ADA accessible computer desk - Main Reading Room
Book Trucks - Main and Youth Services
AV Cases
Shelving - Local History and Main
Youth Services Bookends
Youth Services Gamera

$6,ooo
$600
$880
$700

$3,800
$1 6s
$175

Total $14,192 $10,619 $12,320

'.EQU I PM E NT..{OTAL l, :.-.,,:, ri;i . ,-,$28,592+ ,,$21t647i i$27,620,

EXPEN DITU RES .= GATALOGING._ FX,131,14 ,.;:riffiDE" FY;14115
Matenal Processing: oclc catatoging $9,000 5,177 $9,000

Library Cards $600 $s76 $60o

IFM for lnterlibrary Loan $o $o $100

GATALOGING TOTAL:. ,,.: $9,600 ,,'$5,753 -' ;$9,700
p.3

fi



A-r-TI{.++UE*5( D

FY 14115 LIBRARY BUDGET

FYi1411:5

Equipment: Computers, Monitors, etc. Total $17,900 $e03 $12,525

Support & Maintenance:
ByWater Solutions Hosting and Maintenance
ILS Modification / Support:
lcell upgrade

Other Technical Support - Computer/Phone:

$9,000
$o
$o

$3,ooo

$8,300
$o
$o

$85

$9,000
$350

$1,200
$1,ooo

Total $12,000 $8,385 $11,550

felecommunication
3omcast, Redshift

Provider:
lrotat-l $1,700 $1,185 $1,810

Software: lpswitch, Faronics Total $725 $151 $8s0

Website Maintenance / Enhancement :

Domain Name, Cloud Trax, Engaged Patrons Calendar,
Library Anywhere, Author Alerts lr.t"t -l $1.58s $1,576 $2,185

INFORMATIONSYSTEMS:TOTAL!-,,:-.-,rt:i.==. $33,810 $12,200 $28,070.

EXP EN DITU RES i. P ROG RAMS;li:- FY,,I3/14 YTD,i FY 14115
Programs:
Youth Reading Programs
YS Summer Reading Program
Teen Programs
Adult / Local History Programs

$5,000
$5,000
$600

$4,000

$3,570
$861
$233

$2,896

$5,000
$5,000
$600

$3,500
P ROG RAM S'TOTAL :;:;,:l"l':rrr $14,600+ ...$14,100.

expEN o ITU RES, - CONTI N G E NQY-;::,;gi.';;,., F.Y.,13114 Fy,,14115

CONTINGENGY{OTAL:., .-... :."=.-$0,,'. = ,.,' -$0,,,
$500
$500

1d



AwNcr+uer:r j)
FY 14115 LIBRARY BUDGET SUMMARY

REVENUES : l:,::f-l:
:-.==,lri, " :ii i' : .'.ii

Library Operations
GA State Library
Friends of HML
lnterest lncome
CPLF- Unrestricted Donations
Donations

lTotal,

$18,100
$o

$19,000
$1,000

$280,000
$1,200

$319,3001:

$9,604
$o
$0

$831
$140,000

$407

$15,000
$o

$19,000
$1,200

$280,000
$50o

rr$315,700i"'- $150,842,

EXPENDITURES,: ':r'"'r , :::

Administration
Documents
Equipment
Gataloging
lnformation Systems
Programs
Continqencv

$54,513
$178,184
$28,592
$9,600
$33,810
$14,600

$o

$30,694
$120,976
$21,647
$5,753
$12,200

7,550
0

$55,381
$180,329
$27,620
$9,700
$28,070
$14,100

$s00
Total,r; $319,299;; $315,700.

MARCH 19,2014 CASH BALANGES:

WELLS FARGO CHECKING
LAIF
TOTAL

LESS RESTRIGTED BRADNEY FUND
LESS SIX MONTH OPERATING RESERVE"
LESS EQUIPMENT REPLACEMENT FUND

TOTAL UNRESTRICTED FUNDS:

$213,041
$387,656

-$606^oe-7
-$46,747

-$157,850
-$100,000
-$304,597

$296,100

.112 FY 13114 Budget as per HMLBT Financial Policy adopted 2/03

p.5

3{



ArrAq.L^.r(rr c
FY 15/16 LIBRARY BUDGET

EXPENDITU RES - ADMINISTRATION, FY 14t15

! 49

ACTUAL
4t14t15 FY { 5116

Telephone Total $9.566 $6,606 $9,400

Contracted Services:
Eookeeping Services Gotden Gate Bookkeeping $4,225 $3,125 $4,22s
P.G. Self Storage $2,400 $1,800 $2,400
Audit Seruices $3,500 $o $o
Overdue Materials Collection Transwortd $700 $o $700
Building Alarm Fees Sentry, Concept Security $1,000 $756 $1,650
COpy SefViCeS Copies by the Sea, Copy King, Wetcom€ packets $1,900 $954 $1,400
Adveftising Ads, Ye[ow pages, Constant Contacl, Engaged patrons $1,44s $1,351 $1,550courler services Kat west $2,000 $1,000 $1,900

Iotal $17,170 $8,986 $13,725

Professional Development:
Staff Training lnternet Libn., lnfopeopte $3,500 $2,145 $3,500
Mileage $1,200 $265 $1,000
Professional Memberships ALA, cLA, Amerioan Archivists $1.200 $1,118 $1,700
Pacific Library Partnership Membership Fees $8,645 $8,641 $8,641

Total $14,545 $12,169 $14,841

Supplies: Office / Custodiat / Bonower / Equipment / lnfo Systems

Total $11,000 $8,045 ${ 1,700

Postage: Stamps, PO Box Rental
Total $1,250 $1.083 $1,500

Facility Maintenance:
Fu rn ishinqs-Repai r/Mai ntenance Total $500 $o $500

Donor AcknowledgemenUSig ns:
Volunteer Recognition $500 $250 $300
Signs $500 $669 $700

Total $1,000 $e19 $1,000

Bank Charges/Retd Checks: Total $250 $51 $125

Docu ments-Refu nds/Lost: Total $1oo $0 $75

ADMINISTRATION TOTAL: $55,381 $37,859 $52,866
page



At 1Aclt*rrn,r e
FY 15/16 LIBRARy eUD(iET

EXPENDITURES . DOCUMENTS Fy 14t15
ACTUAL I
4t14t1s I rytslte

IUlatn uoilecuon:
Non Fiction
Non Fiction-Travel Cont.
Fiction*
Amazon Prime Membershi
Book Rental
McNauqhton Buvback
Large Print
Audiovisual
onTile $b. n - Overdrive
Additional Overdrive Titles

fe

Teen Nonfiction - Main
Teen DVD Gollection
Teen Audio Collection

$23,000
$5,000
$5,ooo

$gg
sgAJoo-

$o
$3,000

$22,000
$2,100
$4,ooo
$100

$1,200
$1,ooo
$800
$o

-so

$17,640
$3,722
$3,331
$108

$Asls
$o

$1,639
$13,767
$2,100
$4,274

$0
mor

$618
T682

$o--
$o

$5,ooo
$5,300
$120

s29^66r
$5oo

T4soro
$22,000
$2,100
$5,500
$too

TT;oo
$1,ooo
$800
$200

T2oo
Total $100,399 $73,795 $99,191

F(eference Gollection :

General Reference $4,500 3,361 $4,000Gontinuations $16,000 12,745 ${5,000Reterence Databases new: Hoopla, Zinnio $23,030 15,563 $23,030
Total $43,530 $31,669 $43,030

Youth Services Gollection:
YS Collection ${3,000 $12,358 $13,000
YS Audio Video $4,500 $3,624 $4,500YS Online Database Brainfuse, Scienceflix $1,500 $1,500 $2,250

Total $19,000 $17,492 $19,750
Local History Collection:

Documents & Digital Preservation $2,500 $1,705 $2,500Conservation & Supplies $2,500 $1,327 $2,500
Total $5,000 $3,032 $5,000

Professional Collection : Total $300 $36 $250

Serials (lncluding Bookpage): Total $12,{00 $6,402 $12,450

DOCUMENTS TOTAL: $180,329 $132,416 $179,661

p.2

a3



ATttt,cl-tll.nrJ r*€

fylstl6 Lranm

Maintenance / ContraEG
LH scanner,copy machines,elevators,AVETilmper,

Gates, Envisionware, Xerox, 3M

Docutec, Applied Microfilm, typewriters

New
ng for Technical Services

1 ipad with hardware - cataloguing station
High chair Local History back workstation
Blinds for reference room

nistration copy machine

card catalog local history

$65
$1,000
$375
$s00

$7,595
$1,400
$350

$2,300
$375

EQUIPMENT TOTALT

S.CAT ING

Cards

IFM for lnterlibrary Loan

TALOGING TOTAL:

p(



A:-IftqtMcer t
FY 1 5t16 [gp,qRY E UDGFT

':..
EXPENDITURES - INFORMAflON SYSTEMS FY 14n5

I !IJ
ACTUAL
'41,|4/15 FY 15/16

Equtpment: Computeffi Total s,l2 4)1 $15,2r9 $tg,ooo
Suooort&Mainfannr.^a. 

-

tenance
ILS Modifiealian / Q,.^^^J.-- $9,000 $8,300 $8,750-t. . _r]-rvr..
lcell upqrade 

-

Other T
$350 $o $o

$1,200 $1,200 $0_____-__. _-r|,_ rrrrlt9nC,: $1,000 $880 $r,000Total $11,550 $10;380 $9.750
Telecommrrnieafian Drar,!-r^
uomcast, Redshift Total $r,910 ${,331 $2,415

--

$850 $80 $5oo

Domain Na
Library Anyrhere, Author Alerts lTotal-l i2,195 $1.127 $2,200

$28,920 $28,137 $32,365

E/'\TE,NIJI I UF(EU . F']TUGRAMS
Pr.lfira7ha.

F( 14tt 5 YTD FY 15/16
Youth Reading programs

Taan Draar-h-

$5,000 $4,729 $6,000
$5,000 $1,793 $5,000rvv.s.rre
$600 $56 $400

$3,500 $191 $1,500TFI\,I,FTAMD IUIAL: $14,100 $6,769 $12,900

r\;rltllra lt,IAL $500 $o $o

,1 tz
,J_ >



Alr &.t,Lt errf a
FY 15/16 LIBRARY BUDGET SUMMARY

' ., ..' , '-- , . ,,=.. .

''-"':'t:' '" :

:::l,t
:::11::i

,BUDGET
2015r16

REVENUES:r:r.::r1:;

Library Operations $15;000r i;.::$* 'g $:14,450:
CA State Library ",:-,;r,:;$0r1:,:ilj =.:$3i37gJ:l,{ 1.:n'$[;
Friends of HML ,:$d,9;000:..: :'.$24i000 ',.:$21,000
lnterest lncome +,$t200:,. ;r.";r$$11,O ,-$1.000,
CPLF- Unrestricted Donations .$280i000:, $zlo;000 $280,000,
Donations ,:;;1$377:;7hBlj r$500

Total , ir$t{gi,fQg,.. '$62$002= -:$315i950r

Y.E E:IIFIIii!1 I E E.G.i..'r:rr.-:.: 
" 
:' :: : :' .' : :: ..,:- : -'::':'

Administration 5$38li1 i$37;,315- .,$52,966
Documents ;..'$:180;329i ir:;${53-r'53'- i,Si79.66{
Equipment ,l:$n$AA; :.i$!7 gi-r.: :$29;260
Gataloging ::::S9:700;i';; '$9;850'lnformation Systems i:i$28iO70= ;,,i$20::t64ii'i,; ,$32365
.Programs t4i.{00. :l+..5;:f,gt:,;'rr i$12,900

9I IV :::,i$f,([[i;;, ='i;:i ',-i $0
Totll.; :i$3{5;7O0i i$232;955t. r$3t16;902

JG



AtrncllurxlT F
HARRIS ON MEMORIAL LTBARY

STATEMENT OFASSETS, LIABILITIES, AND NET ASSETS
May 31,2015

CURRENTASSETS
Wells Fargo Checking
Petty Cash Main
Petty Cash Park Branch
LAIF

Total CurrentAssets

TOTALASSETS

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

NET ASSETS
LAlF-Operating Reserve
LAlF-Equipment Replacement
WF-Designated Gifts

Permanently Restricted
Unrestricted Net Assets
Net Income / Loss

Total Net Assets

TOTAL LIABILITIES AI\D NET ASSETS

t63,902.36
260.00
200.00

914,917.19

1,079,279.55

1,079,279.55

175,127.25
103,379.77

104.80
46,747.A5

340,401.09
4t3,5t9.59

1,079,279.55

1,a79,279.55

)t



a
q)

o
3o

o
nfio -H<0,

=o IJ 
-oJ|U,

FE 3

='o =oq, om= I
=r-r:*=8.o. lI q,

=I =e6!
go q)dEa

I

oq)
o
trq)
a
6',

{r>r-D
tr!.JD0e

(,

lu=

*l H l*o3l "= li=-l 5 loa =Pl, r r P , lt t
s!' I I g I I 

l- -
(,l \c)
OONJooo
v99bb bOOO

qJ

{
.O
O

tt -ixo-:
E$-o'a+'ira-r.o-r.o..o.9i ; EEB 3 'g s 5 e. 3==- 5a=8 =aaB =rrrF ?ahfiaasE

=r:tC)-=UtAbjriC)-rO\AhJ6 F=T A ttr ==t== 5===t3oo*ia :iiF r===; isannniisQ ; = 6'6 3 ? F r- - o O 3 F = 3 3; 
=cgs, e;;= =eeii =-Irf ri=gE= 33gg tiiif tlFrEQsr=aF =Rg; !=.;.;,+ e'66=.==;*=5'' a=o. =.E'E'i'e ; ="iqg+-o5 !, = i 

5'r - - x i 
= E A< 0 =- =EH g4q4 i 

=E "< ?*+f A eai+Si fa c=-eir 9aFxr .-r6

5;J.3=;.;'ir3.iI u;_ j.p& - Fp4.3.as-q- =sl)tD<v)A a;' Eas.E
-

!

a
r,,Pr o

N
co

ortt.t
U

cqt!

!)

(!

(.,l

PIOo

\,1
co

N)
't

tJto
O

(,){F
f.J

N

'PO

ooLt9o(> oobbaoo u)

{
oo:

N6o
OIoO

N)
N)

Itt

O

UJ{
-coo\
N)

t.t
O

b,,tJ
b

t,
-l
-00o\
N)tj

tt

oatJ \O
oHbLoo{

())
\c)

t.rt (,

-N)u5'\o "o \ou) c)u)ot! HC)N)
{Ot/!

{

Iotr)

o\\o
A
Or\o
f.)

AIY,rc+t/.{auT {

UJ*(/){o\
)o5
N)

,ltrt

(,r
\OONuJ <> ooPP 90
-u!{o(i v

!!,
GIo
o
(t

)r\



A tt 
^qff)trK;r 

F

t38333339333333393333 33339Ae8[.JhJbJ}.)bJB -HtsHHr.*(>€)OA-O-----5 (, b.J H O O \O \O A e { O\ U| 5 (' O 6 { O\ (n 5' +. 5' t, rf E ;{ L????? ???T????"?"???? ?f ???? ? g
i * F H E g t ? I t ?g E A [ 3 gE I Y i I E*a E ? s 

=i g- g 
E i i ? +g F 3E eg i-'E sE?B r rf,€ Eir nHgiEfr [-i-ri FegE$ $rBE3f *fiG A F Em iE$ ; a r

==-39-=3'toq=. s 6- 3.9I. IEd :' 3 aS=; E Yg? g.< Fg H

7
P$.)(<
trN

UI

cn
q)

o
3o

o
n]|o -H<q)

=o loJlo
FE 9;'o =cLg) om3 ==FtJ^d--.
3x'g-
.P=E 5
NJ -9a q,dEa

I

o
A)a
t!
o)o
6'.

o\(i
o\ tjl L.l
tJAOO\OO\ v

UJ i b..J t, \tCaOOOL,rN)\tjr t P?r r' 99r r P, r !^, PoP,-JOOOO\O-NlUTOOC>cloO{\O

l'.Joo-t.lr(r-\O{]- u -5 'or :- 'N -ur 't: ro \ "tJ -o (^ H t,-oo55oQ(^C)oo-i6ooootas'oa'G.-r oo (^ - o o - N) { ?, :- g. P g" g r r :j, go }"I>1 \9Q ab'N b'o b \oo\ro\o \o \lo\f.J O\ co O O O ti (> O O O\; N, O\ - 5' go

i .j- .P fo ]:) N :' i r J, .l j- j- .j- )oN)NL^OrQ+5-l\OO(,NN)6N-<)uu-oooseeA(>(>oot!ra6ta66oro, ???r,, ?P!"P9PPli, PPPFp 5Fooooeeooooooooooo6booooaoaooooooo--6oo

-f ,^^ J^' -t'J^a-o<i-o \gtgarltaatnG ^"\oeGG "tr:C
99 B !a^ Q Q \O O \O - <> (4 5' \O qt., \O t.71 ia q:, !YlIi.,, ??l?:.ryFp, 9"i9.-p,, !5F,,(^i..J{oE)Q--to-oooobNLrobboosNo.oouoo-6-E\oooAoo,-vvvvvvvvirvvv\ivvVv9g

r<

1,, olc =
loq clt} D9t--
lwlElo.
looIa
lcrlslallI
ls

!o
GIo
N
o
Ut

J7



A-Taxc+tnrrN' r' F

8H 3 iASAQSSSSSSSSS$ss t ieelse I s
UJhJl'JFJHFHBS-ir--1-qt:p--O.O\?iE?Y??$?i?Yr?8F E =F?f ?+E 

=ii==========i==v I jSgEEs = :t==vzzzzzzzz+zil: 
= E=; EE;. = =

rirgiEirifuEEfii aEE+$1$ = FiE's3ODdE=:E#5f=: i'ies; E *eI i5'='= -,{ = 
q li =- =tr E ; = u, -=?F €tg i g H e ga3 2i1 ;= X - &nfi

tl - - w=

?ut€'3

CN
g)

o
Jo
o
vIO IY<s,

=o IoJ|fDrE 3
s3 rm5Ieo6
Pm^=.Ix a
-7e6!-'
NJ -9a q,6Eq

I

oq,
o
tD!,a
6'

,/. ql
l.)(<
tr !.J

UI

r<
N\J

N

o\
\o

lJt
UuJ f')
NJlir.

N)O\O

5

oo

\o

JJ'
(n
u)
LJ
cl\

.tr'tJs
O{{A-NiOO,l, P, I, , ,l.rp9S, , F- t+-Jo\N);O\c)NJ(^!-ttaO6(i

i.J tJ Ur h..).P I S N) ur Ur t,r u) t-r i..l
9 oo O l'.J - O :. o 6 -O -O -- -O
9reo\ooooee-6ooo???p?"ppeppF FF,999oooo99obb bbooooooooo-66-o

N-oo 
^'J ^ ^'-i 5-1 "uJ G a G(}\ - \O \O h.J O --t S \6 r,i &O\]O\O-O(})\.tA:tr'UJ\bLqrb-r'\bbob'Or-OoOAOO\baU:vvvvvvvv;\rv

I
I(^ lcr >(, lE 5"u lo =6loerj-lO a,. 16olOI

lnIrlo.
loa-; ls{ ltt

-J lEI lrli,O lov 1(!

-l u ;
uJl { -NUJI r! (, L,Pl, L - PNl \o 5 \o\)l t, N N

tJ N N.)N)"9 j- }Ni-.!lN FF
=.JQpN-OrONrJ,-ootaq'9aa-)-lQ!jO-l;--
!r!'J:c 9'o urONGuio\ p6
Sb'61^ibieio;-b'ioboA \O NJ O\ O\ A Ln ut co 6 ; \c)

Iol N-,Nl ;-r .}oal (, -J o\!l { o oPl, L P eol o o ool o o a

tJ5a -oC(}J(^s
'lj,i-So50-J tJ oovv

o\\o
i.){

0o!.t.J -A
*\o{o I
OH\O-

!
o,
GIo
(r,
o
(t

a'1 -
00



fi-rzndtttrM F-

q-io\JE333
ssE=; EEES3EHSE gF*SBEEEEBEEE
6 6 6 6 o : I I o i < < > x F r-t rr rD r- F <,. .. E,,'

fggg! Fgf,5ggfgS x r=F*uirsrE?I
s ?=tEs-*ugtgi 

=eEigi$$rgiLg
e i. =;E EE'=i =oEaFa A =+ * !I= 

=#=.; F3'.;E.:' =g = i. ''s.i';- r( = gE ii " d3. 6*5 a 'uF qE "F g 2 $' *
U,
0)
o
3o

o
nrro -Y<q)

=o I
oJlu,;E 3sf Fm= Ieo6t!nf.

= ii' 
i,

=E r-€o-.
QA E)aEa

I

oq,
a
J

tr
o)o
o

?
,F D)

g b..)DO
UI

r<

q\
(a Lr{rrfrrr,For oot!

=l { u,,, ul"sl u' -o, r...1 'o -r,, ta i-,l ", X I X ":; i:il =*;sgx sl egasg== ;s
-. -,l =l I

\o N) Ul \o r-^ rJr ur -gl N N N.f .- F * alg fH,EI il pEpEEE gl 1iE"HsHsE uEEao oo or eoobbb bl. bbEE5=5,toro o o ol - - - 5 - - El E E a 5 E 5 E d Bl

^eo eg sl -Q.^^ G i lF

EsEs$6 $l 3EEsE $ g5lr
A

NJ{AtJ OSoo!U,P9Po.ot {5O-6vvv

- N uJ t'J N) "';{N)(n(rul..JN);| , fP:-tPYc, t^, !;p.Q!4--ls P bi.JOO\oo\ub6a

(,'(- uETJ\)OAA
O\So\O\ (}\ t,)

oo uJ
Li u) \c)\o o --l{O-

ON)O\C)-

!!,
Glo
5
o
o

3t



AITxcfil'TENIT i=

a
q,
o
3o

o
7rro -Y<0,

=(D IJ 
-oJ|.i,rE 3a'o =o!) om5I3ra'-

Faf.o.U'or
=* =.P 6 t-.
NJ -9a A)dEe

I

oq)
o

TBq)
a
6'

z>fa(<
tr\J

Ul

sl-, i- l, -FIB s =lr s
o\lN o ol-l- o ol

Il* ol'.J ltr 5'o t, -- mlt 5O (21 oo 1;1IUq trP9!^9lgllo o o ola o o ol

N{{N

lulclo.
loaIGI*

^lO ur o -IltE-I q u -]lDl\o o 6 0l=
N O O Ol=O\ O O QIov v vlaD

(,
o\
LA
UJ
!v

E,froAao\-lt e: g 3s65io,a,?=o,o\o\o\E aEF; sdiddA 3F?= ===F=iEEH ? 6da6fiEi= ZeE#g
E+iE El3rfIlrFcr,g=o-Er-loja€=E i9=filrE€ at ;g+ZEE= zs=E
=e E 3gB1id v, diEHH =3i06 a

N
@

\c)5p
oot,

lElc

lllls

Irtt

(rl
o\
LAtl
NJ

F

o

T
0)(o
o
Ol
o
6

--) ^5*-



frtrfrcilt^rvTG

HARRISON MEMORIAL LIBRARY
BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR TIIE YEAR ENDED.N]NE 30.2013

/71h1



q Harrison Memorial Library
Basic Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30r 2013

Table of Contents

Paee(s)

FINANCIAL SECTION

Independent Auditor's Report ....1-z

Management's Discussion and Analysis .....3-9

Basic Financial Statements:

Governmental Funds Balance Sheet/Statement of Net Position............... ....................I.2

Statement of Govemmental Fund Revenues, Expenditures and
Changes in Fund Balances/Statement of Activities.............. ................13

Notes to Basic Financial Statements ..15-22

Required Supplementary Information ........ ....................25

Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on
Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements
Performed in Accordance With Government Auditing Standards............... ................27

#

<4



II AC PA, I rr c.
r\ta

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Board of Trustees of the
Harrison Memorial Library
Carmel -by-the-Sea, California

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying basic financial statements of the Harrison Memorial Library ("Library"), as
of and for the year ended June 30,2013, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively
comprise the City's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. The prior year comparative total
information presented has been derived from the Library's 2012 basic financial statements and, in our report
dated February 25,2013 we expressed an unqualified opinion on the those financial statements.

Manag eme nt' s Re spo nsibility for the F inancial Stateme nts

M lement is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance
witu accounting principles generally accepted in the United States o[ America; this includes the design,
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor' s Re sp o nsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our
audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General
of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgrnent, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express
no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and ths
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presen[ation of the financial statements.

!\' 'lieve that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opr,.rollS.

7080 Donlon Way. Suite 204, Dublin, CA 94.568 o phone (925) 556-6200 o fax: (510) 217-5930
www.JJacpa.com .ft -1 /^'52



To the Board of Trustees of the
Harrison Memorial Library
Carmel-by+he-Sea, California
PageZ

Opinions

In our opinion, the basic financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, therespective financial position of the Library, as of June 30, 2013, and the r"rp.rtiil changes in financial positionand' where applicable, cash flows thereof for the y.", ih"n ended in accordance with accounting principlesgenerally accepted in the United States of America.

Other Matters

Re quired Supple mentary Info rmation

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the managemenr,sdiscussion and analysis and budgetary co*parison information on pages 3-9 and 25 be presented to supplementthe basic financial statements. such informition, althorgh ooi u part of the basic financial statements, is requiredby the Governmental Accounting standards Board whJconsideis it to be an essential part of financial reportingfor placing the basic financial stitements in an appropriat" ofrutional, economic, or historical context. we haveapplied certain limited procedures to the^requiredsupplementary information in accordance with auditingstandards generally accepted in the united statis or emerica. which consisted of inquiries of management aboutthe methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management,sresponses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our"audit ofthe basic financial statements. we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the inforr ,on
because the limited procedures do not provide us with ,rffi"i"nt evidence to eipress an opinion or provic- unyassurance.

other Reporting Required by Government Auditing standards
ln accordance with Government Auditing standards, we have also issued our report dated January 31,2014, on our consideration of the Library's internal control over financiat reporting and on our tests ofits compliance with certain provisions of lu*., regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and othermatters'- The purpose of that report is to describi trre scope of our testirig of internal control overfinancial reporting and compliance and the results of that iesting, and not to provide an opinion oninternal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an auditperformed in accordance with Government Auditiig Standards in considering the Library,s internalcontrol over financial reporting and compliance.

January 3l,2Ol4 J{gffiw_r,*.
JJACPA,Inc.

Dublin, CA

jtt7



q
Harrison Memorial Library
Management's Discussion and Analysis
For the year ended June 30, 2013

Management's Discussion and Analysis

This section of the Harrison Memorial Library's (the Library) basic financial statements presents
management's discussion and analysis of the Library's financial performance during the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2013. Since this management's discussion and analysis is designed to focus on current
activities, resulting change, and current known facts, please read it in conjunction with the Library's
basic financial statements (pages 12 and 13) as well as the footnotes to the financial statements
(pages 15 -22).

Financial Highlights

At June 30,2013, net position ended the year at$614,752.

Using This Report

In June 1999, the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) released Statement No. 34,
Basic Financial Statements -- and Management's Discussion and Analysis -- fo, State and Local
Governments. Changes in Statement No. 34 require a comprehensive one-line look at the entity as a
whole and capitalization of assets and depreciation. The major reconciling items necessary were
capitalization and depreciation of capital assets and inclusion of long-term liabilities. The Library has
sel^-t"6 the single governmental fund (General Fund) presentation since this reflects the most concise
an. asily readable presentation for the Library's operations.

The annual financial statements include the lndependent Auditor's Report, this management's discussion
and analysis, the basic financial statements, and notes to basic financial statements and required
supplementary information.

4 3"{



9 Hamison Memorial Library
Management's Discussion and Analysis, Continued
For the year ended June 30,2013

Financial Analysis of the Library as a Whole

Net Position
As ofJune 30,2013 and.2Ol2

20t3 2012
Increase

(Decrease)

$ 91,812

614,752
@

46,852
567,900
6t4,752

$ 6t4,752

-

522.94

2,3V1
2,324

______21,8r2_

(2,324)
(2,324)

Percent
Change

187o

l%o
l87o

-lffiVa
-lffiVo

07o
207a

l87a
, aVo

Assets:
Current Assets
Non-Current assets

Total Assets

Liabilities
Current Liabilities

Total Liabilities

Net Position
Restricted
Unrestricted

Total Net Position
Total Liabilities and net position

$ 614,752 $

46,852
473,7& 94,136
520,616 94,136

$ 522,9q $ 91,912

--

This schedule is prepared from the Library's Statement of Net Position, which is presented on an accrual bar
of accounting whereby assets are capitalized and depreciated.

Net position at June 30, 2013, of $614,752, consisted primarily of amounts available for operations.

J,6 {(



U fiarrison lVlemorial Library
Management's Discussion and Analysis, Continued
For the year ended June 30,20L3

Financial Analysis of the Library as a Whole, Continued

Operating Results
For the year ended June 30,2013 and 2012

2013 2012
1,225,&l

1,296,356
4,050

lg,0gg

1,170,363

Increase
(Decrease)

$ 55,27E

Percent
Chanse

-..Y--

57oOperating expenses:

Program revenue:
Contributions
Grants
Charges for services

Total Program Revenue
Net operating expenses

General revenue:
Interest

Total general revenue

Increase in net position
Net position:

.rginning of year
End of year

1,273

94,136

520,616
$ 614,752

107,513
(6,714)
(1,056)

99,743

(44,465)

(306)

(306)

44,159

49,977

1,188,943
10,764

520,6t6 94,136

9Vo

-62Vo
-6Vo

8Vo

92Vo

-l9Vo

-l9vo

887o

0Vo

lSVo

19.154

1.318.504 t,218,761
(92,863) (48,398)

1,273 t.579

1,579

49,977

470,639

In fiscal 2013, program revenues were primarily from contributions, which consisted of $1,318,504. General
revenues were primarily of contributions from the City and the Foundation as well as CLSA grants.

The following is a graphic illustration of revenues by source for the year ended June 30, 2013:

Revenues by Source

Contributions --
$ l,296,356

98.23Vo
Grants
$4,050
0,3170

Charges for
services
$ r 8,098
l.37Vo

lnterest
$1,273
0.10?o

W
1rJ
5b



et Harrison Memorial Library
Managementrs Discussion ana Analysis, Continued
For the year ended June 30,2013

Financial Analysis of the Library as a whore, continued

Operating Expenses
For the year ended June 30, 2013 and,2012

2013 2012Operating expense:
Library Administration
Documents and books
Equipment
Cataloging and programs
Information technology systems
City staffing agreement
Capital outlay- projects

Total operating expenses $ 1,225,641 $ 1,170,363 $ s5.278

41,006
173,216
17,694
19,2ll
29,069

945,455_

46,261
161,836
22,993
20,027
32,733

886,513

(5,255)
I 1,390
(5,309)

(816)
(3,664)
58,942

Increase
Decrease

Percent
Change

-117o
79o

-23Vo
-4Vo

-ll7o
7Vo

#DM0!
5Vo

operating expenses in the nmount of $1,225,641 were split amongst three major categories; city staffingagreement, documents and books, and administration and operations. J

The following is a graphic illustration of operating expenses for the year ended June 30, zOl3:

OPERATING E}GENSES
Administration and

operations
$41,006

Ciry staffing_
agreement \$945,4ss \

3.3Vo _Documents and books
$173,2t5

l4.lVo

Equipment
$ r 7,684

1.47o

Cataloging and
programs
$r9,2r r

l.6Vo

Information
technology systems

$2e,069
2.47o

77.t%o

31



.--,
/ Harrison Memorial Library

Management,s Discussion and Analysis, Continued
For the year ended June 30,2013

Financial Analysis of the Library as a whole, continued

Net Position
Restricted
Unrestricted

Total

Analysis of Net Position
As ofJuner201.3 and2Ol2

2013 2012

$ 46,852 $ 46,852567,9N 473,7@

s 6l4Js2 $ s2o,6t6

Increase
(Decreese)

$
94.136

$ 94.136_:

Percent
Chanse

OVo

20Va

l.8Vo

The change in net position of $94,136 is primarily due to program revenues exceeding program expenses forthe year.

The following is a graphic illustration of net position for June 30,2013:

Restricted
$46,852

8Vo

Unrestricted
$567,900

9ZVo

ECONOMIC F'ACTORS AND NEXT YEAR'S BUDGETS AND RATES
In considering the Library's Budget for fiscal year 2013-2014, the Board of Trustees and
the following criteria:

The key assumptions in our revenue forecast were:

1. Interest earnings should be approximately the same.
2. Program revenues are expected to be approximately the same.

Continuing items specifically addressed in the budget were:

management used

Concern over economic budget reductions from contributors, especially in the Foundation
category, and avoiding further excesses of service costs over revenues.

B



Harrison Memorial Library
Management's Discussion and Analysis, Continued
For the year ended June 30r 2013

ECoNOndIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR'S BUDGETS AI\D RATES, Continued
The adopted budget for the new fiscal year of 20L3-2014 was $319,299 and is summarized as follows:

F"r20l3-14 Fv20t2-13
Percentage

Change
A&ninistration

Telephone
Contracted services
Profes s io nal Develo prrent
Supplies
Postage
Facilities Maintenance
Donor AcknowtedgenEnt
Bank charges
Docurrents
Contingency

Total A&ninistration
Documents andbooks

Main collection
Reference collection
Youth Services collection
Local History collection
Profes s ional collection
Serials

Total Docurnents and books
I'q.ripnent

Maintenance
Other profes s ional services
Small tools and equiprrrcnt
Capital outlay >$5,0m

1s1s| F,Tripnent
Information technol ogy s ys t€rns

Small tools and equiprrent
Support and nnintenance
Telecornrnun ications
Software
Webs ite maintenance/enhancencnt
Capital outlay >$5,000

fstal r''quiFnent
Catalogi ng and pograrns

Material processing
Library cards
l-ocal History prograrrs
Youth Reading programs
YS Sumrrer Reading program
Teen programs
Adult prograns
Contingency

Total Cataloging and pograrrs
Total Budget

54,513 58,677

12,000 12,mo

24,2N

9,050
t7,36s
14,398
11,000

750
s00

1,00o
300
150

g,gg0
20,700
15,187
10,200
t,5m

500
9s0
300
2N
250

1.84o
-l6.tvo

-5.2Vo
7.84o

-54.07o
O.OVo

5.3Vo
O.OVo

-25.O7o
100.070

-7.l%o

103,384
38,s00
19,000
5,00o

300

99,834
41,000
18,845
4,mo

300

3.6Vo
-6.lVo
O.8Vo

?5.070
o.oo/^
0.t

Vqo
14,000

qo
r4,192

28,592

17,800
12,000

1,700
725

1,595

--

33,810

15,200
400

3,787

r9.387

15,500
21,3t2

2,7W
500

1,400

4t,412

-7.970
O.jVo

274.8Vo
O.OVo

47.5?o

14.9Vo
-43;7Vo
-37.0Vo

45.OVo
13.2Vo
o.070

-T@

9.000
600
250

5,000
5,000

600
3,750

9,945
1,500

250
5,000
s,000
1,200
3,000

250

-9.SVo
lCf.AVo

O.OVo

0.07o
O.OVa

lffi.OVo
25.OVa

LAO.OAo

26,145

$ 321,600

-

1

319,299

tfr -f-(

-O;74o



L1 Harrison Memorial Library
Managementts Discussion and .inalysis, ContinuedFor the year ended June 30, ZLli

ECoNoNIrc FACTORS AND I\Exr yEAR,s BUDGETS AND RATES, continued
1.ffi;.:*Hacombineddecreaseofapproximately7.1Ovo,whichisduetoanticipated

2' Documents and books - Show a combined increase of approximately 1.3vo dueto an increase inservice costs.

3' Equipment - shows a combined increase of approximately 47.Svodue to equipment to be purchased insupport of Library Strategic plan first_year goals.

4.-Showacombineddecrease.ofapproximately18.4voduetoa
reduction in the need for n"*.quipment or enhancements to website.

5.ffi-Showacombineddecreaseofapproximately7.47oduetoadecreasein

The following is a graphic illustration of appropriations for 2or3-r4:

Budgeted Expenditures
Information
technology

systems 33,810
lO.6Vo

Cataloging and
programs 24,200

7.6Vo

Administration
54,513 17.tvo

This financial report is designed to provide our customers and creditors a general oyerview of the Library,sfinances and to demonstrate ih" LibrLy's accountability for the money ii r""'"ir", and is atto"ui"a to it. If youhave questions s:ut. this report' contact the Harrison vtemoriat Library, p.o. Box g00Carmel, CA939Zt, telephone number (g3l) 624-t366.

Equipment
28,592 9.0Vo 

-

16 4>



q

This page intentionally Iefi blank,

y43



BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

11tr1+



a Harrison Memorial Library
1 Governmental Funds Balance sheeustatement of Net position' June 30,2013

Governmental
Funds

A(iustments
(Note 9)

Statement of
Net Position 2012

ASSETS
Current

Cash and investments:
Available for operations
Restricted for endowment
Total current assets

Noncurrent
Capital assets, net of

accumulated depreciation
Total assets

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:

Current
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities

Total current liabilities
Total liabitities

Fund balances/l{et position:
Nonspendable:

Reuel Bradney Book Fund Endowment
Restricted:

Reuel Bradney Book Fund Endowment -
investment earnings

Unassigned, reported in:
General fund

Total fund balances
Total liabilities and fund balances

NET POSITION
Invested in capital assets, net

of related debt
Restricted
Unrestricted

Total net position
Total liabilities and net position

614,752 $
:-:::!-- 614.752

$ 568,005
46,747

$ 568,005
46,747

614,752

s 476,193
46,747

522,9406t4,752

$ 522,940

$ $ - $ 2,324
- 2,324

2.324

46,747

105

567,900

(46,747)

(10s)

(567,900)

(614,752)6t4,752
614.752

46,952
567,900

$ 614.752

The accomparying notes are an integral part ofthese basic financial statemenrs

46,852
s67,900

46,8s?_
473,'/6,1

szo,6tL
$ 522,94t0

614,752

6t4,7s2

W 45



( ---\- / Harrison Memorial Library
Statement of Governmental Fund Revenues, Expendi

changes in Fund Barances/statement of Activities
the year ended June 30, 2013

Expenditures, and

EXPENDITT]R Es/ExP ENS ES :
Administration and operations
Documen$ and books
Equipment
Cataloging and programs
Information technology systems
City staffing agreement

Total expenditures/expenses

REVENUES:
Program revenues;
Contributions:

Carmel public Library Foundation
Friends of Harrison Memorial Library
Individ uals/businesses
City of Carmel

California State Library
C ,es for services

Total program revenues
Net program expense

General revenues:
Interest
Reimbursements

Total general revenues

REVENUES OVER (UNDER)
EXPENDTTURES

CHANGE IN NET POSITION
FUND BALANCES/NET POSITION:
Beginning of the year

End of the year

Governmental
Funds

$ 41,006
173,216
17,694
19,21t
29,069

945.4ss

1,225.641

281,000
19,000
50,901

945,455
4,050

18.098
I,318.504

02.863\

1,273

t.273

94.r36

520.6t6
s 6t4Js2

Adjustments Statement

281,000
19,000
50,901

945,45s
4,050

18.098
I,318.504

(92.863)

1,273

280,000
20,200
2,130

886,s 13

10,764
19. I 54

1.218.76t
(48,398)

1,579

1.s79

49.977

$ q 6t4.t52 $ 520,616

---

The accompanying notes are an integrar part of these basic financiar statements

(Note 10) of Activities 2012

$ 4l.005
173,216
t7,684
19,21t
29,069

945.4ss

-

1,225.641

$ 46,26t
161,836
22,993
20,a27
32,733

886.513

1,170.363

4a



(r

This page intentionalg lefi blank.

w41



q Harrison Memorial Library
Notes to Basic Financial Statemlnh
For the year ended June 30,201i-'

1. ORGANIZATION AND STIMMARY OF SIGNIF"ICANIT ACCOTNTING POLICIESThe Harrison Memorial Library ('the Library.l s.l component unit of the city of carmer-by-the- sea(citv) established and openea il'rgiS its M-ain Lil;;;rilding ;il;*;ed services uy uaoing ir,Park Branch facility in.1989 uv c-ity,ordinance *'..r*, to rtututory authority pro.*rided by the,""lf:ffiff"":mi"?3i f*1"*1,:l*i_ly:I,,T::'l*r.,o. estabrish, improve and extend ribrarvseryices ro the carmer area. rhe Main Library$iiai;i,i,$iiGffi dLiHflf#i.ffili.:f,lHHffi:*,5l|:""*."t1ff il:;:ll j;z{#.x:r,xt"*ffi #;"J":T"*emoria,toherhusband,
The Library is govemed by a Board of Trustees appointed by the carmer-city Counc,. oversightresponsibility' the ability to conduct independent iilranciut jfrirr, ;il". debt instruments, approvebudgets' and otherwise influence op"rutioo, *a u""oLt for fiscal *urr".r,i, exercised by the Library,sBoard of Trustees'.Th-e Library isl separate reporting entity ror ri'anciar reporting purposes and theaccompanying basic financial statements reflett the" asseti, riabilities, fund baranc"rr.,"t position,revenues' and expenditures/expenses of th9 r-iurarv only and ,r.-..por,"d in the city,s financialstatements as a "blended" component unit. Blend"a compor"ni ;;il, although legalry separateentities' are' in substance, putt fr the govern*.nit operaiions and so data from these units arecombined with data of the p.i**y govemment, which r", tt. iiu*"'*"*rd be the City.

The financial statements of the Library have been prepa*d in conformity with accounting principles*enerally accepted in the united States of Americalb-ear;. rhe covemirentar Accounting standards-roard (GASB) is the accepred standard_se;iil ilJ;'g^g.st"uriJ*s;"ernmentat accounring andfinancial reporting principles. The foilowing is ";";;;ry of the more significanr policies:
In June 1999' the GASB released statement No. 34. Basic Financiar statements - and Management,sDiscussion and Analysis - for state and l-ocal G)overnmenrs. the Library has selected the single
;.X'rHff#1J:,11ffiL"#rffiXlpresentation 'in." thi. ."fle"t. ,ri, ,""riconcise and easlyieadabre

A. Reporting Entity
As defined by GASB statement No.39, The Financial Reporting Entity,the Library is not financia,yaccountable for any other entity other than itself, no. *. tfr"r. ir1, orfr"i 

"rrlries for which the natureand significance of their relaiionship with trr. r-iur*y are such that exclusion would cause theLibrary's financiar sratements ro be misrerd;g;; i*ori'pr.t..
B. Basis of Accounting
The fund-based financial statement columns (Govemmental Funds column) on pages rz and13 areaccounted for using the modifisd accrual basis of ;.ilri,8lij;;fffi'balances-fo, ttJl*r*y,,General Fund and Endowment Permanent Fund. These funds ,"-r"nurs *".".ognized when they becomemeasurable and available as net current assets. Measurable means trr" u*o*t of the transaction can bedetermined and available means the amount is collectible within ,r*-.rr.rt period or soon enoughthereafter (generally sixty days) to be used to pay liabilities.of the current period. Amounts, which couldrt be measured or were not available, *"r" .rot u""*La u, ."r.nu" ;-th" current fiscal year. Theotatements of Net Position and Activities column, o., p"g"s 12 and il iu.r" been prepared on theaccrual basis of accounting whereby all revenues are reCorded when earneo and all expenses arerecorded when they have been reducta to u tegat or co.rtractual obligation to pay.

24 43



Harrison Memorial Library
Notes to Basic Financial Statements, Continued
For the year ended June 30,2lls

1. ORGANIZATION ATID SUMMARY OF SIGNTf,'ICANT ACCOII\TING POLICIES,Continued

C. Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted inthe united States requires management to make eslimates and assumptions that affect the reportedamounts of assets and liabilities at the date of the financial staternenti and the reported amounts ofrevenue and expenditures/expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from thoseestimates.

D. Budgets

Budgets are prepared on the modified accrual basis of accounting, in which capital assets acquired arerecorded as expenditures and depreciation is not recorded.

The Library follows these procedures in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the financialstatements:

By June 30, the Board of Trustees reviews a proposed operating budget for the yearcommencing July 1. The operating budget includes proposed 
"*p"ridit*.-r and the meansof financing them.

The budget is legally enacted through passage of a motion during a Board of Trusteesmeeting prior to year-end.

The Library Director reviews all budget transfers and revisions, which are then approvedby the Board of Trustees.

o Formal budgeting is employed as a management control device during the year for theboth funds.

o Budgets for the General and Endowment Permanent Funds are adopted on a basisconsistent with accounting principles generally accepted in the United Staies of America.

The legal level of a budgetary control, the amount to which budget should not be exceeded, is the programlevel.

Budgeted amounts are as originally adopted or as amended by the Board of Trustees. Individualamendments were not material in relation to the original appropriations.



Ilarrison Memorial Library
Notes to Basic Financial Statemlnts, Continued
For the year ended June 30, 2Al3

1' 
3*?,flfArroN AND SUMMARY oF srGNrFrcANr ACCor.rNrrNG pol,rcrEs,

E. Cash and Investments

The Library pools cash and investments from all funds for the purpose of increasing income throughinvestment activities' Highly liquid money market investments wiih rnaturities of one year or less at timeof purchase are stated at amortized cost. All other investments are stated at fair value in accordance withGASB statement No' 3 L, Accounting a!1d Financial Reporting for certain Investrnents and for ExtemctlInvestment Pools- Market value is uied as fair value roi tto.","curities for wrrict market quotations arereadily available.

The Library participates in an investment pool managed by the state of california titled Local AgencyInvestment Fund (LAIF) which has investid a portioi of the pool funds i1 irru.rur"d Notes and Asset-Backed securities' LAIF's investments are subject to credii risk with the full faith and credit of theState of California collateralizing these investnients. tn addition, these Structured Notes and Asset_Backed Securities are subject to market risk as to changes in interest rates.

F. Capital Assets

capital assets are carried at cost or estimated cost if actual cost was not available. Donated assets arerlued at their estimated fair value on the date donated.

Depreciation is calculated on a straight line basis using the following useful life schedule:

Fumiture and fixtures
Automobiles
Office equipment
Computer equipment

5 to l0 years
5 years

5 to l0 years
5 to 10 years

2. CASH ANID INVESTMENTS

The Library had the following cash and invesrmenrs at June 30. z0L3:
FDIC]/

SIPC insured
[,ocal Agency Investrrent Fund (I-Af)
Cash deposits
Petty cash

Total

179.869

$ 179,869

-

Not rated

s 437,926
t7636

4fi
$ 614.1s2

Fair Value

$ 437,926
179,869

4ffi
$ 618,255

?,2 5A



Harrison Memorial Library
Notes to Basic Financial Statements, Continued
For the year ended June 30, 2013

2. CASH AND INVESTMENTS, Continued

A. Cash Deposits

The Library pools cash from all sources. The Library invests excess cash in LAIF. The Library
maintains a petty cash fund of $460.

The Califomia Government Code requires California banks and savings and loan associations to securegovemment cash deposits by pledging securities as collateral. This Coae sates that collateral pledgedin this manner shall have the effect of perfecting a security interest in such collateral superior io thoseof a general creditor. Thus, collateral is considered to be tretA in the government,s name.

According to California law, the market value of pledged securities with banking institutions mustequal at least I l}Vo of the government's cash deposiis. California law also allows in-stitutions to securegovemment deposits by pledging first trust deed mortgage notes having a valu e of l50Vo of thegovernment's total cash deposits. The govemment can waivi collateral ."q,fi."-"r,ts for cash deposits,which are fully insured up to $250,000 by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation.

B. Investments

The Library is authorized by State statutes and Governing Board action to invest in the following:

r United States Treasury notes, bonds, bills or certificates of indebtedness.
o Registered state warrants or treasury notes or bonds of the State of California.
t Bonds, notes, warrants or other evidences of indebtedness of any local agency within the

State of Califomia.

' Obligations issued by banks and guaranteed by federal agency or United States
govemment-sponsored enterprise.

o Negotiable certificates of deposit or time deposits placed with commercial banks and/or
savings and loan companies.

o Banker'sacceptances.
o Commercial paper.

o California Local Agency Invesrment Fund (LAIF)

The Library invests in LAIF, an unrated pool, which limits the exposure of Library funds to interest
rate and credit risk by treating all balances as current.

In accordance with GASB Statement No. 3 l, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Certain
Investments andfor External Investment Pools, investments were stated at fair uutu" using the
aggregate method, which includes any adjustments recorded in interest/investment income.

Jt



Harrison Memorial Library
Notes to Basic Financial Statements, ContinuedFor the year ended June 30,2013

2. CASH AND INVESTMENTS, Continued

Investment in LArF: LAIF is stated at amortized cost,-which approximates fair value. The LAIF is aspecial fund of the california State Treasury thr-;th;hich tocallou".rr.rr.rrs may poor invesrmenrs.The total fair value amount invested Uy att puUli"?g"""i"s in LA"IF h $jg,SZg ,474,533of which theLibrary had a balance of $437,9?6 which uppro^i*ii"a **t.t value *d *r, managed by the StateTreasurer' of the total invested, 98. l2vo waiirr;;il; non-derivative financial products and l.gg voin structured notes and asset-backed securities. The iocal Investment Advisory Board (Board) hasoversight responsibility for LAIF. The Board consists of five members a. aerignated by State statute.The fair value of the Library's investment in this pool _is ,.port.J-in-the accompanying financialstatements at amounts based upon the Library's pro-rutu share or tn. fair value provided by LAIF forthe entire LAIF portfolio (in relation to the amoriized cost of that portfolio). The balance available forwithdrawal is based on the accounting records maintain"d by LAIF, which are recorded on anamortized cost basis.

3. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Library operates under the terms of a 2008 Memorandum of understanding under which the citypays for all library personnel costs and the operating and capitar improuem"nt costs of the two librarybuildings' These amounts were reported as City"staffirrg ugr""ri"nt 
"*p"rses and city building'\penses in the statement of Activities along wittr, the offsJttirlg Cily;;",;jbution amount in program-venues.

4. FUND BALANCESNET POSITION

Fund Balances consist of the following: Nonspendable, restricted, committed, assigned and unassigned.Nonspendable frrnd balance consists of investments that will not convert to cash soon enough to affect thecurrent period' Restricted fund balance consists of resources that are subject to externally enforceablelegal restrictions imposed by parties altogether outside the govemment. committed fund balance consistsof amounts that canonly.be used for specific purposes pursuant to constraints imposed by a formal actionof the Library's highest level of decision-muk-! authority. Assigned fund balance consists of amountswhere intent is expressed by the governing bodyltself o, u body Jr official to which the goveming bodyhas delegated the authority to assign amounts to be used foi specific lurposes. unassigned amountsrepresent deficits in fi-[rd balance as reflected by the necessity to show nonspendable and restrictedbalances in an amount greater than total fund balance. Currently, the Library uses only the nonspendable,restricted and unassigned categories.

q

Nonspendable
Restricted
Unassigned

46,747
105

567,9W
$ 614.752

ET



Harrison Memorial Library
Notes to Basic Financial Stahm;nts, Continued
For the year ended June 30,2013

4. FUND BALANCES/NET POSITION, Conrinued

Net position consists of restricted and unrestricted amounts. Restricted amounts reflect balances whichcannot be influenced by the Library Board of Trustee's action, such as the investment in capital assetsnet of any related debt or an endowment. unrestricted amounts reflect balances available for cunentoperations.

Restricted
Unrestricted

TotaI

Net Position
$ 46,952

56'7,gOO

$ 614,752

-

5. INSURANCE

The Library is covered for risk of loss through the city insurance programs, which are premium basedinsurance policies for general liability, property and worker,s compensation.

5vt



,/){-7 Harrison Memorial Library
Notes to Basic Financial Statem'ents, ContinuedFor the year ended June 30r Z}li

6. EXPLANATION OF DIF'F'ERENCES BETWEEN GOVERNMENTAL IIUND BALANCESIIEETS AND TIIE STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION
"Total fund balances" of the Library,s Governmental funds of 9614,752 remained the same as,.netposition" of governmental activities reported in the Statement of Net position because a differencewould result primarily from the long-term economic focus of the statemeni of net position versus the;ffi",}ljiffi,T*",::T:;:J"*, Jr tr,, Gouemm",iui rrna, uurun."-,il""t, rhe efrect of the

Balance SheeUstatement of Net position

Assets:
Cash and investments

Total assets
Liabilities
Accounts payable

Total Liabilities
Fund B alance s/l.,le t position
Total Fund balances/net position
Total liabilities and frrnd

balances/net position

General
Fund

$ 6t4.752
$ atq.tsz

--

Reclassifications
and

Eliminations r
Statement of
Net Position

614,752

$ 614,752

s

614,752 6t4.752

614,752 614,752

I when capital assets (lTg, buildings, equipment) that are to be used in govemmenral activities arepurchased or constructed, the costs o1thoie assetr .." i.pon"d in expenditures in governmental funds.However' the statem:lt of net position includes ttrese "uiior assets ;*;il;. assets of the Library asa whole' Long-term liabilities iuch as compensated absences are not due and payable in the currenrperiod and therefore they are not reported initre gor"*.rt's fund balance sheet.

5q



Harrison Memoriat Library
Notes to Basic f inancial Statemlnb, Continued
For the year ended June 30,2013

7. EXPLANATION OF DIFTERENCES BETWEEN GOVERNMENTAL FI.INDOPERATING STATEMENTS AND THE STATEMENT OT ACTIVITTES
The "net change in fund balances" for Governmental funds $94,136 remained the same as the.,changein net position" for governmental activities reported in the Statement of Activities as there were nolong-term assets or liabilities for the Library. The differences would arise primarily from the long-term economic focus of the statement of activities versus the current financial resources focus of theGeneral fund. The effect of the difference is illustrated below:

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in
Fimd Balances/Stateme nt of Activities

Reclassifications
and

Eliminations r
E)(PENDITURES/E)GENSES :
Adminis tration and operations
Documents and books
Equipment
Cataloging and programs
Information technology systems
City staffing agreement

Total e xpe nditure s/e xpe ns e s
REVENUES
Program revenues

Contributions
Grants
Charges for services

Total program nevenues
Net program expensie

General revenue
Interest

Total general revenues
REVENUES OVER (LJNDER

E>(PENDITURES
CHANGE IN NET POSITION

1,225,&l

(92.863\

r273

General
Fund

Statement of
Net Position

41,006
1732t6
t7$u
19,2rl
29M9

945Ass

r2963s6
4Oso

l8,0gg

41,006
173,216
t7,684
19,2ll
29969

94sA55

1,225,641

1,296,356
4Oso

18,098
1,319,504

(92,863)

r273

1,318,504

t.273

FUND B ALANCES/NET POSITION
Beginning of the year
End of the year

94,136

520,616re

1.273

94.136

s20,6t6
$ 614.752

-

I Go'ntmmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures while governmental activities repondepreciation expense to allocate those expenditures over the life of the assets. Additionally,goverrlmental funds report compensated absences as expenditures while governmental activitiesrecognize the long-term nature as a liability, the change to contracted salaries and benefits reflects thechange in the long-term compensated absences liabilit! from the prior year.

65



t7

REQUIRE D S UPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

,fl 5b



9

This page intentionally W bbnk

51



/.(f Harrison Memorial Library
Required Supplementary Information
For the year ended June 30,2013

Budgetary Comparison Schedule
General Fund

For the year ended June 30,2013

Budgeted Amounts
Original Final

$ 520,616 $ 520,616

280,000
19,000

1,200
987,576

Variance
with Final Budget

Positive
(Negative)

$

Actual
Amounts

Budgetary Fund Balance, July 1,2012
Resources (inflows):

Contributions:
Carmel Public Library Foundation
Friends of Harrison Memorial Library
Individuals/bus inesses
City of Carmel

Grants
Interest
Charges for services

Amounts available for appropriation
thanges to appropriations (outflows):

Administration
Documents and books
Equipment
Information technology systems
Cataloging and programs
City staffing agreement

Total charges to appropriations
Budgetary Fund Balance, June 30,2013

$ 520,616

280,000 281,000
19,000 19,000
1,200 50,901

955,228 945,455

1,000

49,701
(9,773)
4,050

273
902

1,828,392 1,796,044 1,940,393 (44,349)

4,050
1,000 1,000 1,273

19,000 19,000 tg,Ogg

58,677 58,6'17 41,006
175,979 175,9',19 173,2t6
19,387 19,387 17,684
41,412 41,412 29,069
26,145 76,145 l9,2ll

321,600 321,600 t,225,641
g 1,506,792 $ 1,474,444 $ 614,752

17,671
2,763
1,703

12,343
6,934

(945,455)
41,414

(85,763)

Aq



a

This page intentbnally W blank

v
5q



JJAL,['A, lrtc.
A Professional Accoun ng Services Corp.

RBPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON
COMPLIAIYCE AND OTIIER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL

INDEPEI\DENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Board of Trustees of the
Harrison Memorial Library
Carmel-by+he-Sea, Cal ifornia

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the basic of the Harrison Memorial Library
r"Library"), as of and for the year ended June 30, 2013, and the related notes to the financial

.ltements, which collectively comprise the Library's basic financial statements, and have issued our
report thereon dated January 3L,2014.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Library's intemal
control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Library's intemal control.
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Library's internal control.
A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a

combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a

material misstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and

conected on a timely basis. A signfficant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies,
in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention
by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify

iy deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material
weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

7080 Donlon way, suite 2}4,Dublin,cA94568 r phone (925) 556-6200 o fax: (510) 217-59i0

STANDARDS

www.ijacpa.comzx (o0



G
Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Library's financial statements are free

from material missiatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions-.of lav

regulations, contracts, and grant agreements' noncompliance with which could have a direct ano

material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts, However, providing an opinion on

compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express

such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that

are requirid to be reported under Government Auditing Standards'

Purpose of this RePort

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our. testing of internal control and

compliance and the ,"*ult. of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the

entity,s internal control or on complianJe. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in

accordance with Governrnent Auditiig standards in considerini the entity's internal control and

compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose'

January 3l,2Ol4 JJACPA,Inc.
Dublin, CA

ef b r



fr-r-rt r+(li-{ FN'r il

tr
TDv
7.F

-'45a9.=EOL4o-|sF
7' lJl.U
o7,{

-i- ti'Nl.u{ '[ul 'f
iti
i

-,1
!'i

,1
I4i

-1oci
fl

S-
*J ,$
\s a<-
'.i*L
$J

OL



'ArTACft r-lPl-ra ff ' . '

F._-
EEv

c-1
9.=BO
o-t,sF

v,' l11

,, O'
{

-(p

illr
>lt
W{l
mlt#Imt
:iol
iE'lotz'l
m,l
ElI
D:.1
.r:::!J
I?II
tA,l
ffi.l
ffiN

ffi
ffi

)
.l
l
\):i.):
J
DnF

oo
gL

=U''
oeg
oo

oc
CNo
3.o.oo

no
(D

of.O,og
oo-

:{,m
t:
mg
.Ioz
mt)
r.n
CD

rl
-lolo,l-rl$t
J]a

oJ:oof
c)o

-sl
<,6
6'q)

o
3,,
CN

o-o-oo.

sl
If,l
$,1-l
o
3.a
>o-o.o,o-

co

o
6,...

a
()::

0)
o:

(ft

9

tiL

il
ol
n
E
;l
En
1I
Da
.il,l

2oz!l n,7
m
c2
o
mz
Et'a
ffio.H>t;

o
o.
N
EI:ooo.oa

CI
=l=lc)o:
lCo
0)
(D.
cL-

o
(D

o
t<tololcl=
F
It,
I

o
o

o
o
6'
'o
oc:,
C)
it'o

zo,5.'avo,
llt':
CL,o
a+
,O,

v
m
't2
.tr,'mzi-lrt
FIx)
"-l:.!
l*

lr{E

o
o$,o.
.:,'
.:

oo.
3o'

iuf
oIao
0)

vo.a.do57tI

k'g

F
GT
.HIItfi

QITIc)lc,lrl
EIoz
t[sEo7nlo
t€
ltTrlv
IU,
l#+

oax m

'.st

rlJN{
N5
o,o

,. :,

No)
cto

Or
(o
.A

E5

tgt
(o
@

I(o
N
Or

I*oPoo
NN(,(,

:1..:

I{
(.,
o)

."i l

rN6,
o){

$f,il IE
ffiffi
ffiffiiis
i#?iffiat+ijffitE
*&rlill
,ililc)

(,
o).A

(.t
5
CD

aN5o)

&ffiffiI,l

ffifrsr
ffi
ffiffiffi
itf;;
r:{|
lrs,N

t.A
ct)
u)
co

I{o
C')

BSIffiH
llr#f,BiI
RO

T9o (Jt
T\) 6)

(r)
(,t) o o c) o,o o s

ffio
t$
,qlN

5oA
{'(oo '(o

{
I

G
illtrr{ -\o

sb5
o,i:

=:iOr':'

&

ffiF{tr
:O

i\,5 (,
@

a (,^)
o)N

ffi
ffi .

ON a o O){ (o(o (Jl

ffi
ffiitD-
(t)
di
:(o

(r)
(,l
Ot

O)'o,
o) o,o(r)

*Ps
ffiEffiu,"oo
Gl

(o(o

G)\o(o

r-..!lri
aa4+f,:

=io{;
t+
Iltl

N
6i
N't9

(,
ilc
@o

o,N(.r)
\o)5

s
i\)(I)
t\)

o)o(o Cr)Na o G)
gt o

@

=s(to
(o(o(,

J,ro(,l
@(,
i\)
Ota

No
cn(oN

ffiil
,(rl
is
o06

ot
5
\{

ffi
ffi
trE!

ffi
sr
rc
:tl

','

(,
o,N

(,loo
.l's
Oo

s'o
N5

ffi

sa{
Ot

.:

Cr)5(o
(oq)
N

o)
CJo

-ANo

,!84{E

ffiool
C,l,+
N

",s
@
(,l

oIs
Ol
Cr)

N
ie
5

i5
orh
Ut
C''

'oo

.

5t(o5(o

F,,+
Ol:t,
rtlt+1'r.,.gi
!ii:;
ifr.iil
+;f:;
AFr-i



ffiffiE

=o
(D

o
FI:
o'j
o
o
tr
ET
ol.
=.(D
ut:

o
@

o
FL:
oo
o
trtr'
ol:
=.oO,

ji*l

{lololt,t
oi
=lO,
(,,
N)(Jt

a
d
did:o:
=
C'oo':;f.
,:.-],

+lo'lolE'I:rlOI
=lol
'.1,()
,J.rt

O,c:6
lsqls
| .-r.

lm
l3
lq)

Ix

5lolot;I
a1
ole
.rl
o:,o:

.l

+lo
(Dp-
o
sq.
5
,@
J
IIo
o,
sq
O)

<lOIcl
@o
3.oo.
u,
aolair

{q.
(DE.
Jo)
!q
o)

IIo
a
$Q
J
coLO

lmt=IJtol
l\lc)l5l0)
l-lo

xot
oJ;oo
Uoax

=lalilJ]
0,a.t.
Q,J.
o
o,o,
=.o
|It

5
O,
{o-o

lcL

-ilol-l
l--*rJ t-:f,
mtlmam:Z'o
mb(-
ma:loza
ffiss

I

o.
t5':
o:
o,,
s(o(rl
=I
Q:
@o.
(,t\(.Ir

{o
o
E
dr.+.o
=ig
o.thr

I

cl
(Dl
1,'l
=lo,l
=.,1o.l
5N
IIo,

t-(n,
!q:
(o
(.l)

m
3g
@a

t-oo
=^-$
rn
o
€g
oox

I

{lol
OItl
Jof
Ol
o)t
J,rI
]Eo

LC:.
ch

lsq
lotlo)
lo,

<totE'l
=rlalol
3.
Qoo'
Ioa,f

{lololol
J]olf,lo
N(o
.@

I
Jo
o
.o.
A
lnl
lm
l3
I 
qr.

t\tot:,lII)

7o
o
o'
oo
Uoo,if

7orto--:O.

6:oo
o.l
ah'*o)o.

=o
{lol-lot*

7tmtltl
mlTIrltlz1o
ma
rTt7
o
ma
Fil .
r.:.,.

,3..'
{ti.,.
-+',,,

a! .r

l'
-O,
U,,o
(JI(,(o

,EEi
133

NF(.,
UI

ert]\,oo
{5or

tNgl
.tN

INPo)(o

IIfoN

ffi
ffi
H
trElsan
52r,
ffiE

ffiw
;ET
tn'o,

,.1
srtorl

CD
$,0(0
Or

{
io{

I
lso
@

or(0

ffi

,:
o, l\) (,t No

N

sn&w-<ffi
N)
or*N
ED

.()

o
N
(rl

o)o)(, .lo

-l
cl:
3t,o:':t :;'

I\'
3\
CtlN O)5

o, 5 6NA

tl--'

N{ 5o
5
@

N(J)
I\)

NI
or(o
(D

i\)
(o

..j

N
t\)

A
(}l

c')(o
u)

li
0to

=:Oi

CDo5
55

(0
'o)
\
CO

t\)-(o
co(o

ffi
il5u
l{o
i'..1,o

-(,l@
C'l(o

(r)
i\)(o

@-@
Nc)

(o'o(,5

{
6'-Io

xt(o
bslh

Ol

:r-

Noa

ffi
ffi
'cE
NoN,o

," l:

(rts o)o(Jr

(,
N)o
N)

o)-o)
o
N)

ffi
ffitflf.l
is
f-l
C'I

!^,
O)(o5

ll

N
<f -@

,Jo,(o

(o
f,,o
N)

1.,q|-o..
1:E.

A't-r-n cil LtrNT,

trEv
v
Fz-'a
=oz
{
-.Lr<v

'Il1!ov{

(-c
Jo(,
s)
Nas

6;..

{;+



(-
J.o
(/)
P
No
s

F}
F.
O,
q
Alr

Olo,

U)

3
3.o
nog)

E.E7
v!,Z,
1j
3
O.Z,
{
-.Lr(
vlll!
Qn{



AfrXi+trvrsfi-f ir

.E
,E,7
7
I>,z

5@
9.=HOLZOI
-\ 

t-5.L-r
7
m!,ov,,{

ub



tr
TEn
7
-
1
U,

=oz
{
-Ir
v
m'trov{

fr:Tyf\C+l l,,tg,t lT f+.'

c.-E
Jo
(,*)

-a
N)O
A

IJ
ililfil
1+l
!ffil

ffil
ESI

ffit
ffiIt

ffit

ffit
ffit
ffi,1
ffi:l

ffit&tH4it

ffit

ffit

oc
oo
3.oolo

0)

tror
il.a

D
n
fi
ff
E
nilx
U
lri{
E,
z

':')

:ri:.

E
Qo:x.
r.tliF
:)(
i-fL.N

ETv
=iltra
m

roo
n
6{:o7
iT
o-{o'io
mv
:o
m
lcn
Etsncffi

o)o,oxoc
o

1l
0)

a'
J

no,l)
a
6
=.o
@

o
m.v
Uv
,E:rn

,{o'{,>
l-
cn

K
:{i

i;j

o

U>
O,,
Q
6io,
,U'',

{
O,o

6'
0)

@o
3.
Oroo'

no
6t
o
o-o:

l-o().
o,

-
U'
o
e

o
6
o)o
.: -)

O
oCilrto

ol-cz{mmv
,:TF

oev
v?

ffi&trI'
ffi:rts'r
$rtffir.,trIl'
IF;
Iffi.':

*{#ro
ic
{(r,

t
-l(o
(.,o

rl{5(,

1!..

,:!:i

'ii:

l.to,g,

t{
(p{

fr$
**.LfrI

ffiffi
-a+i
!&"
THlinE
i[&,h
Ff.{N(o
ljl,tll

!rlo
(r)(,

N
P(r,
o)

@F
C')N

(.,
9ogt(,

I.l
C'Poo

I{J\e
r-

I
tr,.o
o
oo
=!ltct
o...o
!,
='lrt '.o.

t\)(,)s

i. t.

(Jrs(c'
I\)so

$4e fifixu4ffi
*E
ffiN @

No s N)o o or

{
o
3:o.5.

5N
C'I,(o5

N(,(o o)

#
l!ftd

ffiw
'C't:c o) (o o Nf\) o (r)

Eo,

=o

o)o).\
{o(o5

-tj. .}o
(rl

-:,

N(rt5

ar$H

ffi,5(l' A(o
N(rro N5

Cr)No o (oo

{
o

tr

N'o
o,A

o)'os
!n& lffi

bEtsffi
N'o)o

*r:rJ

eI*
lt'-L-,BIb
@

s,(o N{o)
o)o

No u)
N
Ci)

o)
@
G)

!lo
:-(
trl

::".

b4



A-i-rn qtMsl.:r #

Uv



A*rr-xcfl-/ttrru\r fl

trtrn
n
Fza
=oz{IF
v
rnTov{

rdlp{



l)-ffne.lf-r*Jr T

I-
:v
>v'-,Dz

B@
=.-s80L1o-{
.,'1F

7
]TlTo7'{

.tl n(u

{lol
.-{ i>lr
-l,'mr.
,,flI
,:Etoz
l1l
,o
'>t-l.'a
;l i'
_.r:-:':

',ti.'i
ii',,
'r;.i,1

..": ,
,:...' .

a
oc
0).Ao
=oo
U,x

oo
8Lg
o
o
e(f
o
@,r

o

ao
=.oo
U'ooair

no
o'
d
=ooooo
-

{
m:ll-,
.lll',Tl,+
o,,2,
,m
'CI'
D,
Ja,l-
U,4 a...

',,:l'{t...'i-
;l,{jr:.i ,.;

- 
.:'. )'.

lirLi
':',t:.
.; r::.
., jl,':

.:.r'i
:a.t!.:.::

.,::,jl

'11

oo
q)
3o

o
n

1l
@
6'
o)

o
3.a
o-o.oo-

g
5'
A)

o
3
@

oo-oo.

s
U,

o
a

t:o;
CI:
'D.rJff
6':.{,o:V,
i<
;!,'I
,..:";
',t.;_-il

:,j;rij -'.:
4.i;l
-,,., ',!:

,;ri
,i.i)!.t
r],::Ti
:a'ii
.,t:,it
!::ii,)
-r:;j1

,,ii;

o
ocilito

sa
ql

2olz1
jol
mla1
E']
M]'zl
:{i
@
.{,o,{,>
,17"t.:;l
1$

'fil;,

lljrn
]rii;;:

:t,J.:ti

o
Jo
NIJo
Q.o.
(Da

C
=.=C)o
c,
O,il
oo-

o
=o
o
ooc
=

o
o

o
J

o.
o':

ooc5
o
6'o

zo
=I7oo
CLo3
F}o

7m
9,trmz,
.=l
"tl,
#{o

oc
oq,o

o
ot
3,o

I(,f
oIao
0)

T
@:o
o.o
,+o

i,,iltrll'D̂o
rfi6
i?,1

a.fi

c)l,-
v)
o,lF',:

B.i1;
5ln.8,
,(,
1 !':::,

:tD
O.'v'fr:
..o
,.E
rm:'fi:
cn,

ir!:

o)
oo

:F:Ii]
i|;t n
:,r'n
'?'+'ii
/.,: !

'.:!:r:i
t! !4:
i*j.;i/.ig;
:*;:
'.ji"#;

:^.i.

,l:;:|,;

(].
EliZ;()i
rlr:
ii*.:,,|j,

,1;';.it.ir*i
{fH
r.:{1r#
F.+tz.
1d;l*

f.::#
:!'aa:i.:a.,,?;

::r;,.'A
..(.)
No

IJ
C')s{

j

soq,
N

I
-l
90(rf
o)

I
3.,(rt
o)

)'..:;l
,r"i::'-

,.r,:

1r'iii.,..i:
*ii,,
.,,n.

'ii -ii:

, 
:.-'i,J

:.,.'-

I(lt
Orbgr

I
octbo

+tI
o

t,g,
-l

.: ;:?:
:ii.J.i

. rl"i

!l:,",), ir.1

:'r;l'-t

'!L.-:
;-,::i|

*,PsG'

A
s,,o5

"i.ri,:J,':Ji

,:-,/||

.:irI;

: rr*:,

::.:,,.,;

r:i_i
,l;ri-,
.'ll.'i

l-'+l'.:

i i,a,

:.i!...i t
i: r:ljlin
Otrl.

'';, ,..

ii..!t
iiriii

'.,roii

i.-+4
_it)
.li.:{,

l,l !,{l3
);;l

INC'
5(.,

i,o)o

::')..:"t'!;:iii
:r::,:::;;
i,f i:;
t.::,ri','.'.:r.1.

'ii:i#
ii.:i,:I
+'!1;4.
;:1r"{'
;+-.,r
;:i'rik
rn'ifi

I ,-{i
I.P;
l,'u1
IO.;.
I 'tali:o,
l.io.li
l'::i+ilitl-1
Iro*
L0i:1
I.6li
l; a!'r:l;=r,
lGl:..
1,",i

. ,:,.iA

.T,o,O
'o
oN N @

q)
N)
@

.r,-1 o,(o o o (o

:!:;,r:l

'tnij'
l 

'-::::,,,,,- i:l
tti'_(.

5
CD A

i,t4.i;'.:.,-

/i.:. i
.':1. i:dio
C'tN (o

o)

o)'o
Ns

i\)(,)(,r

;i--.{
'ct)
:arf,or{ s(.)

(r)'5
(,t
@

:iyl{i
a..:b1:"

+_:;:i

o.":;
'gi:o.t
.$r'i,
1,.::t!i-

r5
.o,o
A

-o
o
@ o @

C> (,r o C) o @o)

,:ti!,
::i'!,
"' 

11.':t
,:]:l:

r'-.,:ili

,'.::.r!

-.:!:!:
o s

i-r:ll,iii
i":l
;i!:
:4j';..

'il:rii

Cr,@(Jr

-o,{(oo
ixo,(n

ti,ii:

.(.t
(,r
;gt
CN

.1,o
-(,A(,ls

F.;r:
llfi'.:
'o'::.t

=?i.Oiilll
3:i'j,44

.t'-:..,jr
gr
sl,-
'dr

-(r,
{
O)

o)
G)o)

i\)
c'To

(,
5s
@

:1.. :r*l'
,+:;;:
!;,

::iiii
.. ,,i:1

N(o o o
@so,

'-1 -r
,i.,::
t:9:
, i..i,;,t;)/i
q t!.i;
':!ji'jt:,!lii

b(r)(,, 5(,l

";.ri'

+IJ

ti,
l-":
]\l)
,6rj.ia

q)
-tNo)

o)o)b(.r)
@

A'5
o)

Wia
;Noiil3

"o
o,o)

(.r,

\{(Jt

-lr,i
ll:i
<;il:':0j
l!,iii

ii;:
ii{o
.N
:Cl)
"t

(,-o)

(o
(,l
(-r)
(.r)

tts
(.r)
'(rt
o)
@

.j 1';)i
- : !-

.,,i::;

.:-;!:
iiLl,,i
t.;:/!.:.
.:':':-i
,'iri''.
:':'".;: N

@{
(r)
N)o o

(ooo)

!::!;':1,lii
!.,i1
.": ii
llia
ill:.\.

/;:.
!7;:i

C^,oN (o

iri!),!'t

l.'!l

l1:j'

--!: !
i.:/.'.'-;i,:.i.

.r,r:in.

't9-
crl
,o
@i
l]€;

iN(oN
o)
po
o)
@N

.{
@

.;:.17

,ilf;
ii!;{iI.:(rl
i$
,NI
.qt

"(,ol\l

(,s'o
N

:i::;r,

'-::,i:il
;!:ai
:i;.,q6;t)it +:
ii!;::tiiri:: (;!

,Fi*
lD t,i,'nfi
:<i{i{;i
F:r.

5{lii
iia::l'-{,r.;



; +.1
'-tii!!"

+'.-.+
4
.,1 l; 

'

:q:.,r'
.!.i::,i.ti
li r:.:i;:jj

'4':::i
j:^t'.1

jii;r'.
..1.-,1"

':):,,
.'1,:i .'

::;,i
!i:.i,)!..:

i?..::j:

=o
TE

o
F
o
3
o
o
tr(r
0)
=.oa

=oq,
o
F
o
o
orctil
o
a,

{o-{
II;:
Z::n.ofi:
=,'D.
:.-{
;6:z
6,,cirrl

"UtJoz"cD
.i'.

o
oC
E

=.ofg
oa
-

l:ooq)

.I
6'
oe
Cfoairi

oc
=ao
3.oo
@g
o
@x

vo
o'
fr:
=oo,q
oaF

=-lroa
J
or'Ft
O,
=o
ooFl.
o
Jo

o
{(D
!o0.

SJ,]i{t
Ir-,1
tr;f,,Illi
,:l1,
mv;rn
Z:
,o.
m:
D.
G,
'11I,.o,.,c
o',Z
,u!,
?i:irii*
i,B:

o
oE
6-*o,
=lCfott,iii

oogI

6'
o
Qooax

O,c
=aozooa
oo
U)if

7od
o
=c)o(fooif

vo
o-rto
ooo
oo*o
=o
Jo
{ot
CL

,7f,.1
rni
..-ini.III:
|7:mj,z::
,Oi
]T
'111,i:;

rllli
,7',
,<r
'(?.1',t,int
,.qrl
rui+::
:!.'4:::/

.-i? a--
. ,: ,'
i:..a..".

:.i';.ri
:,.,.i.:
ri :.

+a ,,.t;/":
tl:l:!

.li
;, ti ,,
.',i,,

L', ':

!':--1,
,iii,.:.

NLo
(Jr
G'
@rl

i-i.1,.'

i:.it.

:!..;,1
'-:.;.'
:i1..
;,:,:,.:.

,:.: .i
|,;;,|
l;:-l;;.
:i.Jn

iri*;
?::,:j.:
i t "::al
"-:i:i'

,.r:.i..

,:'itrl(.,
i(l)
'(o!.,

I
9'fN
C')

OrNfl(,
f6
q,
Crl

$o)(o

ir:r-i
..t.tii.,
-ttri.

:)i.ir.
'lr.i.j
''iir'r
.-r ':t

,.1:.'.t

'(.,(,
::c)t\l
t
OtN

I.l
N
(r)
ot

IG)
(D
o)

Irl
N,o
o

<ii,{ii
p;l
,TI;'(D':
o:)Or
!rl(cl..,
O.:.
()':
'tl ..

lCl:l':

"ot

'.:t'l
,t;!t.
.,,.
'.; .:

@
(,
o)

i!:::.

'.. :,.l

: t,j.:.

.i.'6o)(o
(JrNo (l)

or
No(..)

!i;ij#r
;,:;{No)rl

s
@
N)

Noo)
(,o(o o)

@(rt
:.. 

"-!):ij,.

/,;
i,:!,,
Y,l,ii'; { s(,

,:...:,t.. 1.'
r'. ir':
;{li-rr
,.,r+)lf,n::'

ir::':ii

,@
,CD
:C')

(rt55 A(o s N
OrN

I.,:!'

': i'rii

i;}
15;i+il
;ct:

5{(o
(r)o No)(*)

o(o{
.t;

:: r'i.'
'.:::.:::
ir:ir

N5
(,
O)
G)

li';l'

'i:;;'
.'...1'::i:l
':r:t.:.
,:. ri

; "i:',
lJ'(,r(.,
ili
or,

@o
5

(,rs
(.1)

5(/)
(r)
@

NsN

l/.{q
i,.::it
'i::r:

l{r*,l
:O:(l}
(r)'

{(Jl
N)(o

N)(,ro\t
s(,sgr

o,

Or

i',',.i::'.-r:r

.o
,.4.{:
iYi

N)
I

,

N(r)
o,

,;l'!.:
Lirlr::
!t:t:..
'"3i:
)r"li:

.::;::,

'::.i:

lfl
rIrJl
,Otr
,'t!,
-(l)(rrl

5
Ns

(,(,t
o,

@A
@

N(Jtso

1!p
i I -:i:l

rL|+,ri

ifrl:r{i;\l:G
iG,:

G)(.rr

o
No
o

{
N

{o,
(j)

:il
f:;,.!rir
o::;',+':..
i<.:1il:t'E,i

Arnc{tfJtrilf r

tr
ETIv
7
Fza
soz
{
-.Lr
v
m!ov{

;
s)
N)o
(Jt

1t" '



t-
-lo,-l>rl,JrImzo
z:o
m
.,:+i:.'..: .;' i.'':
.:!1.:1,,i,,

:..::

'.ii:

{m
mz.o
7oov
3o

{p;{
>.I-
i _".

.>
r-{.-l
{ltt2
,tr
">
o
;m

::+j
..::,_:

. ':.
:.1;ai

i._::..
+i.-i

i-:..1

g
Cr{
!voo7
=!4

+,o-{)r.t-
>:-{:.{m
2:E
2om
:ii*
\':::':::,)
.1,:/

. r!r.

.:,:i,.,:,'

::i-':l
::.!,
.i.:i

!voov
=a.T
ov
ro
I

r-N
m
v
o|-o(!?

o,H>r
u,
,.!7oo
'vt

=I
m2o>.zom

{o{

oCr-{
1
mzo
zo
m

o{
o
Fc,nmza
I
mzo
zor

a
3
J

o
7oq,o
='(o
aEog.
o
Io5
o.
o
=

U)
o,
=3'o

IoJ
CL
d
J

rlo
J,o.
0l
oo

!
o
lEl
Iqt

o

=llol
!-I,]

|-;
lu',v,
O'o,
:v:.
'>;3;
.U,
,:.i
'.)*i

':'i..
ii,tj
t t:)

1,:;t;,
:i;:,li

...: i
':: !;.

CN

3
o
7o
0)g)
GI
CNoo
8.q)
-U
o(cl
q)
3
!4

a
oa

=:o'
1l
dl1
0)
3o

{lII
(,l
rtln
o
mosv,oov
3
u,
:ilr.
'j.$
;i,rqa.;

t-o
o
ETJ
o
-.l

o
FT

:'

zltrl
3
Eo.l
o
-h!
9t
Gtoo
so{oo.t
G.l
l<
ta
lFi

z1g
3
ETo-l
o-|r!
o,
Eloo
so{oe
!o!
tr,!lx

EI
O.'loil
o3l-il-l
=ll:l
E,l
O:lt '-l
Esr:Ioi
ID.o.:

s,
<r.o.:rt
tf ,,
lll,lo:'!n:
,:i
:.:'.;,.r
..,;4,

.:.!,:.,

!
g
o

=-lICoo

m
oo
a
a'
CNo
AI-to

=o;f,o
{o
oi"

-tr1clg
6'
Ir

ET
!lrt

oo
t,c
o.l
Coo

mtrl
mlol{lnoz
6
U'm
7o-
oJ
-,|

3(,I
No
(,

.i;;

.1:t:.
J'i.,
. j,+l
'il:.-
.:., J'.(/;.

"::-:t.

i'.:.,

ofqf
ot
c.,

tor
Poo

l,.i
!!:i:
'qlii.;!i.
;rI,
!!.;':,:.:
i:.;

,:{i.
,.',,|ii

.'t").ra
,ifr
ti

ofb
oo

'::ii.i I

.,:a;.r,

riirr
.,,1;|

i;;':,:.

;:,

U(rt
:oi
"Ot

C'oct

: l-,r

.1..iN(,
-l

${{
to
Egr

g,
q,

INo(o

:.,)r;;)

;ti_.
i.r.r.

.;i"'

:::'ill

i:c1N
:N
i(D

-lItgro
NP(n(o

'r:.r:.:\

.ii-{
f;1:l:
,jr.:;

-i!t:

il-r..'l

T:-i

:rri j

!
-ls5(o

{,r,.
'li.'i,:

.t,"i:.

"ri11.+.i;
..j l\
-..J:t

::::;:i
IN5
(os

I

(,r

N
o
i.r(r)

o o
tuN.N o)

-.:.'lrl'i1.
,."5:

c.,;
Itil A

w*
.(o.N (, (rl(,r COo Nur

;!:;:
aii\
ttr;.

l:il!,
.itit:.
.rrl N) Or

-i,i,,

,:iil,

;r.ilr,fr,
..'.ia

irr

z N
N(,I

i1L
i',:i;,

:1ii:,:

:4r:: G)o)
.(r)
OrAo)

{
ctt

. "i:
ci(,r J

....i!:.!::.
::ij.

il;Cll
,:C, 5

.i,:l
'li.:.

K'arl N
J
N)(, N)

Ol
(o
@

;i,;
';..;t
'.-:...

i:! s

a iiriti}
'7.._.t

ati:;

:' j.i
:..,:j

tlt

z N
N)o

...-;-1

i,.":'l.L'f:
. -.1:
:l:i: "
i.,Ii
$:'jfr'

o)
@

"G)N)$o
@
N

roo:.
-
3.
: L::

N

'iti!":$
'O)i*|:o (,5

,:-,it
(o

i\,'
Cl,
:-r-

(o(oo
t,
G)

sNN
o(o
J

ri,!
lir:r i: !:::
:aiLi

th(., o (,
Or

iii ri
tj.t:
:!1i

.r.:j

t)
G)(o
CD

+;..i.1
'i;!."r;'y:"i
4:.ii
r'l:l:..

(,
@
Or
@

s
o(rl
@

@(,r
o)5

{gr 5
I
oN
C'I

(.t
of

Ns (0

N
itoo,{

J'os
@

(^t
(o

sc,(o
(0
o Igr o) N)(o

N
@oN

srt
Jso

AP(r){
\t(o
I
(rJ

rtro
,{.o

A

r
trv
E
1a
=o,z{.Tr'
v
m!o7{

-lo{
r
-l{mzo
2o
m

:'--
:i:'

:::! 
'

{o{
r
{
mm
=
{{mzo
zo
m

{o-lr
o-rg
7mz6
Imzo
zo
m

o
=o.
6zo
o
?.x
-{oo
=
Vt

nx

o
5a
U,

o
.-{a
.,:ji;1i;r!' l

:r'1r
.i:';.

i';l
"i.

ltto
o

{to
=o

,'.i'
:i

,. '];
,l i'
)'.!;

i,,ir.

o o o o

(o o (o
'.t:i

.::,.
,4.

";.i

"I(EI o (o r,'.

o

ay-



',.,'.',:,1

1.,^ r:
".i-:;l

o
=o)o
J
='o7oq)
o.q)(,
oo
A'
0)
o9.
(o

JEoa7o
o
@uoo
='o

oof
o
=oe

eo

o

E]a
A)o
A)
cnoo

oo
oo
5'
J
at,

0)o.o
og
ct
6'lcl
B
1J)
6'

tr,
{:
>,
IE:

0EI
.=.>
t2
{
lTl,Z
'iz
,o
!T
;t..':

.,;.l:

{o-{
l-I{t-ma
+
mrI

,-|o,,+{
,>.
,ti::*:
{,m
'='a
.L
1mF.
.tr,
i:.

',] ,:'l

li.i
. ::..

.U
0)
i(
ctril
o
trcrile

I
=r
q)

='ruilq
E
C.
o-
5'(o

.-.1
,ol
EI
tzl
'o]l(,,l{t
"oilol
>,1.{l
,lJI I
i 'itliiiril
t1,til
i i./iil,i,"i;.t
"1.,:. I

:;|,il
.';.;l

',',il.i::r.I..*.,-l
tr,i: 

I

.{.1ol:{l,>l
L-....;l._a':Jt I

so-oo
CL
6'

oc
@o

=.ooo

vo
o
o
o(D

oq,ooo-

o-c
TDooxao
{
1-oo
mE

'.; !:!'
:.I',:
-'l',:'

:17::

ii::i
i'aJl

1:tj:.',
:i::;:.!,j./ j!:l
:i: ilri

':j:"t.:.!.r:,

::r..'.

,;'.
:,. '.)
: t:.Ji.'
-.: .r:

"!.,-:

;i:,i':
, 'l.i:

,tr. i

{ i.iJjt,ri
i:i;;
t:.t.1x

=Ur'

3o
=
x

x
5
6'
3o
=
x
-t

::':.r
,..1.:i,.
:! ".
.:.. "r.

,a : :.'

t,i,1.
,.i i-

'.t. .:.,

.ir/.

::r;.;1.

:,:cif
,!,::li:

'.-j"i
. .".--l

'1 ,'rl
,.r::
'ar+;

,..tf:

.-.::

o U
tlj:,

"r:li.;

/ ?.J...:..,

:i..:.ji

,tl:,i: i

'.i'::
l1"..
.:;:ti'..

",:r.1.'

i-{
-9(o
O'r(,

NP
N)
o

(rlob
@(,

,; ,rr.
. ;,.
t"-:.

'-,ri !
;:i::!::

':1;1,';:-.:..

ir.:.i
:.'t:.ij
irni,l lrr:
r"::.i

1;:
.r:.,1'.

,ij)'
ro){ a)s N o)o) @

As N
G)o,

i'

.-".rj'
"1.4'

i'.'-1.
r:; l:l

o)(,r
"5
o)I

':-,'i.
t:.^ i
,.'j':;.

::::{-.1,r; 
1.

JoE
5'
cro
J(t
E:oa

o(JlAo)

=T-o
UI

1.;]"

,.!inr
'.:ri::;
i,'i-l
Jt:,'

ij'

:1;-,

$
N N(,r t\)

(,
o) CD

(o
@

l\)(.r)
O)

{ji
m:i
O."i.,
>iio:i:Di.E\V{:nli::

::iil,

"t-r.

,:.:;,',

!!:\

' .',],,

.i:ii"

ii,..

:Lo.o,o
A
@(o

N
@{

'o
o)s N o (/)N

{::or
.1.t
El-::,3,i
o,:,
t:, .i

;;;,
: ;.t'

l.:.ti

^,i,. 
t.

.-,1:''

\t_l

{:

. tji.

;tlir.

$
.ls:(o.5,,

s
@o

N
@o,

'o
o)5 o @

G) (r)
N)

trt...;l1{:r
mi:i
clt,-:

ATracilrt,t-tr.-err J-

1-
E7>
4>.z

But
aaNzo{dF

<
7, rTl,ov{

13



-{,o
:-l
:l-.
. l;':

.;: iil
't:',.

..\|)

..,:,/

..1

o
L

oo
?6'o
@

g)

rtrril
a

a
ml-it
:0,
m,ox
,E
.{v,o2o
i ...,
".::::
!.. .

li,
;: .:_

1l{,
..:.f,': i
,'rii:
"t.:t', 'r .a-r

EE7>2:T..co'fn'

{r:.r
: .F. 

'.ftl:\, .l
. rY ,'.

'*.'i'

t;: i
l.;;

ir.

:.1: r

!:::_;

ir:

{o
0)

9_oo
6
=.o
o)ooxo
o

o
ooiFoE
U)

o{.,I
ITI.ng
Q.-{'
t?;'rl'
m.a
O.c1o
m"o
..'...:.,,.
:',1r.:'r:.'-;

,,/::;:.

o)oo,soc
@

!
0)

o
J

voloa
0).ao5a

o
mv'tr,,7

.1..'',nl
i, ii"

1r,,,,

:,t.'.:;
,'.',),:',:

'..,4:

'::'r-
:;:!;':

,-i: _ ..

.-lo{,>r'a,
:,..
"i r:i-i4:1,. "

i.:'li,
;r'tii.
':.:J',

r-.:)'l
! jtl
':'r'...

,,i:.!
r.;.;'

:,.|/
it:- il

':.ii

o

ao
3.ooth

{oo
-)
6'g)

cno
3.
c)oo

7o
o
o:,oo

oogI

6'
o
e

o
c)cil
t-+.o

<o,rcz{
,,m;l1Iv
,t,o
iEn'(t
' .;.i

':':-:i

.r;-r,

::,i i

.:

,l':I

.5
",s,f
:G,^N

Or'o
5

I-t{
C.,N

''i t,

' !.,\f:"!,
' !.;jt
,-tr..,

l:lii,
l\i:,

tlii.

,+:,
",:, .:.'

:.rj
.:'!'i
,a"r'
?4..

:':i:'
s ,..:

Hi
(0'
,c,

I
-,ilo
(l,o

I.t
o)
(o
\N

i'"';:'.,:]ii
'.i.:,

;,;l:
l.

';!ii.:

:.'...:l'

,'::ii
1"::...

ii.+

I
-l
..1(o

I
Oto
cD

:.:. ;

,:,J :.

,,;:],,i
i.j{y,
!,!1,:
:.;.".i
i;:j "

.t,i:.
):!:,:

,d;"'
GI
:ao)

I(o
FN(o

II\,(0
o,o

-l..1Ioo
!

G)ot
N
Or

I5o
irr(o

(,i
Ac,

x
(,l
o

,.r!/..

f1:

t. }.,rl.,
o)
N)(o

N
@(Jt

;?,..J

G)sA I
o) o o 5 I\)N (o

,{,
.o.;

=:o.

ol,GI:is (,t
(,t
(o

:i:i; :

t:."]",
:irt:;?

,:....:

:i2
ii;ir;:
ui!.::,'.li
iL:,

O)5(Jr
(.r)5(o

,,:ii'- .t
..;1 i

,{I,
N(o
o) (o

,:;:i:t
::,4:.,

,a..:,; o (o s A o)

F,,
tn:..

=i:o,:

r=r

:Q1
NF(0

'(r,
N)
@

5
(o
N)o

,,t::
'-,1";
,.):,

..t:.. .

:..r; ::.

:!.',i:
:: *'!
, -':' ..

'Il.:o';\r
-G)
N)
s

-(o
o)

s.)s(o5
N)o
@

ti:,.";

,:.:..;,

'.i,i''.

.' ;':

fi
t,.:4.::

,51{
.(0 N (,rA s

N)
@o o

-t
,., ::{
N;o.{o

i\)(,l
@

-(,l(o(,
:;i. , "::,

d,oN.
-(r)o)o { rr".i

.(,^)(Jl(,
O)

NN
,- 1:

,i\'..\)
'i!t:-!.,{t
I\)
x\,

o)
Or

N
(o No

N){
@

-\{o

A,T.gc*+tgAJ7 f

l-.E
n
n. ->z

Bs;
=.-85LZo-l
-I TF(J'F

mTo
{

1{+



HARRISON MEMORIAL LIBRARY BOARD OF TRUSTEES
Staff Report

To:

From:

Subject:

Julv 22,2015
Harrison Memorial Library Board of Trustees

Janet Bombard, Library Director

Discuss and accept Fiscal Year 2013114 library audit

exectnlve sUnnMARy: The Fiscal Year 2O13l14library audit, prepared and submitted by
JJACPA, lnc. follows on the next page.

The City,s contract with JJACpA, lnc. has expired. The City is in the process of issuing an
RFP for a new auditor.

75



JJACPA,

To the Board of Trustees of the
Harri son Memorial Library
Carmel-by-the-Sea, Califomia

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying basic financial statements of the Harrison Memorial Library ("Library"), as

of and for the year ended .lune :0, 2014, and the related notes to the financial statements' which collectively

comprise the City,s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. The prior year comparative total

infoimation presented has been derived from the Library's 2013 basic financial statements and, in our report

dated June 12,2015 we expressed an unqualified opinion on the those financial statements.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance

with accounting principl., g.n.ruily accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design,

implementation, a-nd maintenince of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial

statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Re sponsib ility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our

audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards

applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General

of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance

about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the

financial statemenrs. rhe proc-edures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the

risks of material misstatement of the financial slatements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers intemal controi relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the

financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the

purpose of expressing an opinion o, th" effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express

no iuch opinion. An audii also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the

reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinions.

-7U



To the Board of Trustees of the
Harrison Memorial Library
Carmel -by-the-Sea, Califomia
Page2

Opinions

In our opinion. the basic financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the

respectiv; financial position of the Library, as of June 30,2074, and the respective changes in financial position

and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles

generally accepted in the United States of America.

Other Matters

Re q uir e d Suppl e ment ary Informat i on

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management's

discussion-and anaiysis and budgetary comparison information on pages 3-9 and25 be presented to supplement

the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required

by the Govemmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting

for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context' We have

uppii"a ".,tuin limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing
siandards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about

the methois of pieparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management's

responses to ouiinquiriei, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of
the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information

because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any

assurance.

Other Reporting R.equired by Government Auditing Stundards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards. we have also issued our report dated June 72,2075, on our
consideration of the Library's internal *nt.ol over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with
certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters- The purpose of that
report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the

results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on

compliance. That rep-ort is an integial part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards in considering the Library's internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

June 12.2015
J/Jr%@'ry--/,*.

JJACPA,Inc.
Dublin, CA

11



Harrison Memorial LibrarY
Management's Discussion and Analysis
For the year ended June 30,2014

Management's Discussion and Analysis

This section of the Harrison Memorial Library's (the Library) basic financial statements presents

management's discussion and analysis of the Library's financial performance during the fiscal year

endeJJune 30,2014. Since this management's discussion and analysis is designed to focus on current

activities, resulting change, and current known facts, please read it in conjunction with the Library's
basic financial statementi (pages 12 and 13) as well as the footnotes to the financial statements
(pages 15 - 22).

Financial Highlights

At June 30,20l4,net position ended the year at$662,369.

Using This Report

In June 1999, the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) released Statement No. 34,

Basic Financial Statements -- and Management's Discussion and Analysis -- for State and Local
Governments. Changes in Statement No. 34 require a comprehensive one-line look at the entity as a

whole and capitaiization of assets and depreciation. The major reconciling items necessary were
capitalization and depreciation of capital assets and inclusion of long-term liabilities. The Library has

seiected the single gou..r*"ntal fund (General Fund) presentation since this reflects the most concise
and easily readable presentation for the Library's operations.

The annual financial statements include the Independent Auditor's Report, this management's discussion
and analysis, the basic financial statements, and notes to basic financial statements and required
supplementary information.

?8



Harrison Memorial LibrarY
Management's Discussion and Analysis, Continued
For the year ended June 30,2014

Financial Analysis of the Library as a Whole

Assets:
Current Assets

Total Assets

Liabilities
Current Liabilities

Total Liabilities

Net Position
As ofJune 3A,2014 and 2013

Increase Percent
2014 2013 (Decrease) Change

s 662-369 $ 614.752 $ 47,617 8oA

662,36e 614.152 47.617 80

OYo
jYo

Net Position
Resfficted 46,852 46,852 - oYo

Unrestricted 615,517 567,900 47 '617 8y'
Total Net Position 662,369 614,752 47,617 gyo

Total Liabilities and net position J--6A369- J---614J52- J---41,61J- 9yo

This schedule is prepared from the Library's Statement of Net Position, which is presented on an accrual basis

ofaccounting whereby assets are capitahzed and depreciated.

NetpositionatJune 30,2Ol4,of $662,36g,consistedprimarilyofamountsavailableforoperations.

1q



Harrison Memorial LibrarY
Management's Discussion and Analysis, Continued
For the year ended June 30,2014

Financial Analysis of the Library as a Whole, Continued

Operating expenses:

Program revenue:
Contributions
Grants
Charges for services

Total Prograrn Revenue

Net operating expenses

General revenue:
Interest

Total general revenue

Increase in net position
Net position:

Beginning of year
End ofyear

Operating Results
For the year ended June 30, 2014 and2013

2014 2013
1,214,848

1,245,',785

15,600

1,225,641 $

1,261,385 1,318,504

(92,863)(46,537)

1.080 1,.!. I )

1.080 1.273

lncrease Percent
( Decrease) Change

1,296,356
4,0s0

18,098

( 10,793)

(s0,s71)
(4,0s0)

-lYo

-4%
-100%

-14%

-4%

-50%

-1sYo

-15%

-49%

0%
7%

(2,498)

(57,1 i9)
46,326

(1e3)

(1e3)

(46,519)47,617

658,911

94,136

564,715 94.136
106,528 658,9 i 1 4-t,611

ln fiscal 2014, progtem revenues were primarily from contributions, which consisted of $1,245,7 85. General
revenues were primarily of contributions from the City and the Foundation as well as CLSA grants.

The following is a graphic illustration of revenues by source for the year ended June 30, 2014:

Revenues b.v- Source

Contributions
$ 1 .245.785

98.68Y.

Charges for
services
$ 15.600
1.2404



Harrison Memorial tr ibrary
Management's Discussion and Analysis, Continued
For the year ended June 30,20L4

Financial Analysis of the Library as a Whole, Continued

Operating ExPenses
For the year ended June 30, 2014 and2013

201320t4
Operating expense:

Library Administration
Documents and books
Equipment
Cataloging and programs
Information techno I ogy systems
City staffing agreement

Total operating expenses

39,618
178,052
24,9s0
21,910
18.428

93 r.890

41,006
713,216

17,684
19,211
29,069

945,455

s ( 1,388)
4.836
7.266
2,699

( 10,641)
( 13,s65)

j_a_O,?e)-

lncrease
Decrease

Percent
Change

-301o

30
41Yo
140h

-37%
-10

-1y:ot.214.848 1,225.64r

Operating expenses in the amount of $ i ,214,848 were split amongst three major categories; city staffing
agreement, documents and books, and administration and operations.

The following is a graphic illustration of operating expenses fbr the year ended June 30, 2014:

OPERATING EXPENSES
Adrninistrarion and

operations
$39.6 I 8
33%

Documents and books
s178.052

14'70/o

Cataloging and
proEalns
.$21 910

xt



Harrison Memorial LibrarY
Management's Discussion and Analysis, Continued
For the year ended June 30,2014

Financial Analysis of the Library as a Whole, Continued

Analysis of Net Position
As ofJune,2Ol4 and 2013

2014 2013
Increas e

(Decrease)
Percent
Change

Net Position
Restricted
Unrestricted

Total

$ 46,852
615,517

g 662,369

46.8s2 $ -
567,900 47,617

$ 614,752 $ 47,617

oy:o

8Yo

80/o

The change in net position of $47,617 is primarily due to program revenues exceeding program expenses for
the year.

The following is a graphic illustration of net position for June 30,2014:

Unrestricted
$61s,s 17

93%

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR'S BUDGETS AND RATES

In considering the Library's Budget for fiscal year 2013-2014, the Board of Trustees and management used

the following criteria:

The key assumptions in our revenue forecast were:

l. Interest earnings should be approximately the same.
2. Program revenues are expected to be approximately the same.

Continuing items specifically addressed in the budget were:
o Concern over economic budget reductions from contributors, especially in the Foundation

category, and avoiding further excesses ofservice costs over revenues.

X2^'-



Harrison Memorial Library
Management's Discussion and Analysis, Continued
For the year ended June 30,2014

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR',S BUDGETS AND RATES' Continued

The adopted budget for the new fiscal year of 2013 -2014 was $31 5,950 and is summarized as follows:

Percentage
Change

Administration
Telephone
Contracted sen,ices
Professional DeveloPment
Supplies
Postage
Facilities Maintenance
Do nor A ckn orr"'led gement
Bank charges
Documents
Contingency

Total Adrninistration
Documents and trooks

Main collection
Reference collection
Youth Services collection
Local History coliection
Professionai co Ilect ion
Serials

Total Documents and books
Equipment

Maintenance
Other pro les s ional serv ices
Small tools and equiPment
Capital outlay >$5.000

Total Equipment
lnformation technologY s Ys tems

Small tools anC equiPment
Support and maintenance
Telecommun ication s

Software
W ebs ite maintenance/enhancement
Capital outlay' >55,000

Total Information technolgy s ys tems
Cataloging and programs

Material processing
Library cards
L,ocal History programs
Youth Reading Programs
YS Summer Reading Program
Teen programs
Adult programs
Contingency-

Total Cataloging and Programs
Total Budget

l.6Ya

t zs- t a+ 1.20

-2.1Yo

FY 2014-15

$ 9,566
l7 -170
14,545
1 1.000

1,250
500

1,000
250
100

FY 2013-14

9.050
17.365
14,398
1 1,000

750
500

i,000
300
150

5.7Yo
-1.1%
1.0,h
0.001o

66.7vo
0.0o/o
o.00

-16.70
-33.3%
r00.0%

55,381

r00,399
43.530
t 9,000
5,000

300

103,384 -2.99/"
38,500 t3.1vo
19.000 0.00
5.000 0.0Y.
300 0.0'h

51354

12.000 0.80/0

14,700
600

12,320

27.620

r 1 <1<

1 1,550
1,810

850
2.185

28.920

14,000
400

14,192

,a <o,

17,800
12.000

1,700
725

I.585

33,810

5.jYo
50.0Yo

-13.20
0.00h
-3.4'h

-29.6v,
-3.8Yo
6.5Yo

17.2Yo
37.9y:o

0.0Y"
--------@

9.000
600

2,000
5,000
s,000

600
r.500

9.000
600
2s0

5.000
5,000

600
3.750

0.oo
0.00

7O0.OYo

0.00
0.00/"
0.ooh

-60.o.h
t00.oo

23.700 24.200

s 315,9s0 $ 319,?99 -1.00



Harrison Memorial LibrarY
Management's Discussion and Analysiso Continued
For the year ended June 30,2014

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR',S BUDGETS AND RATES, Continued

1. Administration - Shows a combined increase of approximately l.6oh. which is due to anticipated

operating cost increases.

Z. Documents and books - Show a combined increase of approximately I .2o/o due to an increase in costs

of materials and services.

3. Equipment - Shows a combined decrease of approximately 3.4o/o due to fewer anticipated equipment

needs for the fiscal year.

4. Information technology systems - Show a combined decrease of approximately 14.5o/o due to a

reduction in the need for new equipment or enhancements to website.

5. Cataloging and programs - Show a combined decrease of approximately Z)Yo due to a decrease in

program related costs.

The following is a graphic illustration of appropriations for 2013-14:

Budgeted Expenditures
Information
technology

systems 28,920
9.2o/o

Cataloging and
programs 23,700

7 .5o/o

Equipment
2',7,620 8.7%

Documents and
books 178,184

55.70h

Administration
55,381 17 .50/o

Contactins the Library

This financial report is designed to provide our customers and creditors a general overview of the Library's
finances and to demonstrat" it . LiU.ury's accountability for the money it receives and is allocated to it. If you
have questions about this report, contact the Harrison Memorial Library, P.O. Box 800

Carmel, C A 93921, telephone number (83 l) 624-13 66.

1q



This page intentionalll: lefi blonk.



BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS



Harrison Memorial LibrarY
Governmental Funds Balance Sheet/Statement of Net Position

June 30, 2014

Governmental Adjustments Statement of
Funds (Note 6) Net Position

615,622
46,747

662,369

$ 662,369

$ 615,622
46.747

2013

$ 568,00s
46,747

ASSETS
Current

Cash and investments:
Available for operations
Restricted for endowment
Total current assets

Total assets

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

Liabilities:
Current

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Total current liabilities

Total liabilities

Fund balances/l'rlet position :

Nonspendable:
Reuel Bradney Book Fund Endowment

Restricted:
Reuel Bradney Book Fund Endowment -

investment eamings
Unassigned, reported in:

General fund

Total fund balances

Total liabilities and fund balances

NET POSITION
lnvested in capital assets, net

ofrelated debt
Restricted
Unrestricted

Total net position

Total liabilities and net position

q-
662.369 614,752

s 662.36e $ 614,7 52

662,369

$ 662,369

46,747

105

615,517

(46,747)

(1 0s)

(615,s 17)

(662,369)

46,852
61s,517

s 662,369

46,852 46,8s2

662,369 614,752

$ 662,369 $ 614J12::=-

The accompanying notes are an integral part ofthese basic financial statements

8?



Harrison Memorial Library
Statement of Governrnental Fund Revenues, Expenditures, and

Changes in Fund Baiances/Statement of Activities
For the year ended .Iune 30,2014

Governmental
Funds

39,618
178,052
24,9s0
21,910
18,428

931.890

Adjustments
(Note 7)

$

Statement
of Activities 2013

EXPENDITURES/EXPENS ES :

Administration and operati ons
Documents and books
Equipment
Cataloging and programs
Informati on technology systems
City staffing agreement

Total expenditu res/exPenses

REVENUES:
Program revenues:
Contributions:

Carmel Public Library Foundation
Friends of Harrison Memorial Library
Individualsibusinesses
City of Carmel

Cal i fornia State Library
Charges for services

Total program revenues
Net program expense

General revenues:
Interest

Total general revenues

REVENUES OVER (UNDER)
EXPENDITURES

CHANGE IN NET POSITION

FUND BALANCESNET POSITION:
Beginning of the year

End ofthe year

1.2t4,848 |.214,848 1,225.641

39,61 8

178,052
24,950
21,910
18,428

288,062
19,000
6,833

93 1,890

15,600

41,006
173,216

17,684
19,211
29,069

94s.455

281,000
19,000
50,901

945,455
4,050

18,098

288,062
19,000
6,833

931,890

15.600
1,261,385

(46,s37)

r,080

1.080

1,261,385 1,318,504
(46,s37) (e2,863)

1.273

1.273

47.617 94,136

614,752 520,616

$$662,36e$614,7s2

-:

47,617

614,752

$ 662,369

The accompanying notes are an integral part ofthese basic financial statements

flx



This page intentionally left blank,



Harrison Memorial Library
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30,2014

1. ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The Harrison Memorial Library ("the Library") is a component unit of the City of Carmel-by-the- Sea
(City) established and opened in 1928 its Main Library building and expanded services by adding its
Park Branch facility in 1989 by City Ordinance pursuant to statutory authority provided by the
California Education Code, which has the powers necessary to establish, improve and extend library
services to the Carmel area. The Main Library building was designed by renowned California architect
Bernard Maybeck and financed by a bequest from Ella Reid Harrison as a memorial to her husband,
California Supreme Court Justice Ralph Chandler Harrison.

The Library is governed by a Board of Trustees appointed by the Carmel City Council. Oversight
responsibility, the abiiity to conduct independent financial affairs, issue debt instruments, approve
budgets, and otherwise influence operations and account for fiscal matters is exercised by the Library's
Board of Trustees. The Library is a separate reporting entity for financial reporting purposes and the
accompanying basic financial statements reflect the assets, liabilities, fund balances/net position,
revenues, and expenditures/expenses of the Library only and are reported in the City's financial
statements as a "biended" component unit. Blended component units, although legally separate
entities, are, in substance, part of the govemment's operations and so data from these units are
combined with data of the primary government, which for the Library would be the City.

The financial statements of the Library have been prepared in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP). The Govemmental Accounting Standards
Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-setting body for establishing govemmental accounting and
financial reporting principles. The following is a summary of the more significant policies:

In June 1999, the GASB released Statement No. 34, Basic Financial Statements - and Management's
Discussion and Analysis * for State and Local Governmenfs. the Library has selected the single
govemmental fund (General Fund) presentation since this reflects the most concise and easily readable
presentation for the Library's operations.

A. Reporting Entify

As defined by GASB Statement No.39, The Financial Reporting Entity, the Library is not financially
accountable for any other entity other than itself, nor are there any other entities for which the nature
and significance of their relationship with the Library are such that exclusion would cause the
Library's financial statements to be misleading or incomplete.

B. Basis of Accounting

The fund-based financial statement columns (Govemmental Funds column) on Pages 12 and 13 are
accounted for using the modified accrual basis of accounting and reflect balances for the Library's
General Fund and Endowment Permanent Fund. These funds revenues are recognized when they become
measurable and available as net current assets. Measurable means the amount of the transaction can be
determined and available means the amount is collectible within the current period or soon enough
thereafter (generally sixty days) to be used to pay liabilities of the current period. Amounts, which could
not be measured or were not available, were not accrued as revenue in the current fiscal year. The
Statements of Net Position and Activities columns on Pages 12 and 13 have been prepared on the
accrual basis of accounting whereby all revenues are recorded when earned and all expenses are
recorded when they have been reduced to a legal or contractual obligation to pay.



Harrison Mernorial Library
Notes to Basic Financial Statements, Continued
For the year ended June 30,2014

1. ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES,
Continued

C. Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of
revenue and expenditures/expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those
estimates.

D. Budgets

Budgets are prepared on the modified accrual basis of accounting, in which capital assets acquired are

recorded as expenditures and depreciation is not recorded.

The Library follows these procedures in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the financial
statements:

. By June 30, the Board of Trustees reviews a proposed operating budget for the year
commencing July 1. The operating budget includes proposed expenditures and the means
of financing them.

o The budget is legally enacted through passage of a motion during a Board of Trustees
meeting prior to year-end.

o The Library Director reviews all budget transfers and revisions, which are then approved
by the Board of Trustees.

o Formal budgeting is employed as a management control device during the year for the
both funds.

o Budgets for the General and Endowment Permanent Funds are adopted on a basis
consistent with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

The legal level of a budgetary control, the amount to which budget should not be exceeded, is the program
level.

Budgeted amounts are as originally adopted or as amended by the Board of Trustees. Individual
amendments were not material in relation to the original appropriations.

?t



Harrison Memorial Library
Notes to Basic Financial Statements, Continued
For the year ended .Iune 30, 2014

1. ORGANIZATION AI\D SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES'
Continued

E. Cash and Investments

The Library pools cash and investments from all funds for the purpose of increasing income through

investment activities. Highly liquid money market investments wiih maturities of one year or less at time

of purchase are stated at amortized cost. All other investments are stated al fair value in accordance with

GASB Statement No. 31, Accounting and Financial Reportingfor certaill Inu-e:t:nents and'for External

Investment pools. Market value is used as fair value foi those iecurities for which market quotations are

readily available.

The Library participates in an investment pool managed^by the State of California titled Local Agency

Investment Fund (LAIF) which has investid a portioi of tire. pool funds in Structured Notes and Asset-

Backed Securities. I-AIF's investments u.. ,uu;.", to credii risk with the full faith and credit of the

State of California coilateralizing these investrients. In addition, these Structured Notes and Asset-

Backed Securities are subject to market risk as to changes in interest rates'

F. Capital Assets

capital assets are caruied at cost or estimated cost if actual cost was not available' Donated assets are

valued at their estimated fair value on the date donated'

Depreciation is calcuiated on a straight line basis using the following useful life schedule:

Furniture and fixtures 5 to 10 Years
Automobiles 5 Years
Office equiPment 5 to 10 Years
Computer equiPment 5 to 10 Years

2. CASH AND INVESTMENTS

The Library had the following cash and investments at June 30,2014:

Not rated Fair Value

$ 439,006 s 439,006

222,914 222,914 222,914
460 460

FDIC/
SIPC insured

[,ocal Agency lnvestment Fund (LAIF)
Cash deposits
Petty cash

Total s 222,914 s 662.380 $ 662'380



Harrison Memonial LibrarY
Notes to Basic Financial Statements, Continued
For the year ended June 30,2014

2. CASH AND II{VESTMENTS, Continued

A. Cash Deposits

The Library pools cash from all sources. The Library invests excess cash in LAIF' The Library

maintains a petty cash fund of $460.

The California Government Code requires California banks and savings and loan associations to secure

government cash deposits by pledging securities as collateral. This Code states that collateral pledged

in this manner shall have *,L effect oi perfecting a security interest in such collateral superior to those

of a general creditor. Thus, collateral is considered to be held in the government's name'

According to California law, the market value of pledged securities with banking institutions must

equalat lJast 110% of the government's cash deposits. california law also allows institutions to secure

gou.**.rt deposits by fledging first trust deed mortgage notes having a value of 150% of the

!ou..nn,"nt,s total cash deposits. The government can waive collateral requirements for cash deposits,

i"tri"t are fully insured up fo $250,000 by the Federal Deposit lnsurance Corporation.

B. Investments

The Library is authorized by State statutes and Governing Board action to invest in the following:

. United States Treasury notes, bonds, bills or certificates of indebtedness.

. Registered state warrants or treasury notes or bonds of the State of California.

o Bonds, notes. warrants or other evidences of indebtedness of any local agency within the

State of California.
. Obligations issued by banks and guaranteed by federal agency or United States

government-sponsored enterprise.

o Negotiable certificates of deposit or time deposits placed with commercial banks and/or
savings anci ioan comPanies.

. Banker'sacceptances.
o Commercial paper.

. Califon-ria Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF)

The Library invests in LAIF, an unrated pool, which limits the exposure of Library funds to interest

rate and credit risk by treating all balances as current.

In accordance with GASB Statement No. 31, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Certain
Investments and for External Investment Pools, investments were stated at fair value using the

aggregate method, which includes any adjustments recorded in interest/investment income.

73



Harrison Memorial Library
Notes to Basic Financial Statements, Continued
For the year ended June 30, 2014

2. CASH AND INVESTMENTS, Continued

Investment in LAIF: LAIF is stated at arnortized cost, which approximates fair value. The LAIF is a

special fund of the California State Treasury through which local governments may pool investments'

The total fair value amount invested by all public agencies in LAIF is $64,896,335,761 of which the

Library had a balance of $439,006 which approximated market value and was managed by the State

Treasurer. Of the total invested,98.l4o/o wai invested in non-derivative financial products and 1.86oh

in structured notes and asset-backed securities. The Local Investment Advisory Board (Board) has

oversight responsibility for LAIF. The Board consists of five members as designated by State Statute'
The fair value of, the Library's investment in this pool is reported in the accompanying financial
statements at amounts based upon the Library's pro-rata share of the fair value provided by LAIF for
the entire LAIF portfoiio (in relation to the amortizedcost of that portfolio). The balance available for
withdrawal is based on ih. accounting records maintained by LAIF, which are recorded on an

amortized cost basis.

3. RELATED P.{R.TY TRANSACTIONS

The Library operares under the terms of a 2008 Memorandum of Understanding under which the City
pays for uli lib.a.y personnel costs and the operating and capital improvement costs of the two library
tritOingr. These amounts were reported as City staffing agreement expenses and City building
.*p.n.J, in the Statement of Activities along with the offsetting City contribution amount in program

revenues.

4. FUND BALANCES/NET POSITION

Fund Balances consist of the following: Nonspendable, restricted, committed, assigned and unassigned.

Nonspendable fund balance consists oflnvestments that will not convert to cash soon enough to affect the

.u.r"nt period. Restricted fund balance consists of resources that are subject to extemally enforceable

legal restrictions imposed by parties altogether outside the govemment. Committed fund balance consists

oiamounts that can only be uied for specific purposes pursuant to constraints imposed by a formal action
of the Library's highest level of decision-making authority. Assigned fund balance consists of amounts

where intent is expressed by the governing body itself or a body or official to which the governing body
has delegated the authority to assign amounts to be used for specific purposes. Unassigned amounts
,"p."r"ni deficits in fund balance as reflected by the necessity to show nonspendable and restricted
balances in an arnount greater than total fund balance. Currently, the Library uses only the nonspendable,
restricted and unassigned categories.

Nonspendable 46,747
Restricted 105
Unassigned 615,517

$_--662369-

7r



Harrison Mernorial Library
Notes to Basic Financial Statements, Continued
For the year ended June 30,2014

4. FUND BALANCES/NET POSITION, Continued

Net position consists of restricted and unrestricted amounts. Restricted amounts reflect balances which

cannot be influenced by the Library Board of rrustee's action, such as the investment in capital assets

net of any related debi or an endowment. Unrestricted amounts reflect balances available for current

oPerations' 
Net Position

R'estricted s 46'852
t-..lnrestricted 597,900

Total J--644152-

5. INSURANCE

The Library is covered for risk of loss through the City insurance programs, which are premium based

insurance policies for general liability, property and worker's compensation'

T



llarrison Memorial Library
Notes to Basic Financial Statements, Continued
For the year ended June 30,2014

6. EXPLANATION OF DIFFERENCES BETWEEN GOVERNMENTAL FUND BALANCE
SHEETS AND THE STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION

,,Total fund balances" of the Library's Governmental funds of $662,369 remained the same as 'onet

position,, of governmental activities reported in the Statement of Net Position because a difference

would result primarily from the long-term economic focus of the statement of net position versus the

current financial resources focus of the Governmental funds balance sheets. The effect of the

difference is illustrated below:

Balance Sheet/Statement of Net Position

General
Fund

Reclas s ifications
and

Eliminations I
Statement of
Net Position

Assets:
Cash and investments

Total assets

Liabilities
Accounts payable

Total Liabilities
Fund Balance s/I'{e t Pos ition
Total Fund balances/net Position

Total tiabilities and fund
balances/net Position

$ 662,369

s 662,369

s 662,369

662.369

662,369 662,369

$ 662,369662,369

, Whe, capital assets (land, buildings, equipment) that are to be used in governmental activities are

purchased or constructed, the costs of those assets are reported in expenditures in governmental funds'

However, the statement of net position includes these capital assets among the assets of the Library as

a whole. Long-term liabilities iuch as compensated absences are not due and payable in the current

period and theiefore they are not reported in the government's fund balance sheet.

-

7u



Harrison Memorial LibrarY
Notes to Basic Financial Statements, Continued
For the year ended June 30,2014

7. EXPLANATION OF DIFFERENCES BETWEEN GOVERNMENTAL FUND
OPERATING STATEMENTS AND THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

The,,net change in fund balances,,for Governmental funds $94,136 remained the same as the "change

in net position" for governmental activities reported in the Statement of Activities as there were no

long-term assets or f,abilities for the Library. The differences would arise primarily from the long-

term economic focus of the statement of aciivities versus the current financial resources focus of the

General fund. The effect of the difference is illustrated below:
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in

Fund Balance s/State ment of Activitie s

Reclassifications
and

Eliminations I

E)PENDITURESIE)PENSES :

Administration and oPerations
Documents and books
Equipment
Cataloging and programs
lnformation technologY systems
Ciry staffing agreement

Total expe nditures/expe nses
RE\/ENUES
Program revenues

Contributions
Charges for services

Total program revenues
Net program expense

General revenue
Interest

Total general revenues
REVENUES OVER (UNDER

E)(PENDITUR.ES
CHANGE IN NET POSITION

1,080

47,617

FUND BALANCESTNET POSITION
6t4,752

General
Fund

Statement of
Net Position

931,890

1,214,848

s 39,618
178,052
24,950
21,910
18,428

931,890

1,214,848

1,245,785
15,600

7,261,385
(46,537)

39,618
178,052
24,950
21,910
18,428

1,245,785
15,600

1,261,385
(46,537)

1,080
1"080 1,080

47,617

614,752Beginning of the year
End ofthe year 662"369

, Gove.nmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures while governmental activities report
depreciation expense to allocati those expenditures over the life of the assets. Additionally,
gor"**"rtal funds report compensated absences as expenditures while governmental activities
iecognize the long-term nature as a liability, the change to contracted salaries and benefits reflects the

change in the long-term compensated absences liability from the prior year.

(



REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

%



This page intentionally left blunk



Harrison Mernorial Library
Required Supplementary Information
For the year ended June 30,2014

Budgetary ComParison Schedule
General Fund

For the year ended June 30, 2014

Budgeted Amounts Actual

Variance
with Final Budget

Positive

l-Einut- riout Amounts (Negative)

Budgetary Fund Balanceo July 1,2013 s aruJsz $ 614,',752 $ 614,752 $

Resources (inflows):
Contributions:

Carmel Public Library Foundation
Friends of Harrison Memorial Library
Individuals/businesses
City of Carmel

Grants
Interest
Charges for services

Amounts available for appropriation
Changes to appropriations (outflows):

Administration
Documents and books
Equipment
Cataloging and programs
Information technologY sYstems

City staffing agreement
Total charges to aPProPriations

Budgetary Fund Ealance, June 30,2014

I 8.100 I 8. I 00 I 5.600

1,900,229 1,920,229 1,8'17,217

54,5 13 39,6 1 8

178,184 178,052
28.592 24,950

24,200 24,200
33,810 33,810
966,177 986,1'17 931,890

t.285,476 I.i05.476 1.214.848
._ ryl:L r j11?s3 S 6A369_

280,000 288,062
19,000 19,000

1,200 6,833
986,177 93 1,890

1,000 1,080

21,910
18,428

280,000
19,000

1,200
966,177

1,000

54,513
178,1 84
28,592

8,062

5,633
(54,287)

80
2.500

43,012

14,895
132

3,642
2,290

15,382
54.28',1

36,341
6,671

-

/p



'lhis page intentionally lefi blank

/0/



rr)rON
ce

oF
o
@
(a
cf)

@(ool
N

(f)
$\

ol-o-
r-
CO

(\l
El.6
sa

l
r:..ii

oo)
o)-

(o

o(o
s"ro

f-
cf)
(f)

roo-
f-

(o,
$1
4t:
rf,+''1,-:.
1:,1'!:1.

+lr,

cr:Nl\
co(o
t].:::: :|

ro
CD]Ir
I\

roN
ro-
o)(o

$
cf)
oq
NN

o)(o
o-

O)

e.iN

6),'
Or:*r.
N:
(D.
.|,',)

't:.1..:
C,i):,h,t:
F-er.

6)

r\

NON
lo
@

NNtr)
Ntr) F

G'o
C*)

-

rOF
,.9
,.c,
L

loNo"
N
cf)

t$O.oN

No
@_

f-o)o'l
ro
co

'@l
(o
--io)
oo

..]
:t, t::

F-

oN

roN
oqs

N(o
N

@o
@_
|r)

!F!:]i.o;
O):$r
lj:.'::

CD:
F.?
IY(I)l6t
F.

stN(0
f.-,

(f)
cf)o.
(o(o

o$\
N

N
cf)q

N
Or-oN

No,r
$o CO

$
$$ N C)rlo

or,
,;, :,1

t\!.;o
N

'o
:]E

o
;1r lE

r
|r)
@-
N

ro$
co-

(o\tr
N
co
ca-
(f)

tt!ro
r$to-
N

$
O)c)

O)f-$
c{r..
(.v);t,
ca.
,l;ir:ir

itr.:

l:.,o,(l':
:F,Ft
,t',11:,',i:'.:

€\i
@

.: .
,,1.,,:i'.

:Sf,
11o

o)(o
Ntr)

oN
ao^
ri-

c')
o)Nl-

NN N o
co

o l- t0 \fe.o)
1.,:
F

@(e
o)-
N

(o
LO6.

o
(Y)

rf)r\
ry
(f)

6)'.o)

@

N!o
ro.
N

O)s
(f)

(f
c! Nf-s

i!),
o),
C9i
c'i
:,,'::;

I l'r:r'

N
O)lro-
F:!i

N
@\ro

o
O)
@-

NoN
O
@(o-

l-.
rt'l i.

N NN CO
C!

C\ @ (o

.o
,tE )

., tr
't(!:

:1():
:,"O
:lED
::: (i
.lr0.r
l'g'

o::,o;
oF

loN
rfiI

(o
\roI

G)e
co

oi-
\lI

(9
0q
G)t

({)(0

I

N\o(\t
I

coq
N

I

u)(0.
c,
':r. t:::
.,.t'1.

u,ro
rF.l

(nq
to

I

o)
r+

I

(0
a
COI

(0
ato

I

:!t
:oc(,.6
't:,,$i
rl:6,
.::.o:: (l'6
,E

G:(f

o
G

roottI

r+
u?o

a

o
oqoNI

G'(a
u)

I

nlo
@
,C.Q

:iii!F
,, 1

F
0q

\-

:'-"
i ;ri

't:1,

z
O'
li:<JDo'u
o

otro
o
(Eo
(U

F
o
G,

(,
o
1'

co.F
.o
tL

C
,9
oiI

I

oz

aoC'N
(Eo(o

oo1'

=.oE,
J

!:!.:
:lEiJ
F
O,
t=-zo
F;(.J:3od
5:
FjJ
=o.<

o
o
o(go
(!
F
o
(E

oL.
5
o
=
o
a

c
.o
.o
TL

c
.o
oiI

I

oz

aoC.N
(o(,
(5

ooio
:
.9!
J

ji.:J,
Fo
tJ-
72.o'
F(;l:,J
(),
E
o.
IIJJ
l='
I ul'l),lfta

-r,
Fo
F-
Z,
Ol
tr<,J5
O
E,6

:r.i,
,:.:..:

:o
oio.
J

:,E
l]oE
,O.)rt-.o,o
"'o't

+,

oo,
.9,

iro
':(!',
o-

o:
.c

=J()
J
I

o
.g

=Jm
oc(6
mvL(5
o-

Lo
.U'I
Eoo

ooo
ooo
z
o)a
-
Jo

: :f:l

ri.r3<Foh,
,H
:a'E.r'
lo
W,IFt<
lo-,

zo
F<tFg
g
tJl
0t

i. :,z
lc
ItrIFt<la

a
Lop
aoE
(E
o
U)

Ios
I

-o
o
EL(6o

o
cop
aot
=o
o
o
co

oc
0)p
aot
o
oLo
Co

ciLoo
.CCf

aE
(E
O
o.=o

U)
o
3oLl-o
m
o
-go

J
hol-zo
F
trF
9,o
IJJ
E,

ii',il:uloJo
ot
(),
lto
+'J,
IFtoIF

t-to
o-
1Il
u,

J
IFzo
=g)z
t
t
m
J



fa

o
cf)\
(f)

oa
E.fo.F
o)({}
:l:'.iai;
triri:

':.

NN.
@

cf)$
Co-
1r)f-

r-$(o"
$

F]'=(
f;,
'@,6D,:,:.
:t':r,;

\t
@ o-l:

O)(o
O.

o oN(o
o)
@
(f)

cf)
O)-
(f)

@s(o_
Nlr)

o(o
@s

oFo
FN

o
>

,i:.!2

tt
c\l
ro
(f)

loo
--

(9.rf
co
(o.
!9

(0
O)
@-
r.C)

(f)
o)
co-
N
f.*

CO
cf)o)
co

ot,NN
$to)

O)\t too
-

@\to"
o o (,)N O)l-

\
(f)

(f)

co-

o,
O)(o

l.C)

cf).
N

(oo:s
@
iI

.ro;
,=
:.oI

@tr)s-
cf)

(f)\t r:o.
.lJ)
fl)-
:,,,,:,

ro
(f)
o.l

sN(o-
(o

(f)
O)

(\
r4tqo

s (f)
$ o) o o o)(0 @N(o

@f.- C\f- Noo-
o
oo.i
!F

to
r=,o
,:lF

(o(o
s"
cf)

o)(o 1O
colo-
(Y)
.i,".'

O)N
a"

loro
CA
(o

oN
rF
C',(D
F

:. .r:

t ct)(o No6l
o o o

cf)
(f)

roto cf)(o O)
(f)
O)

o
@(9-
F

:1.::,:

oq
(o

I

r)I
-clI

o)q
lo

I

$lot
(Y)

I

(onl
lc)

I

I\
!o.(9
.I

t\q
sfI

(Y'
I
-$t

I

(0
ol
FI

o
o:ft

oqoo
-I

$
oq
(l)(o

I

N
oq
CE

I

(Y)
e?o(\l

I

$ta
C\
GI

(Y)

F.
F

I

$to
(a
!!
. ,.1

C,t
Lu!oEi;,o
]m'l-
0,z,o
.F
:J3o|tIo

[u:
O.Z.
ril,
l9''
'4",lll,
'ft;,
ll,'o
lu
,0,
il
.f!-,

(Eo(/)
I

o)

I

of
0)
E
(!
O

::tri,it:l
:i:l:l:

,t::, :l

:,i
J
<.,|-o,lraFz
lrJ
.11
.o
UIt&

@o
o
Pc)o
O
o
0)
co

o
.C
o

c
Jo
c)
ot-o
Co
=Eq)
(!
oo
o()
.C

=

@
0)EoO
o.
N
o
o

:i{,l=o'
F"toFz,UI

6a
.gJEr'.t'zo.,2

'a
ul'(),
,E,.E
l,tJ
o,
O,
IIJi&
l--l=lo

l:a:,:::

.:'.' ',:
''i:j::: 

',ri..
>,t'
o,l-ai

=J.<(J'

l'9

EoEE
U'
E
o)
=
(g
=.go

E
o)-oE
a
Eo
=(!o,-a
!
o_

ooc
(U'lf,
Co

a
E(5
(,o
o_

a,'J"J
'(,'(r.
,lll
2,.o
cLll!l
lu.rll-

va
o)o
o
o)o

=oa
Jo

lt
tJ)oo
io
.oE
EooJ

.Y
@q)o
o
(U
)o.=o

aJJ'
o,
uJzo
CL,
UJJ
IJIF
J'
Fol-

o
op
oot

.C(J
c,
o)

o

a
oE
oo
u,t
oz

o
=o

Co
(u
Jol-5

o
o
=o

--a
o)o
ooco
G)
ot

lo
oN
-cf)

(U

FIto
o-
ru
tr.

J
IFzo
=a2
t,
tr
m
-J



(o

rro
,>
,o

(g
J

$N
cf,
@

f-
@
@

N
@o
CA

O)
@t\s

Nl-NN

O)lf)
O)6

(o
o)
(f)

roo,
cf)rr)

NN.roF:i(\l
.:,.,' '
:' r,

f-l-N
f-
cf)
-

o
F-

.2
F

ro
(f)l-

o)o(os
NNf-N

ooo
@

(o.
lD,l!:
,NN..:a,i:,a

;-,1,::

$
cf)(o
N

ssro$
sf-!o

o
ro
@

N(o
$l(o
!F
'..:.,

No)
(f,

(o
cf)

o
=o(E

ro
@
CO

o)O
cf)

(o
@N

N
@\t

(\ll(o
t!.
F!

COoN
l.r)
cf)

oNtr)
o)
@€

(o
cr)

@

rO,
E
o
F

o(o(o
.t(o
N

LO(o
N l-\t

cf)
N

(ooc! CA
(o
o)$

(0$o)
O)N N

o
E"g(!
o
oE'
G'

,,O'(,
o

:CL
o'
>

oarF
I

(,
\
cf)
Y

(0qo
t

o?
ro
Y

i

99(a'
.r?

:.; ,

:i,li

@
C')

Y
€
C\l
C')$

1()
o?
sft+

(\I
N+$I

-o,
c;T
-t:

;,.-,

$tq
t+

(v,
\oI

a
UIfJ
E;.
uJ
U'
EIo'z,
tu'
Ml!:lr:
IUt

-ti
oLo
=o

o
o
oo
o
ootr
(I,Lo
ot

lzooo
o()
o
o
ot

Looo
U)q)o'=
1-oa

P
Jo

lzooo
ao
.oI
EooJ

.Y
U'oo
co
(E
)o.=
O

o,2:o
[i-o:
UJi

o,ra,
ur,
rJ,2lll,t:
lJJlirrrl#J,<'Fol+'

t,oLo
=otr
o
o
oo
o
co
t,(!
E
o

ll
U'oo
ooco
(I)
ot

lz
@oo
oq)o
Eq)
U)
-c
Jo

vaq)oto
.U'
-
in()oJ

v
@
o)o
Co
(U
)()
.=o

@',Z
9,F'
trri.:IIJ.

o
7o,
F.<.E
E
'o.I.L
l',2
:F,:,J
t<IFloIF

2;;'

o,J,!tr
t'o
t:lt-
TIJ.Ft'z

U)o
L(5
_o

=t-o
!

o
o
J
o
mo

too.E
(tt
-o
=t-o
o
EI
J
()
mo

!o
ON
;(o
(o

Ftro
o-
IIJt
J
-LFzo
=y1z
t
u,rl
-J



o o o o

(f) @(o o 6
sq

o o o o

N o)$ o o)s

o
6
1*

o
6
+h

o!o,
>'
o,
U'
5,(,

x
,o.=o
EooF
x
o
=(r,
-oEo
E
.C
O

IUoz
oz
IJJFt-
g)z
IIJuoJ
o
J
FoF

lUoz
oz
u.tFF
zul
I,JF
J
FoF

uloz
ozluFF
J
FoF

oF
o.oI

$s6
@

rooq
Nro

(o
N
LOri

$rf)
o_
cf)

cf)
CO

o ro
o
c

(ott+
(0
ro
s,

o(o
-.

(o
(o-
N

o) st
-N

U:I({) (v)q
\t roI\

.o
>
,9
F

t-o)(a
o)

f-N
F-+$

o)
(f)qs

r
q
N

N o)
(f)

oN o)ro O(oq
$F-$

s
(f)
to-

No:
(lI
({)(o
$l

(') rot f-
Cr)

F
fa.s
?:-

N oo
!:

.E
.o
=:o
6.J

N
TOt-

(o
tif
ro"
(f)

(o
CO

ioN
N z

=u?

rf) N }l roNr
O
cf)

toro l-
cf) - rt

F
cf) o{l\ o o

:.i:i:

l.'

tro
=o
.gF

(f)
(f)o

o,(o(o
co

ro
N

N z
=q

s N (9. o,(o Nrr) f- ttor
F6l(\l

c) e (f, G)
@

o o'. 
:,:

ogl
rE-
(E

o
,ogl
(E

c:ooLo
o-
o

14)6t
(0
€6)+

I

o)
foNI

ro
\f

I

6
6
+h

00

@

to
o?
l+

GIol
(l,

(0
c?
lct

oo
ro

I

(0Fo
,t,,'. ,

oqo
t$t
N6t

I
::.:

\lo
o,
Pq€(9
,: ":,:\
:ln':,)

::)l:!

oqo()
I

cr)(y,
fo(?
:,-:t.',..
' ',1
.) t.

F

=Fo

o
E,
UJo
9zotFo
IIJJ
IIJ

oo:)
o)o
Eoo
g
.a

=I

.9
E
o.

G
oF
o

.12

(,
L
tsoo
.9
o
(J
-9lIJ

oo)
lr

=.9
=o-

.o

.,o
1E
',(E
to,
>
.ol
.IED
G
o-
.oo3J
E
tl-
,ig.
,ro
,:oD

(6o
o
o-
!,o
Bo
oo
IE
o-
o
o
.cI
E
=z

=.9
o
o-
!,o;
.9
oo
E,(g
o-
o
Lo
-a
E
z

=.9,

o

c,
oJ

o,
=,d:
e'
(9ot,q
o
lJl
o:
}':E
IJJ
A,

H
O

a
E(!
L
o)oL

TL
0)
E
eo
U)

a
E(6
ooL
IL
(5
ooo
U)
o
L
E(I'
o)tr
o
E
E
Ja

o
=&oot
CL'
:J
F'orF

otr
fi,
oo
o.

oo
GE
o

cot-
=o

Io
E
-oa

CI
=Of(g'6
o)oa(,
.sE
G'o
E.
Lo
E
E
J
U)

iioz
oz
IUFF
Iz
lU
tr.oJ-o
Fo

IUoz
oz
UIF

fo
J

o

UJoz
oz.
ulFF(
=toot,
G.
o
r>,
rj
<.FoF

oo
o
u
lrJ

N
I

ot
tr.olI-o
E
troot
o.

ri,ioz
oz
ur.l-,F
J
FoF

o
=t(9
ot
o-
FJ3o

ut.
o.'z<.oz,
ul:l-.
*:,,

',J(,FoF

o
=tootr
o.z
UJutF

UJoz<oz
uliFFlKJ
F:o,
l-..

lr)roN
-cf)

N

t-to
o-uu
J
IFzo
=9)zg
E,

t
m
J



U'
UJJF
Fol-

o$oN
oo,
@

ro O)
O)q

LO

cf)

(f)
N
1r)

Nt,Or
rfi-i.r.
:::::..a

I

o$oN
s
@

t\
(f)

o)o)
o_

(o|-
(f)

N
(f,
ro

@(o.
(a:
lo

@o?J
:'lll
+y.:)oo
',u,

,. ul.J
F

@o
(f)

o,
r.r)

s r.c)
co

O)
co

(f).f oo
E
O)
(f)

lo(o

-o

o
-o
.c
io
o
_c

ct)
6C
Fd(o

ro
ut
4
.ao..<
.u,
:t=
I IIJ:t

oo(9
(o ro

CA
o)6

(f)s @(o'
LO:::
, ,,,1

i: :ti'

1,.,::::,:

qorr)
@tr)

oN

o)
G).
1()oN'
...
t,:
.:,:i

o
(o
l-
i
co
E

,9,.C
ro6

o

O)

-C
Co
E

.9.
-c
oN

,tu
oz
'<z
IIJ:F'z
<

i:=
:]IJJ
::o'<:m
:<
F
o

";l;

t:":
':.' l '.

(t,
lU
o,
E
lrJo
J
:()
'.2
!r

'o:l!
I-

ci
IIJooJ
F
ooYoo
m

tx
h--<o
o:F
,Or(,'
Z,o.Jio
I

o-

=Jm
-
go
J
.C
(6

-

-
(s

-oJ
-oC
(6
t-m

.:zt-(o
o-

': i',,;jJ
r,r,;,i;l

oJ.
IIJ

a
=IJJl-
-lJ
lElo.F

oJ
uJIo
IIJJtF
J
FoF

:,:

IIJ.(r.2
Z.
IIJt*
=l(
=lUJo
m
F
<:o

.o
o
(U

c,
.o
-o
iE
o
oE([
o
o
oq)

oo

U'o
TD
(u
-o(E
(tro
Eq)

=06

EoEo
coo
.>o
o
o)o
@ol-
o
E.
ao
tr

o
.Coo
G
(!o
o
-o(!io
(6o

M.
0)

=o(6
o

Eoa(oo

ooEo
o
ot

aoo'=
oa
Jo

=5E
.9t)
J

ooE
;l:{:h.ol-

ttr,

ON
-(f)
G

Ft.o
o.
IUu
J
IFzo
=y1zg
u.
tr
m
-J



:o
,>

,aA.a[

o
c.j
@
-

qoo
(f)

qoN
q
@
c.)e{

q
rt

e
l.t
-,t.i
..i.,

f-
CON

rr)
l-N
co

roN oro
@
(f)

ro
F
E

rr)sro(o
oo\r

rritt
CDN'

oF
::.12

rt-.

ooo
oo
(o
O)

oo+s
oo
c.i

olr)
+

'o|r,
(o
:(\l
-lo

!{.
NN

@
co6
(f)

$
-N

@(o
l-
co

o)(or
l.r)

rolf)
cf)

tN
T4'
,(0

Or
,E'
oclJ

oq
o)

oq
NN

oqs
oqo

ooo
oo:
lo:t-t

(o $\r
(f)

l.c)6N
o,N(o

o
ro

o o
lo

o
''E,:o

oo
oi

oq
(o

oq
N

oc6
oq
N

olr)
T\:\t

(o s$
CO

orN
$rolr)

o6l

::::,;

o,$N
(o
N loI\N

..o
,I:iED

-G,

to.iO
,.c,,

IE

oo,L
o;,I.o

.>

o)
oq
o)(v)

I

]\q
sf
00t

oqo$trF

(n
\F6t

I

Nq
o)
@I

,lo.F
.{:,
Q)lq
,-Fj
.,,: ',

o)nro
I

t\q
-

t\q
$lo
\(\

cori
(\I

I

(9-,
$jci
F:'t) .:

,'':I

(\o
FN

I

F$l
(Y)

t

C')
oq
I.-

I

otr
3lo
=tr
UI
IIJFz
=Jo

co
(t
)o
o

ao
.9,

its
C)o

o()
C
0)L
o)
ox.

oq)o.E
0)a
E
.9E
oq)
F

oo
.9t
o)
U)

)o

'itt"

ctJ
Fot-

UI,),
Ro
:8,,
tul>lo

oco
(I,

.ooox.
oL
(o
o_

a)o
-Yoo.Co

q,
IIJotDoa
IUu,J;
<,F
o
,o
u,
lIJ
Fo

a
JoYo
0).Co

th
Jo
-Yo
c)

l-o
.9
Co
oo6
6
oF

uJ
O,f
lL,z'
<:
E.o

ozoEF,
.s_
Y,
C)
iIIJ.

,o,
ILJ
UJo

e(5
L€J
.=(o

ooo.E
0)a
)o

J
FoF

LO

oN
-cf)

(U

l-to
o-
UJt
J
-IFzo
=(!)
zgt
E,
m
J



ot-

(o
c{o)
(o
(f)

N
(f)

CoN

No
o)_

N
@(o
ot

(0
(D,
9qNo.-,
t:.::'l

cf)
F-r
(o
cf)

$
o
(o

No\t
N
O)\I-

F.
o)l
ql_
o'.u).
:'ir j:

1\:NlN
G)lo.F

rorosf
00

t-rr)\
tr)f-

(f)lo\
roN

f.-
(f)

-
of-
or-\tN

o.
F:ilo,
F!. ioi
F_.:
;:.i.
F...it,tf
(o
CD:

9-t\

GO
rG)
f.o

f-NN
cooN

Nl-ro
roro sN (0€r

-:

N
or
NtF

oF
.9EF

(o.t
o-
ro
cr)

(o
l-
@_
rN

(o
N

(o$s-
@
cf)

\f
ro
lt)q)

(o
ro
r
rt
(f)

-(f)
co-
lr)

$
(f)

COo
to_
(o

@lsf,
G)'ot
F

ro
o)
01'
6

sl-o-
Nf-

N(o
co_sN

ro,
o_
r

oo
s_
cf)N

(o
ON

$oN
(o(os lo r

cf)
cotoa
,E

]\tfo-
N

c
co
E
oj.(E

,l

@
CA
o)-
N

(o
ro
co-

o
(f)r

|r)l-
ry(9

ot
CD
F]€

Nroq
N

O)s
(f)

oN Nf-$
c:).
o).(9;
Gr'r):,::
::rj:1.

:iiil

N.o)ro
t=:
F.
,.-,lli

$
€
':,,:;:;

N
@N|r)

oo)
co-

NoN
@
@(o

N c!N coN N @ N(o (\t
o(\
rF

co
=.9
!F

Nq
cf)

N
(f)
@-

-

(ot- o)$
c.i

c,NE€
!o
@o)
c)

(ooto
f*$ rf)

o)(o
60-(9.
Nl
lo,

!F-
sl,
e':r:
F.

Nt\
.!:

$o-
(o

l-N
@.
N

o,lf) @(o
rf)-
N

$ oN (r)
1r)

l.* \r
-

GToF

:o.o
.,tr
ilU
:<)lO.o,
.(E

o.
.e.o
o.
oF

o,q
lot

oN
(o

I

roNo
C')I

ro
lo

I

o)o
I\.t.
t,'i
,'.....:'

r,.:a:r;:ii

t
(v)
c,I

(o
({)
rFrI

roq
N(\

I

o(o
(.o
-I

or
o.-. l.)
iii:
:iri:'r

6o
C't.
';r;t,'

l::l
.

I\o
. f "

(0
E'-t

I

€
e?
to

I

ro()
+I

o?
loI

o)
9l
s,

ic)
.or-o
:riiO:'5
.'r,o
'10

Lr. G
:tO

G.(!.:.6
:.crto

6A

ro$t
o)I

C\
o?

I

c:,ul
c,

t

I\c!
F-I

loq
lo

(DNo
l!
::l :

.o
(v)
F,,l

'..1:

zo
l-
J
ol&
(J

o
o
o
(E
o
16

F
o
G

o
o
E

E
.9
.9
TL

o
oir

Icoz

aoE'Fi
(Eo
G

o
o)E

.9E
=

J.<.Fo,tltzo
l-
J3ot
E
,53
i'o

o
o
(,
(Eo
(5

F
o
(E

o
t5
s
o

-
.o
oiI

Co
.9
LL

IEoz

aoC.N
(oo(tr

ooE

=.9'o)

J.
Fol-,.i
O,
l-.
J3,o
$,
Or
t!.]J
,z'.
IIJ

l3l-'

i'
F
orF
Z,IF
Jf
C)t:
IrJ

o
.to,o
.E
,:o
&
o
o.,o,:o
E

rOo,
:+r,
. o;'
5,
o

IG
lo-

o
.cp
)
c0
J
I

o)
.E

==00

o
L(!
L
co
.Y
G
o-

io
.9.
I
E(JoJ

ooo
a
o)o'E
oa
-C)o

.. ]:j]
a,::.:

J
FoF-
l-o
t_
Z,o
u,l-
r

z
9,
]--r

tFo
6
IIJg
:zotF:{G

o
coEoot
(!o
U)

Io
-C

I

o
6
E
(o
O

a
Cop
ootr
r_
O
o)Lo
Co

a
c
a)pao
x.

O
oLo
Lo

ci
oo
L.E
f

a
E([o
o
=a

a
o
3o
odl
o
o

J
FoF
z.
9,F
tFLoutE

oil
UJoJo
Iot
o
ILo
+tJ
Foh

Fto
o-
IIJu
J'.oI-l-o2ro3
=o)Cvr=--)zs
ft.
uo
=



:.o.F
.,>

o(U
J

t\f-
\
t

to-
@
@ql
(-a.
rl-

N
O)(o-
oN

olr)o{
cf)
@

lo
o_
ro

60o)
ict)
,(,'o
-.

@
00

ro-
l-
Cf)a

o o
GI
CO

o)
@
CO

N(o
N.s

!t(o
f--

(Y)
N(o

o
@
o)-
ro

CDI(\
(o*
(\l(\l

oF
o

lf)f-
00-
@(f)

o
CO

--
rooqo
:t+:

.to
o)_
l-

$f-
Lo-
o)I-

(o
ns

r+
cD€-
Fo.s

(f)to o
cf)
--r

o)
O)o-

o o o)N c!!t
o-
$

cf)
s.

O)c{f-
(t)
co
(f)_

co

N.
F.ro
o)rF

'o
E
o
G

(o(o
$^
cf)

O)(o lf!(9
ryr-
c,:,

(')
c{.rt:

roto(o-
(o

f-oN -o)
o),
N

$ o)(0 c{oN
o o o

cf)
cf)

r.r)ro
(r,(o o)

(f)
o)

@,
@(f^
F

s
o
=o
F

$
cf)
@-
(f)

roN o)to(o.
CA

::::'r'l

@oO
ni

@

l'*

cf)
@\t

(\l
N(0.
o)

$ LON r.r)
o O o CO(o

N
oo O

(f)
@
@o)

rF
@
60

-

o
E"::c

:'iC
,()o
r Ell6

o)(,
o
o-.
oF:'>

rool
(0

I

C\Isl
lo(\l

t

€$)
N,
,:l::

rF
p.
(o
: al.

l\\o)(9
I

(\
c!
ro
C\

I

$
e?
(Y)

I

o
6
:*h

oqoo
I

tf
oq
(0(o

I

(o
ro

I

o
o?
o)

I

q
lt-

(0
1()
(o

I

l{)F
CJ,

I

o
E,
EI

=ox,ilo
_o

o,zo
l-
JDo
E,
o

tu
,o.z,lllo
,6
.lIJu
]Lo
UIo'<,J.TL

(Uoa
Io

P
I

oJo
E
([o

tl:1t
.J.<.i-oFal-zulo6
lUIG

tho
o
cfoo
o
o)
Co

o
.C
o

C
Jo
O
o
o)

o
E
o)
(u
l-oo.l-oo
.s
Cf

U)
o)'roo
Oo
N
o
-Co

J
F=,o
F-
coFz
UIo6
lrJu

Izo'z

a
UIo
5.
E,
UJa
(J
IIJtF5o

E,oF
9,
J
ooJ

!
o)EE
o
E
o)
=E
=.9o

lfoEio
o
E
o)
=
(tr
.9
@

o-

oo
GEC
0)

o
E(6
oo

CL

aJJ<o
IJJzo
&,
IIJJ
IJJI.

-Yaoo
aoo

=0)a
Jo

-vaorf
-o
,9
:E
Eoo

Looo
co
(5
)o.=
O

aJJ
o
ulzo
o-
UJJult-
J
FoF

o
op
ooE

(J
(0o
=o

o
trop
tt,o
E,

ttroz
otsa

co
(5

=o.=
C)

a
o
=o

Jo
o)o
oocot-o
q)t

Ftro
o-
lUt
JLo
Il-o2togEo
cD=-.az
t
tro
=



o

o
_5

s
cf)oo)

oN
oo6

l-
O)N(9

o)l()
@
LO

(o
N
oD,I\sl
..'l,i

.:. )l
r':f.r

o)
@o)c{

o,f-(o
O)

l-$s
O)roro(o

\fr-(o
o)N

so
CO

cf)s

o
.9

cr)so)f-

@
(f)
o)$

(o
O)N

Nl.f)
@

CA.t
@N

rolo
@
$

ttr)o(o o
O)

sr.
,F.(D
N.
F

(f)
Ntt

slr)

tro
=o
G

o(o(o s(o
N

ro(oN f-$
o(0(o
F

co
c!

(ooN (o (o
o)$

(0$o)
o)N N

co
=o
F

@(o
ro

o)N
cf)

st
F

Nro
]N(0
,[c).
F.
.:.:':::

''),',,..

o)oN cf)
r
cf) o

ltr)
,(\1roor

s
c{)

@

o
C,
t!
o.o
'o.c'

o
r,g
oo-
o

@q
N

I

ott$I

(o
u?
r

T

l\c!
(o
$I

€o
0?
-,l

€q
T

!+
0q
o)
Y

lo
a?
lo
(Y)

@
u?()
st

I

lf,,q
Fsf,:l

tr
o;
(Y)

o)q
t\

U)
,u.to
t
UI
,o
.IIJotZ,
UI,u
uJll
uJE

ii
Eo
=o

o
o
oo
o
oo
oLo
oE

lzooo
ooc
o)l-o
o)&

-Yaoo
ao
.9
zoa
5o

xaooto
.9I
(uoo

lzooo
co
G
Jo.=()

tttz
Oltro
UJ3o:
IJJoz
liJ,E
uJ,

IIJ
t:,
;I
Fot-

t,oLo
=o

U'tr
.9
oo
o
o
(E
E
o

faooo
oog
0)
o
0)E

Jaoo
aoo'=
!-oa
Jo

-Yaoo
eo
.9t
(!oo

Yooo
Co
o
Jo.=o

U'
Z,o
tro
IJJ:fozo
F

=E
,olLz
J<Fot-

z<oJ
ft
Eo
Ju
IUFz

U)o
(E

_-o

t-o
o
o
J
O
mo

a
0)
Lg
-o
=o
o
Eot-
J
o
mo

ro
oN
o
(f)
oE5-)

Fto
o-
UI
M,

J
IFzo
=?z
t
tr,o
J



!o @o o @o

s lo(o o ro(or

N o)t o o)$

l-o, o l\o,

€
t\Fi-N
\$tro

o
6+t

oFo
U'q,
5o

x
o.=a
Lo
0)F
x
o
=a
_a
o)

==C)

IIJoz
oz
UIFF
t!)z
rut,oJ
o
Fo

uloz
oz
UI]-F
z
IIJ
uJ
F.

Fot-

IIJoz
oz
l,rlFF
J
l-ot-

oF
o
IUJ

l-l-
@o)

cf)No-
t-lo

!t
N(,)-
lo

@o
Cf)-
cf)

(f)
CO N ro

o
o-

lo(a(o
rot(o"
F

l-l-
N.

NNq
$l

o l+
(Y)
ol

@
c')

(o
No-
-

\t loN

oF
p

o)NNo
l-()
$-
@
$

r\$Ns
@
cf)
@-
N

(f)s NN lo
(9.-

.t(o
O.

o,(,)
ro

cf)(o
(o" o

ry
It(o
0q
N

o) lo!t
F

o,
cf)

Ni(trlo
-,

(f) oo
f

.tro
=oI

(f)(a
@

o,(Oq
ct)

o rorN
N 1

q
t N @ O)(o Nro rNN

$o loNc)
o o cf) (9€ o o

!

o
=o
!E

N
cf)
@

o
cf)l-
(f)

OoN
r-NN

N 1
q

lt N (9 $ loN o)Nr
O)o) @$lN

..::

o o N (o
fi,

oo)
q
o
o,gl
tE
coo
oGoF

(0
u?
cY)

C\o
lo
-t

-a?
fi,N!

(\
trF

a

o
c?o(9

(o\t
N(?
oN
iiiri:

.,.:.

.,::1

ro
a?
u)

t\q
lo

I

C')o tog)
to

t

oo)
rF' !.,

!11

oqo
I

(D(o
t\i
1l)

(v)q
N

(v)
19:
lo.
$l

, .:;

oero6lI

(r)
c).
cl,
(Y)

:, l.

:,ll-r

F

=Fo
-oil.
ulo
ozotFoulJ
IIJ

oof
o
o.

oot
G
.ct
JI

o
E
o-

t
oF
o
.o

o
(r,o
U'
.9
o
oo
lu

oof
IL

=o

o-

::li
6)
E'I(g
o

o
c,l(gI
.clo
3
J
=
o'
q)
of

Go
oG
!,o
Bo
5
ooo
G
o-
o
o.o
E
z

.=o
=oo.
o
=.9
ooo
G
o-
o
o
.ct
E
z

o

o
E

o

::':!:

.:,.:

o.E
too
E,
o.:
ouIo'
=.E
ulo:
F"
=o
>.

o
E
(E

ooL
o_
o
E
toa

a
E(5
tr,oL

o_
(u'6
oo
U)
oc-o
(o
q)t
Lo
E
E
fa

o
E
troot
o,
J
Fo!-

otr
(g

ooL
o.

oo
(t,!l
o

H
o)L

=o
I

0)
E
-o
U)

.:
LoL

=O
I

(5'6
q)
cra
o
.sE(!
0)
E.
Lo
E
E
J
U)

tuoz
oz
IU
F
g)z
utto
o
J
Fo

iri()z
oz
UJ

F

JDo
J

oF

IIJoz
<,oz
IJJFF

=tooEGo
'::
J
FoF

cnoJou
tu
$t

I
o)
Eolr
o
=too&
0.

l!oz
oz
IIJl-F
.J
Fol-

o
=u.oot
o-
FJ:)o

ul:
Qrz
,<'o,z
lrlF:iFr<
J:<
l-oIF

o
=
E,
(9ot
o-z
UJ
UJ

IJJoz<ozult-F.<
:J{:Fot-

Fil.o
o-
tIJ
E,

J..,
l-o21g3
=c)C94z
t
t
m

=



:U'ul

,6

N
CA

N

ol-o, C\I
loo
-

Nos
LONro

ro
ltr)
.c\l
ro
,i',

l.: :.

,o
,=tg.F
,o
F

N
(f)rN

cf)
O)N

(os roo
-

(f)o$
$(r)
rr)

Cqr(o
lr0

ao?,
.IJ.,uJ
E

',,.O
::o
,:,{
.:;.ul
I lll:J
'l:t

c{o) o
oo

(o (o f-N c{ cf)
sl

ao
.F

ttr)orr)(o

-o-
o
-o
.=
9o

loo-
l(,(o

o'ur
u.='o
o<
,o.='uJ,,ts

No) O)o O) (o
N N LO$c\l

t:i

co
@(.r-oro

o)tt
oc{

N
COrf)'oN

o
@
@

i
t-o
E
,.h-
N

o

uJ(),z:{z
UJ

,z
,E
,,E
.'u.l
U'

-,8

F
o

to)
-C
Co
E
.a.C
cf)

,a,uJ
o
t
UI
U'.
J
I,z
.L,(J
lrlF

ci
tuooJ
F
oaYoo
m

,r: :ri

lrjF
d,o
oFaoz
:o.J
,o
.J--

o)

=)m
e(!
t-
-o
=.g
(tr

J

-

-([
o
=-c
C)c([
c0
.\a
(tr

CL

oJu.
oE
IJJt-
-J(FoF

ciJul
o
lUJF
tr
J
FoF

IJJoz
zulF
Z.

=UIo
.<o
F
r<o

.o
o.
(6
o
.9
tr
m
o
oE(!
a
Co.E
oo
o
O

ooo(o
-o(tr
(so
Eo
=06

io
q)Eo
o
O
o
ooo
@o
C)V
U)
0)

tr

o)
.c
o)o
(6
o
O
e
-o(6E
(tr
o)t
o
Eo(u
o

ooco
o
ot

aoo
Eoa
-c
5o=JE

Doa(uoJ

oE
J

ooro
T<Fro
li

Fto
o-
IJJt
J,.r,Irl-o21OP
=oo52-
E,

tg
J



o
,o
-5

q
@(')

qoN
cf)

q
$c{

q
@roN

q
o)$

0
o)f
@

$roN
ro
os

lr)
f- oo)o$

(o(o
N $o(o

$(ooN
loo
!Fe

'oF>.:o
.l-

oq
O)

oo
(ooN

oq
(ort

oo+@
oqo

o
:lo"
,ro
'(o!o

o)
coN

@f-
s

oNsN
f-$os

lr)$$ro
@o,s

(Oltr.
O).
.0.,

.Co
E
o

oq
o)

oq
(o

oq
N

oq
@r

oq
N

o
It?t\!t

(o $.f
(f)

or
N

$ro
rr)

o(,\ o)sN
(o
N rI':)

N,6l

'l O,
E
.,o

oq
o,

oqo
ocN

oq
N

oq
(o

o(r,
€Dfi,
.:,:,1.)

1r) o$
(f)

O)NN
o)l-N

a (or\c{
cf)$r

(r)
i?si

o
cD

.o
:()
o'E,a!

io
::P:r
.o'

o
o?
o)c)!

(v)q
rofi,I

i-q
o)

€q
@CII

i-q
€t\I

o)
00
(Y)
--q?
:'::,..1

i:

"i...;a:,:,

,,;, a,

Fo)
la,

I

(0o+
Nq
(0Na
64t

loo
I

(0
q|l
$l
,

".:.'.

:::t:

', 
li

N
oq
CDt

NnNNI

$
co+rF

I

oE'3o
t,
TU
IUFz
Jo

co
(g

o.=o

-
o
.9T
6oo

o(J
Cq)
L
(I)
otr

tl,o()'=
o
U)
6
.oc
l-oo

ao(J'=
0)a
)o

tt,J
F?-
O'l-.,

tu

il.o
,uIIt),o

oco
(o
L

.9.o(l)t
coL#
G
o-

o
Jo.!<oo
o

o
IrJ(J.
E,)oo
IJJ
tr,
J
F
Eo
&,
lrJ

Fo

a
Jo.Yoo
o

a)olzoo
.C
C)

.c)Eo
#oo
o
E
ol-

:::,;:,

tuofIL
=,il,E

ozotF
o--.

Y
C)
IJJ

IIIJ
UJ(t

-
(E
L

-o
='6

(t)
0)o
E
o)a

!

=o
'J'
Fot-

rf)rON
o
co
oc
-)

Ft.o
o-
UIt
J
IFzo
=_)z
t
t
m
J



FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

of

HARRISON MEMORIAL LIBRARY

For the Period Ended June 30,2015



IIARRISON MEMORIAL LIBARY
STATEMENT OF ASSETS, LIABILITIES, AND NET ASSETS

June 30,2015

CURRENT ASSETS
Wells Fargo Checking
Petty Cash Main
Petty Cash Park Branch
LAIF

Total Current Assets

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

NET ASSETS
LAlF-Operating Reserve
LAlF-Equipment Replacement
WF-Designated Gifts

Permanently Restricted
Unrestricted Net Assets
Net Income / Loss

Total Net Assets

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

t48,696.17
260.00
200.00

914.917.t9

1,064,073.36

t.064-073.36

175,t27.25
103,379,77

104.80
46,747.05

340,401.09
398,3 13.40

1,064,073.36

064.073.36



ro
o-
6)
tr)
Gd

6' o F- l^F\ O c.l lr)od o c.i 'lod6 o 6 loo.{ O \f, lNr vi 6i l,.i
IH
I

co 00oeq
ooOON
-0O$l$

ol9l
6l I I I I I I

6l
c0 I

-tol
b0lEI
=Ical

ilaaeliEl=Esl3l*
h o r\ l^..1 O N ln
'-j d c.i 'lx;o 6 lcoo\ o^ n^ lqx = 18

l*

F- Co

o\ c.l
oosl$

<>

oo
c.l

o\

>:

.9o
(U
m
o(!
C)

I

aEeE 9R€6EJ o-=
= x-).=UJE
9uPE crIo t(ls
= o.9
=o6o:ro-.9,tr9t o!$>::E o,yE-

o

o
Eo
$
a

rroil
o\$c..l

O
N

tln
(\tA
or )i

Ee05 .g= E?.3 =,i i * ;'!E-cLo-':.c!i'L'i'iIe: E€#'E! .E
-_9EU;;='i=i.E-!E IiEE:r E;i;? r?? ,OE*si:=i;i EEEEE Efi;i EES
E{EEHfriE E555; iEIi Eti= - v v v .\ v I J I=r.=-====.1 .=.=Et6o====== =*=*E E== ? rrr.o y

"==$+fI=; ==$$; =sE= ==Ei ,trFrn .E ? .E B F EBB: ?6==-+F+-st=?oE Es



rl)
o
st
0)
E,)(!
(L

OI ,^ A A  Ol b"\O' O'.t oo Or rr q: A O q: Q 'n a Q a1 S ootrl5r'-oc.N--OOo-<)c*oOF-F-r)
-l I,=r o o\ ' - I U i; "'i ' ; a ..i s o ; ' Q I I +. + v. srcl o \o rr or ro rr tn N O oo o\ o o\ o v !o Ft ooriil -'l gg=g- ="1 -YlD- I o^9-
gl .i6l v \i v
h0l1fI
=lal

Iloooooooooooooo<>ooool--6-6ooooooooooooooE-E"l I-E I raaaaff Ks=ss$ss I Is888'
= ;"1 i r7^1'r) O C.l O Ol ..l r.) C) cF\ f-- \t $ O \O r) N NE 5l oi J -l ,j { -i ; ; -i c.i c.i od ..i -l -i< cal

I
I
I

t^^Ioooso\ocl-l'-ooorooooo\oa.llosNo\oFrr-'*ooo\.JqqqNN<f,
=l ri o<, ' \o I I c, od di vj c.i ' cj ' .{ c.i ' - o o - ri + FgEl Ds a !8*xla q qa qq& s"qil{

> dl F- 
= 

* sr t e{ * c' ''r
I

I
I

c{hoO'*OOOoO$\ocor-NOOOOTr1
d;ol'd I I I I todo'ud'ui I I tdd t I I rri I I

*vrc.)ON6OOc^v \o a] c.l ca a.l -
ia
ocqal=q,E
=.7

.9o
cl
m
o
(Eo
I

rEpE 9RP6EJ o.5.Efir
O=rtlE qfio (Ur
= aPcOao =o-.9,tr9
= oi
# a,FE,-

o

0)
Eo
(E

a
Lqe6wEE,E E aaa- 'i: .+ qtz E=: E = +3.o '= EE ? L tr; * SFE ^n 3 I nnl ?:qa)E n E ="SE 9.2 rr z .ggE ii ,q

=iEE=sff;Ec 
te=isE*;f=ti= ii

= 

ag E 5F5E E ;;Es I !E 3! E I E f E E f; gf 
E

tl
HTIIIj e rr) O Q O - (.l O O O o o O O O e e O tf) O rO O rn e O Oe1 H - (.l tl r+ t t ia \o F-. € o ca r+ ra \o r.- € € €\ o\ o e : N (') t-t3tt3tttttt55E5E5555558S8ss- \o \o \o \o \o \c} \o \o \o \o \o \o \o \o \o \o \o \o \o \o \.) \o \o \o \o \o \o

\o



(,
o

c.)
0)g)
(E
&

a
={
co\
c..l

0o|r)t-.O c.l C-
Fr-todrs \r) t'-*oOO\v rt v

0rlel o\trl .rSl oic! I a.r
Ca I \o^

-l oolb.ol v.tr1
=lcel

oooooooooQ9?co5. 5-----oqQqoo'=='--oooaaaq.aaci5- -5--oq>oQo'QO('5= --66;6-N Qoco
oi c.,crjrrnanc{$icnNcoa.lN

o o o loO O O IOci o ' d 'loo O t= lF-\o \ ,q loo"tf, tr- lN
- a.l l$

I

I

l=
-t

=$l atr f I (rl< cql rn

I

c\l\coo\ c.l N
c.l t--rlho\$(arr

O' ta)
a.l

cal

oo

t

ia a6'cs eOoAOiOro5\cj;;-F-OSQNo\r-
' : 

=',I 
o.; o o;' ".i q> -: q. 5q S !a,d to io F to 6 r- o N 9.rt - a

ii N c.i rr - ot (\ - vv- v"
v v 

-'i 
!Jcovvv

O\-l-r)cocoO\O\O!-o\$c-n Or i"r co oo oO O t-- u) t-- O N
';oi'c.i "ioi c"i q..i '9o .r.{.t

d ;-i io c-t r.r o\ O r- r- S oo c'l
A^o.f,a'l$$*c.l$-Nc'lN

ooar-ocoloov1 C'l \O or\ 'a) O\ r)
';,,UG;;r,IIdiSO.+<co$c.\O:.N-od-S"

,9o
(E
m
o
Go
I

=,Epct (,9,
€6EJ CL=
.Effr
9uEE trruo (Er:
= o.9tro6o 5rL.9.tret o!(E>!:E o,ytr'

ta-
o

o
Eo
(E

a

n
\O-

$

cO

e.i\ool

8'=Eav,=.-=(, .v,-.QF E Ei Ee
z ig€ E 6 F ! -+.Er 7zE

EzEEEii=c*=ig-sEEEIf,iEgEf* = r E E aE / Er z4Z2z_=====z=2217? t E'i'T'i?B = E??????-?-?3=3===E: = 5Egil.i: 0 6=>===>E>E>Eiii-
=l^tu'|rlr!-!= H B=B=B= E BB=eRB?EH€at=s=3;d==-eaIl-i--FHF--HFielaINt')

- : - I J al N N 6l t\ N Fl al aI N al N t.l t.l N a'l? = 
\o '\o \o '\o \o ?. = 

\d \o \o \o \o '\o \o \o '\o \o \o \o \o \o \c \o
FN

F\OF\O

cao00 cnt.th\oor)oo$
\o
(\
c.)

>d

rn

cl'5qrE
E1



u)
o
\f
0)gl
GL

ot lcEt=K psss;Kr la ?aefrse lg n3 If;lr= HaE!i ;H* 'ln ssxnso la qF u;l s, 13 s,:,l l= |

o o o o o o o lo e o a- - q - q a a .lc o o o
o\ o o o o o J 'la Y-, Ql ' o& - o - - - O !o c{ oin 6 - - \o -- \o lr--^ rI o- oo"

d ..i ,ri -i oi I ri oi c'
oo I c'l

I
I

O-C)N.j a\l O oO
6-Ot-- C-Ocoa.l O\ ci t'-
C>caooN

Il- - o o o o o o oIO O O O O O O O O
; xlo o ' o o o o o o o;ii^looooooooo
=51 orrontr)r)r)-c.)
tr =l\o .+ c. - t a.l c.l (\< cal-

I
I
I

.U'
@
Go
o
(uI

aEps 9A*6eJ O-=
E'I?
EEEo (Er
= o'9codo =o.9.tret cr!<t):-flf

o

o
Eg
sa

=R KsHK6FE lq q6Eq€?
ri od ' ri o cj + -i oi F 'lo v^r h ct \q a 90-roo \d-+-BER lg E=ggNEq -i oo^ o" o^ o^ o" ca- N lc1,.j d S -i d c.i cf FJ l+ ri'r;' odt:

II
I

^?>i

|a
(.l=
o ;,

oo \OO' \o
c.ir,o

^i

oo \O O O\ c.roaa.]oo\o
c.i 'di o'u'i +rrO<f-tr-t*-OOci@*V)
co

c\od<>cicocoIr- a,t an O \O OO oO ttrl(.-r)OO\coooo-OOe-rl$vl .l .l

e ; 2, $.Egi=cc!..* .qi A E.^E, EE U) E-7 Es =t = i:"3 -*E E t
= * E= -'9e iFocE s&i ri i r

==* = 
s€€tEii;r igtlasEfi5 E=i,E

lf5#H;fi;*E5E g HiEE;gEne 
=FEa#

11fr,.r?ii?rEi : 8if ?+?Fi : fiTlu*
=;===R=R==d== i==B==fi== Z====
ca?.if.r+<'<iatn\EF€1r, U . -rn!+ \or-r-co .E ndn'+N.-i''I''|etN*sssss ; g€€E€€EE E =EEG5\o\o\o\o\o\o\ovvvvvE 

g-- 
JvE 

S--'



lo
o
rr)
oo)
G
0-

=ll3l$il
Ola a aOIO O O \Otrlo o o N
:lo cn o 6dlr\ \O trr tr-.calD g g o-
glol
u0l13I
=lEal

o\
c.l

o.l\\o

o\
\o
.T
u')

lo o o ololo o o olo

:slEqEalRtul '{ -lN

rn

ail aui

\o\o.ll
6

o
I'tt

o\$

.9,o
G(n

o(!
C)

I

eEps 9R*6pJ o-=
= X'".iUJE
O=r!,E cfio Gro
= o.9coEo =o-.9tr9t oi(t):I O,Yu-

o

€)
tr
o
(!
U)

rn FyaE; E 9P

Ettg B^^tE*.1 TV =.{0Fl!E;8 
'ETi,AEE= EEgT!ooFZ>1 =J>;';=bX'":-1-g(*€qsE F.:EB+-T?4'N, 1'=i2,h22 !!:EET:-TTo9?Flrrlo

-):.-ol{-.!.-J.eooooo=-\oo;=ra\oF€iltNtetGar-r-r-r-^FF-:\O\O\O\OE=.C\CGfgEg-Er,lEF\O H E E
-o'2



o,
E')
(u
(L

(oq
N
f.-o

(o (v) (f,
qf!c!
O).{NNNF-

(, (f)

(f)

c!
c{f.-(r)

ra, @ o@cDo,q c lqc\s o, NoslNo(\t

o60)o)aqc?\NO$N
oq
o
F-

ro 1(, ro\qqNt$NOO Y\r

tr)c$o
Y

loq
r{.o
Y

r.c)\NN
rr)\(\l
N

OTr)()q\\
olN('NNF-5

(o o (o\ilr)@.+rostF6) (O tf)N@C)l'-O)(ON
- - ddci o.i.t--+F- (') $NF-Nt'-olcoNrO t\

(f)$|r)@tro$NroN@(oF-o)(oc\l
ddcini+-;$tNF-NF-Or@NI r-- r I 

- 
r

(f,
o)
t-
rO

o o(f)o) oo)
- N$F- rlo1l:) !o

o(oqo?
f.- $
- tf)'()

(o
N
6i
F,.
cf)

(oq
olc!

: 3 :!:tr:E !: i ; I i i a -:f HH ,FIICEEEE: EE E= Fuguu EA[ 99 rL z)+ Eh + =l-==!-q== * E * [ * EE-B-& e t9fifi gEH===g== g"d gH ;dPaa sg
; oo ; ;;;;;;-; ; ; ; ; ; eqee ; a5 6- 6 $i(in666<d o E O c-'r o EQb.tr o o6 ai6 o;a4;-;<:= 6 q O O o a!9q9 o (o6 66 o ruiriororo.t<irsru o 6 o N o Q(oaa o N- @6 = adctad(iadid((ib ; 6 F @ - (o(o(o@ (o

oJ
tr!
!
gJIF

rolr)
ooNN(t(ooo
r0(ocro

@+N(no(o(9N

!r)oEo
Cr
(L{

F-

dldtF

oL
uJo
IIJo
l!ll-o

ro lr) lr)ro
o o oo
N N C{C!
o (o (f)(f)c, o o(f\\(o (o (o (oo o oo

:oFzo
F
EtolLz

Ft
oo
E,6

troJ

€
uulY
o

rr) ra) ro rn rf)
o <) o oo(\I C! N NN
(Y) (r) (f' (O(f)o o o oo\\@ (o (o (o(oo c) o oo

$l
F
UJzJ
o
F
oU
F

r(, ()|r)
o oo(\I NN
F' (')(r)o oc)
(o (o(oo oo

(n l.- dCO NNo (o(()(c (o (o

j(,
6,

o

F:: nGl aoco F

:::
av, (o ro rocD o) o)o N (o(o
.., f.- I.- F-

u, rr) ro ra,

ooooN c\j (\I 6l
(v) (o tr, (f)crooo(.Er(o@(ooooo

N
i

-$NOo@o(ooo)orom(9r)

:< -YooQ' q,

oo
-9

FF
=v=vclcoFdl(DF

O o (')-oo o o oom o s ot

Ioo
o
tsJds

: == vdl co coro F

Ioo
o
f --.r

= -: =;:.- vo o tD (Do F

=o
E

(6
tr'a
o

3o
E

p
(!
(L

c
o(,o

Eo

r
E
.cl

-(E.EEpoo9
E .:<',JQl rr E

= 6;c-Ego
(!

0)
E
ll,z

o
Go

Efz

(,
CL

F

=PNh()TFo



t\
O)o,
G
o-

roqotolr,qqq
(,
c\I

(r)
o,+

(oooolqq
ststNtr)(.)(O(\a N

oo
N(o
N

I

oFl(f)qqolot\tou)ro

(.)
ol
sl
tI.)

oo
CJo

oooqq9oroostoo r

oo
CJo

oo,
ois

oooqqollr)CDO,c!tt
(f)

oo)
o,
Y

oq
r{)N
(f)

(.)oo.qgc
t- lD lrjo$lc\t G'CoI

oq
Ir)N(o

I

(f)at-o

O (.) NFq .t qq
o N (f)(o$ o l'.- (r)

N-qoq
(r)(f)
t- (f)tt

ooqcooT$

oo
c;
Y

3o

(\,c'6,

o
rool$

I

<)o
c.i(o
N

I

(f)

ol
$lr)

ooos

:::rir ri, iLL=[s ,IH
(a6O;-tA6tEd =a;; ;;o@oooootfoooN(o-@

: : i :: i : i : : i iE,-OE,O,.EO,-ot=E)E i i EE $ g E q E * E Eete.E.4e,Jo,te.Ee=o-
;3 ;'fl,g ;3 i E ;6 ; d
; o ; ;; ; ; ; ; ; ; ; oO O O ()() O (v) O O O O) O F-o(oooo(I)ooooNoooc>NooooF (O r (O(o (O (O (O (g

:

e.
UJ
@
J
]-t,o
o-
o.
=

fo
E

rc'd
o.

ooo

Eo

q,
E(Ez

t
(E
Llt
-(E.EEpoo9
E .x',iQ) rr E

= 6;trs
.Eo
6I

Fo
o-ulo
uJo
lLlto

Foul
+
-J
Y

(, rO
oo(\a (\
rt sioo(g(ooo

E.
LIoz
d!z
UJ-ofoI

i
EI
UJF
oz
IIJoJo(9

lolr)
oo6aN
oo(0 (ooo

:J
o
@
z
=o
UJ
!F

l., ra,

oo6a c\t(o (ooo
G' (Ooo

()rf)ro(rlr)|r)
Ioooooo$I N (\I N N N

tirt=sftt$c)ooooo(c)(o(0(o(0(ooooooo

::rlO(ONNOOO.)olqF-r-.r(.o(rNfi)O-r)(')

.r< .v .Yoooooo
ooo
999F-JF:FJ

:U-_U=Udld]Fdt(DFocoF

(noo)@eo(*) o

,Yo
o,

o
E'

F
IDCOF

F
TLr
U'o
uit

xot
UJx

la) rf) ()
o oo6' NN
o ooc> oo(o (o (oo oo

::..o d cdo) o) o,o F.F.(" oo

.voo
o

F:: AiE EM E

u)lr,
oo6l Gt
t$oo
@(ooo

cocoN(r, oONc')N

.taoo
-co
tsJds
dtmF

Fq)$
oo(Y) (O

JIoo
oI

F
dtcoF

Io{
61ol

I

EIrlzl
:1rr9o !'1o(J(Y) U)

ttoo
o
E,

F
=vgtoF

tu
CL

=gt.rDlo
I\FO



(,
o,6'o
0.

OFqalr, coo) (\l{
NOO|r)00F- ri tfio, o)N\t$

oq
u.o)*

N|r)
r-
F-

o N F-(OO'6 rl, oos
^i il ;^ic"jr(O$t+N(o

I.- (O O)cqarN(r)
-@$(orr

oroo l{, ro
d 6,i si$ Y$

c)ro
ni
Y

oolo)e-':lotl,lr)r.-t$

o,
rrit

NOOooo
-d'rio) I\ r.-

ood
F-

(.o sl (.)o)\ q qc?
O) -O)o gr (oN

Nc
O)

(o
L-oo

@ sN\ \cO) NIro N@
I

o
E

Ec,o
Lo

o
E

p
Gr

c
fooo

E
0)

=

o
E
C'z

,l
rgl

"l

EI
=lzl

oodo,
Y

oq
N
!+

o)
d$

oori
f..-

(o o)qc?
FO)(.)N

rt c\lF-O
c.i F-N@

::::::::::!:! i::
E, .Et d, i; E,o- g E $, * d, Et.E E,e gf F2 E =B E 5 E i fl E ,l .E2.E ,[ E 'rgH= gEi gi g= gE gp=E ga E
; ;; ; oo ; o ; ; ; ; ; ooo ; a ;o N< 6 NN o 6 o o o o I ry$N Q o Io (fi+ 6 lot(i o a o r o N o cl-(., €, (o I
F (o(o = ci(o + @ a (o (o (o(o(o (o

:o
d.F
o.
o
uJ(,
oz
u.l

d.oJ

od
t
uJY
dI

TE

-a

-(Ucl#.^'E o:ooe
E -r< q,
O) rr E

= U€tr-cgo
([ otoJ

o

1()

oN
F.

@o

o
(.)

j
o
0)

o
E(L

iE

to lr) ro lll l{)
o oo o oFl NC{ Sa N
N F- t- i\ l.-
(o (.o (o (t) (oo oo o o

:

@ rici o oiooF OO O(9 lr)lf) t, F-

.x.Yoooo
oo
EJEJ

--- == nA EE E iN E E

Ir=oL (!
a,,(L

Lo(,
.co
q.s r
ocoF

Io
=ui
.noooo

=
lo !o
ooNN
o) o,oo(0 (ooo

oYooo
o
utotooult

tu

o
l!lroJooJoI

o
x.oJ
(,

uoJ
F
oo
t
uJY
c0

to r()
oo(\IN
ol o)oo.l, (ooo

ro tf)'f) ro lf) u, lr)ro oo o o o o(\I NN CI N SI No) o) o, or o, o, o)o oc) o o o o
(l' (O (O (O (O (O (Oo oo o o o o

r+ coF- ro i @ ro (o(o o \ o(r, (r) F f.- F ra)f., NN r, o (o F.

i<!Jo()oooo()oo
IEtErEr

FFF
== n = ^ = niE Eisx iE 6E iE iEtr

:(, (.)o
FOF'r)

-to
o,

o

inintr

q,
CL

F

=gsrGlo
;jF o



t
o
cD
G'
o.

s@
cci

$
@
cd

(o !t o) roq q a?a
cO rF-t-

CO @ rl.*@q o? qqq
lri or) 1..- $(Oi-$
c\tl

Fr.-@ooro,oiN+r,t

N (q ltrrtloF-\ ol c?aoqqa
() sl (olf)(o(oNtr) (O N|*(OO-t\

$(?)s|r,Ne?90qqq(oro(oclNNF-(ocO-rtt

O N NOO F orco
d 6 -rio ro FtN

(oooqqqvoot.-oorONN

oqooN

F-F)(f).+(O@
cci{+N f- 1..u)tr)

(o(o
+f.-()

|.,t.t
coN

F.a
@
N

F-a
@
N

o
E

t
'6
o

o

ro
G(L

E
0)

0,
E
Gz

i
(E

-ct

-(E,E5poo9E.r)lo;iE
= 6Ec-Cgo
(E
I

o)toa?a
-F-

(oq
t-

(n
ol
$(o
N

NN
,ri
tr)

NOqoqr(o5Y
oo
cic)N

zoN
E

(,
Joo

c.)q<
f.-(,

i
o,
.!E aa
o i-=o-
5 @u)
o ooO F- l'-o ooo oo
r @@

r i :C :

;* E EqEis F BBB2=o- I22)z') I =o=o=o

=; ssggg= g ;^fiE
oo o rooo()o o ooo(f)N o oNro<)co o F-NN
-O O --FN- O OOONO O NNCINN O OOO(O@ F @(O(O(O(O (O(O(o

-:::ild Eg si,6 E,r(!,'YG=(!CltrullolIPrn<Ju,u)o
=J-+Eit6(,6j 
=5 =i =o;o;;;c{ooo@otOOl'-OONO@ooo(o(o(o

toJ
F
od
tr
UJY
.o

tr)lr)
ooNN

(o (ooo

::;ri(rr@l'- (osl sl

u)rou)u.
oooo(\NNN
t\ N l\ i,-
(o(o@o
oooo

Ilosl 53l s
l(olo

I

=1 o,t3
lN

looo

=oo
-jJ
fo

ro
ost

(Oo

@

({)

.to
a,

()
E
o-

i6

Fo(L
LUo
lrJotr
lJ-o

() tr)tr)Ir,
o ooo(t NNN
(o (o (o (oo ooo

ro <>drir rr)(f)N l'- F-c., F- I.- N

l<(J
o
o

JFr
v ==: uF dl coco@ F

:o
UI

od(,
o
-Eo
o-

lr) roro lo |{)tr)
o oo o oo(\ NN C{ NNr
(o (o@ (o @(oo oo o oo

o .+- \l --c (r)S
F fr(, F OO(., OF F, S$

.YLoooo
oo
IJF:tr

O = == O = ==F (n d]ro F d) cOcO

rtrqo(ONNr(Olr)Fcrr$(Y)r)oN

.lt(rooo).c-tro()
IF:trdsf
==-O==glcoFtoro

J
F

@F

q)

F
J
F

@co F

=gc{b
v)
FT\ o



ro
o)o,(,
o-

o\q|r)0NN

\|r)
N

oONN
olorooc{Nro

\r)N
oooo
ro_

o)croacqooo(r)oo lD- r)-

oooo
tr)_

o,ao
C4

o (,) oo)q a c!rytf) O l.- (Oo(9

oo()
o)

oo)c.l c!
N(e

oooqqcololo(ooro)tT

oorio,

oqo(o
$

NOONOO
c.i ci c;t-(0(o(oYtt

oqo
@tt

N\(o
|..-(')

rO 6a O--\ \ cllrlg
o F, $@(f)(.) t- F- o) o(o F)

N60
$@(.il.- o) o

lr)\o
(f,(o

u, ro\\oo
F' (f)(0 (o

lr)
N
o
(f,(o

:,o
E

Ec"6,

o

o
E

c,o

ooa

,lol
=l

::!:!-E
Ei, d ri, ;, E, p E, * $ EE Ei, s s, E Ii,r E r EEF' r E r E r fig ,r E ,r H ,re 3 ! i-^;t e A .e E 2 Y3 e 3 e F ogi g,f;"$ gi gE gfri gi gA g
; o ; ooo ; o ; o ; oo ; o ; o ;o N c Nr.-o o o o lr) o (ro o o o oO lO O OO(o O (O O O (.)\t 6 $ O \t Oo N O OO(o O (O O O O NC{ O N O N Oe (o r (o(o(o (o r @ @(O r (o r @

U)
B
IUz
t
lot
ul
=
lr)
o
N
ao

(oo

:

N::N YF(v)(o(9

Liaoooooo
€CrE

(L<.(L
F.

!0(I]Fsl

o6i-N6tFOFOG'NF'$

.Y .Eooqro
oo

IE-rFr
FF

=U=UOc0FOtnF

F
U'
o
Eo
C)

tolr)
oo6IN
@@
(o (ooo

IUol
lJ-z
t
dt

t,oJ
F
ol,
u
Ll,lc
Iq

:o
oot
ll.
oJJui

=
to()
ooNN

(o (ooo

ral ro r{, ()
ooooC.INNN

F

(o@(o(ooooo

cot!o-
r(o(O(r)oc)o

t.-ocloooo
€FJtrJ

= : nin in E in EE

=ar(Ocoo

j
o
o)to
C'

dlcoF

NlJ
Y
Io
F
z

:dl
ootr
IL
attJ
UJ

=

o
E
(Ez

l-
n
lt

(E([ 'F, ,^'E o:oo9
E -Y'dI rr E

= 6;
3o
L.
(I,

-l*l

=lfl
=l

-l
"l

tFz
lr.lo

loro1(,|{)
Foooo
NNNN \i-F-I\N--(o@@(o
oooo

|{)r)
ooNC{
o@
@(ooo

N:c{X
(Y)@

-voo
o

:v!0coF

Nblo
Er o



(l,
oo,
c,
o-

oq
<)ro
r.()

oqoto
|r)

\too(f)oo
ddc;o) lo ro|{)lr)

O { tf)F@o (v) F- 1..- @
d d oi-diO Ol -N-i|f,

oo
c;|r)ro

rt(o
C;o)

Crr@\\qo)r@F(\lt+

o
C)
C;oro

oooa?qq
oooNOOraru)t()

oqoo
rc)

o)
(t?
o)c{!f)

oo)o,(, F' (O

-do;c{(\NNUrtr)

o)c)
oiN|r)

o)q
NN

O O O o 0-6@ o o la, ll)(ot-
c, ci d - +ri-r'- (l (f)(r,rO(o c{

OF@60Nrd-(f) (9 ro

o6
c;

o
oq
of.-(o

oo)
ciN

o
cqoN

ro
C)
N
@

(oo
cf)(o

()

:lI) rl' (oN+N
COG, F- aO

J-gooo(,
(Jo
e!tr'e
O.SA.
ocoFm

J
F=ocoF

oooq oqooN T.-(o(o

o
co
ci
f.*(o

oqoN

o
o?oN

o
E

tc
E''tro

a:o
E

p
G(L

:i:::::':'
Ei, hh.E si d ri, g e, EE O p6 LL E 6 = 6 - .E ,^ 3 6 ; ErL zzp r! 5 rL E rL ij< 6 l! te ))? s 3 e ?n e =o)E .e. ,7
o iti o I o ,l a *z o d, ,^E ==E E i E Y = d=f, = ;
; ;;; ; ; ; ; ; o",o ; ;o tif\tN o N o o o F-oo o oO F-cO O r) O (f) O O-F- O (f,o NNN O N O (o O ()Ne.l O (O
F (o@(o - (o (o (o(o(o F @

::::d Ei, .ci rn:LfaA.G'D(0;lr;rr
EEEF6=6E
; ;; ;oooo(oo(oo
N()NO(o(OF

:oo
ooo
e.uloo
6

E
ooo

=lol
=l

(t
L
-o

-(E.EEpoo9
Ev^roiE
= 6;trs
8o
L
(E
I zoN

=

!
'tr€o
ffru, 6

oo
rr,tr)u)ro
ooooNNNC\T
r,(o(9(f,(\INNN
Gr(o@(ooooo

:
ooI(Jz
tlrz
o

(,|r)
oo6lNrr@
(o (ooo

u) roro() (, lr)-o ooo o o(\I NNN N N
u) 1r)rr)ro ro lr)N NNN N N\(o (o(o(o (o @(, ooo o o

o r-N- F i6., F)@- o ):1\tNN F !:'o oo(v o (o

ra -looooE-Co(J
€!tr'tr-.;,-L

::: A :  dldrdlcoF(oc0F

@dot*
(f) \F)NMO

: ..Yoooq,oo*€ErC'(Ls(Ls
=a=AIDcOFdldtF

tro
F
od
x.ulY
.0

U) rolo()
Fo oooN NNN
F' CO(f)(f)
N NNN(o (o(o@o ooo

i- 4ri c.i c.jNF OOO(r) 6lOtO

.1(Jo
o

tE
rL

F (E mmm F-

zoN
E

ro
oN
(?
N
(oo

o
E
(Ez

(l,
(Eo

Efz

o
CL

F

=Porbu)Jtr-()



l.-
o,
o)
G
o-

oloqq
$(,(o (,tr

c)r)
+(ott-

oooNra)6ri+'r(o (os$-a-
FF

oq
$(o
lf-

(f)c!
r)
\f

z
r!-)

=c
Io

o-)oto
IL
J
o

F
05F

Fo&
LlJo
tIJI
lJ-
lJ-o

F- (9 rO O) O)c? sl ao?\@ ro cor.-@N lr)C{N
t(f)

lr)0)o)aq\€oN@r)NN(orr

t.-
c?
@
I.*

1.. t\ <' (r)o) a') t o,
ci d Nc,r, N (f)$

@I\F.tr)oro)
oido@rolr)v

|.--qolf,

o6COau?q@(\No)@co(o+sf

@()
Gi
@
$

o.qo
O)(o

=oo
J3g

(., o N@q a e?q(o 6 N(ON d) NF.(o (r)(f,

ol@a?q(\l (oN t.-(r, (f)

6a (.,qq(o (oNN

CO(o
(o
N

c
fo
E

6
'4,

o

C
o
E

p
IE
IL

fooo

{(oaolF-O?Y
F-
o?oro

@|r)
c.i
@
Y

(.,q
(o
N

i : :: ! : : 'o, d, --L E. F-e S, g' g, oo g [=[ H E B'i E -,I Eg E .g ,I .g ,[ EE E z<z ,! ! ,!!!p-e9.99E9:o.gE-e9))2oqoE 3 p *+ E + E S 6 +9 'L =3 0 = nn ; a ; e * pE g g=s g p g
e e ; ee p e e e ; e; ; ;;; ; o ;E E E 93 E E E E E EE E =P= 5 = Eo o o o O - O o 6d o NNN o N oF (o (o(o (.o = (c) 

= 66 (o(oc) r o

o,
E(!z

G
-o

-(E.E ti ,o
ooe
Ev,.oTiE
= 6;
go
G

=l0, I

=l

tr,oJ
F
od
E
lIJY
dt

u) tf)lf)tr)
o ooof{ NNNo ooo
o (f)(')(f)@ (o(o(oo ooo

:::
N c.i-d(9 oooF' ro$u)

I(,o
o
c,

=:: n6 cocoao E

toF
u.tJ
r.lJ
t)
Fo

Fo4
lrJo
llJo
trll-o

1() lr, ro
ooo(\NN
oooFICqO(o (o ciOOo

o$o(16)o
Nrc) (o c.)

.Y .Yooqro.EEqq
9€trrcoSrt-

: nib ints in

io ro
ooqaoo
(r)(f)
(o (ooo

<od
(o(f,
co@

J
F

coro F

la) lr) rll) lor) kt (, (, o loEI I o oo I c) b o be. e\r sr Nc.l e.t N N N NsEDhbbb;i;b-s^qsqs_s_q{N{r I I 88 I rg B B B
.::

E f E EE s p B B H
- N --o i: e,1 @.t) E 6 5 F E

xJrltraooEEooo06olFSEEEqeqqqz=E-rE4E-.)EJEltESisa.'3f-- O = = o = = o =iE E'F iE EIE r rn co F o oo F al

,l
CLI>lFl

I

-i
*l

=PNb
u);tro



o
o
E')(,
o.

ocoo
CO

oo
c,o
(f)

lf)ooqqq
NOO@ooNro(')

oqoo
(f)

tr,q
N
ao6I

rf, lL rr)aqqoNc{ooo@Nc\I

lr)c6t
@
N

rr,aoc)
a

|r)aoo

1Oaoo

:o
E

og
u,'tro

5o
E

p
tur

o
Eoz

(u

s
-(E.SEpoOp
E -Y'JQI rr E

= 6Etrs
8o
IE
I

:i;:ED .E ED O)LsLErEEtElaolr-gLEE e I nRo;!+=-i: ilr l9 t
==d.By; ;o ;;NONOONO(OO(Y)ocrNo(o(o(o(o

:
<o
d(]zot
F
@o
=

:
oFzIF
=EoIz

c
o(,(,

=lol
=l

u, 1() ra, r(,
oooo
NNNNooocr,(9N(.IN
(o (o ci 6ioooo

dN-st@lfor lr, l.-c)eo

xlOC'o0,
9q
I
CrE,

E EP E EP

lo
o
No(O
(oo
rr)
(o
N
(o

C'o.
F J

F:-Oc0F

=gNDro
FI\
FCI


